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THE
TASTE OF
SUCCESS
At Keells Food Products, we’re savouring the taste of success. Our
2015/16 performance was a positive one with growth reflected across
the company and we are proud to have delivered exceptional value to
the many stakeholders we serve.
Our triple bottom line results are notable, seeing sustainable corporate
growth at many levels, as we continue to bring increasing value and the
taste of success to thousands of people in Sri Lanka, and beyond.

CONTENTS
About Us

Financial Information

Vision and Values / 3

Financial Calendar / 78

Financial Highlights / 4

Annual Report of the Board of Directors / 80 - 86

Our Products / 5

Audit Committee Report / 87 - 89

Events of the Year / 6 - 7

Statement of Directors’ Responsibility / 90

About Us / 8

Independent Auditor’s Report / 91

About this Report / 9

Income Statement / 92

Performance Highlights / 10 - 11

Statement of Comprehensive Income / 93
Statement of Financial Position / 94

Chairman’s Message / 12 - 13

Statement of Cash Flows / 95 - 96
Statement of Changes in Equity / 97

Governance and Risk
Corporate Governance / 14 - 43
The Board of Directors / 44 - 45
Enterprise Risk Management / 46 - 51

Business Review
Our Strategy / 52-56
Value Creation Model / 52 - 53
Shareholder Engagement / 54 - 55
Determining Materiality / 55
Delivering on our Strategy / 56
Management Discussion and Analysis /57 - 72
Operating Environment / 57
Food and Beverage Industry Outlook / 58 - 59
Value Creation Report / 59 - 72
Finance and Manufactured Capital / 59 - 62
Social and Relationship Capital / 62 - 66
Intellectual Capital / 66 - 67
Human Capital / 67 - 70
Natural Capital / 70 - 72
Management Team / 73
Global Reporting Initiative Index (GRI Index) / 74 - 77

2

Keells Food Products PLC
Annual Report 2015/16

Note to the Financial Statements /98 - 151
Your Share in Detail / 152 - 153
10 Year Information at a Glance /154
Key Figures and Ratios / 155 - 156
Group Real Estate Portfolio / 156
Glossary of Financial Terminology /157
Notice of Meeting / 158
Form of Proxy / 159 - 160
Corporate Information / Inner Back Cover

GRI - G4

G4 -56

OUR VISION
Our passion is to deliver pleasure and nutrition
throughout peoples lives, through exciting and
superior products, whenever and wherever they
choose to eat and drink.

OUR VALUES
Innovation

: Changing constantly, re-inventing and evolving

Integrity

: Doing the right thing always

Excellence

: Constantly raising the bar

Caring

: Fostering a great place to work

Trust

: Building strong relationships based on openness and trust
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS
Revenue

16%

Rs. 3,030 Mn
Profit Before Tax

31%

Rs. 433 Mn
Earning Per Share

Rs. 13.13

28%

Dividend Per Share

Rs. 11.00

Market Price Per Share

Rs. 170.00
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120%

57%
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OUR
PRODUCTS
The Keells Sausage Range
The Keells Sausage Range is renowned as a superior brand. A pioneer in the processed meats industry, Keells
Sausages endorses our premium quality and adherence to strict hygienic manufacturing guidelines.

Chicken Sausages

Cheesy Blast

Chicken Garlic
Sausages

Chicken Cheese and
Onion Sausages

Spicy Bites

This sausage pays
homage to Sri Lankans’
love for all things spicy.
A delicious mix of red
hot chillies and chunky
sausage, you can count
on Spicy Bites to turn
on the heat anytime,
anywhere.

Cheesy Blast is full of
wholesome chicken and
generous dollops of
creamy and nutritious
cheese. No wonder
that this sausage is a hit
among kids.

The oldest sausage
in the Keells family,
its classic recipe has
stood the test of time.
Its wholesome chicken
goodness remains a
crowd pleaser to this
day.

A mouth watering
favourite, this sausage
is packed with juicy
chicken and fresh
garlic, offering many
creative possibilities
in kitchens across the
country.

Everyone loves
sausages, but nothing
stirs the passion of fans
like the Chicken, Cheese
and Onion Sausage.

The Krest Range
The yummy Krest Range offers you a wide variety of snacks & bites. We offer delicious & ready to fry Formed
Meats, Chinese Rolls and Crispy Potato Chips.
French Fries (Potato
Chips)

Formed Meat

The superior
golden crispy
crumb delivers the
ultimate snacking
experience where
with each bite you
are guaranteed
the delicious Krest
experience.

Chinese Rolls

Being a Sri Lankan staple
during snack time, the Chinese
Roll has won the hearts of
many. Synonymous with rolls
is Krest, our ready-to–fry
Chinese Roll range which is
ideal for both snacks and meal
times. Beautifully battered
and crumbed, they turn into
hot, crisp, appetising feasts in
minutes.

This superior quality
product is imported
from Farm Fries, a
world renowned
potato based products
manufacturer, located
in the Netherlands and
distributed in Sri Lanka
under the brand name of
‘Krest’.

The Elephant House Sausage Range

The Elephant House Sausage Range is a distinctively Sri Lankan brand launched in 1966. We offer a wide
range of handmade products created from our traditional recipes using the finest, freshest ingredients made to
international quality standards.
Chicken
Sausage

The most
popular
variant which
everybody
likes to
indulge in.

Pork Lingus

The favourite
legendary
Elephant House
Sausage taste
is most famous
for Lingus!

Bacon
Whopper
Sausage

The popular
chunky pork
sausage
with superior
bacon taste!

Black Forest

A pork based
sausage is brought
to life with a mix of
aroma and flavour
of natural spices
from
Sri Lanka.
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EVENTS
OF THE
YEAR
2015/16

August 2015
• Launch of EH Hacks Campaign

AUG
WE WILL CONTINUE TO SAVOUR

APR

MAY

JUL

July 2015
April 2015
• Arpico Promotion with
Brand Nomination
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May 2015
• Launch of the Krest
Vegetable Range

• EH BBQ Mela Campaign
• Nesco Gold Award one of our employees
won the Gold as Best Territory Manager
for the Year 2015

December 2015
• CA Sri Lanka Annual Report Awards 2014/15 KFP won
Silver in the Food and Beverage Category

September 2015
• Opening of EH Hotdog outlet at ODEL

• Launch of EH Hotdogs at your door step campaign
(EH mobile delivery)
• Launch of new products - Smokey Chicken & Cheese Sausage

SEP

DEC

THE TASTE OF SUCCESS...

OCT

October 2015
• JKH Chairman’s Award- Consumer Food
Sector team that worked as a change
catalyst to raise the bar by completing the
month end Accounts on the 1st working
day of the next month

NOV

FEB

November 2015

February 2016

• Distributor Convention – Celebrating
the achievements of our Distributors
and the Sales Team

• EH Valentine Promotion
Campaign

7

ABOUT
US
Our growing
product portfolio
is testament to
our research and
development
capabilities which
ensures that we
remain relevant to
changing consumer
preferences and
health and safety
concerns
Part of the Sri Lankan culture, the
Keells range of processed meat
products, the Krest range of ready
to fry products and our premium
range of Elephant House products
grace occasions with family and
friends, enriching the good times
adding flavour to our meals.
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About Keells Foods Products PLC
Established in 1982, Keells Food
Products PLC (KFP) continues to be Sri
Lanka’s market leader in the processed
meat Industry synonymous with quality,
convenience and taste. Part of the
Sri Lankan culture, the Keells range
of processed meat products, the Krest
range of ready to fry products and
our premium range of Elephant House
products grace occasions with family
and friends, enriching the good times
adding flavour to our meals. A proven
track record of high quality products
which cater to the changing lifestyles of
our people drives our growth as more
consumers opt for the convenience and
consistent quality of processed foods to
satisfy their nutritional requirements and
gastronomical experiences.
KFP as a food manufacturer is renowned
for its quality controls, research and
development and its state of the art
food processing plants. KFP continues to
invest in new technologies, innovations,
distribution networks, supply chain
development and certifications of its
processes which serve to maintain our
product promise to our consumers.

The Company’s value creation is driven
by our team of 342 high performing
employees, who bring our corporate
values to life and are at the heart of
our product and service delivery. Our
products have a wide geographical
footprint and are distributed to
consumers in all districts through a multichannel network comprising of general
trade outlets, modern trade outlets
as well as hotels and restaurants in
tranquil villages and bustling cities. KFP
strategically monitors its 17,000 retail
outlets to ensure that the right product
is available at the right time at the right
price in order to ensure we satisfy our
customers at all times.
Our growing product portfolio
is testament to our research and
development capabilities which ensures
that we remain relevant to changing
consumer preferences and health and
safety concerns. We work with farmers
in rural communities to create livelihoods
as we strengthen supply chains to
facilitate our mutual growth and are
proud to procure our requirements from
local sources.
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ABOUT
THIS REPORT
The focus of this
report is to provide
relevant financial
and non-financial
information
on material
developments to the
stakeholders
Reporting Principles
This report for the period 1st April
2015 to 31st March 2016 is the first
attempt by the Company to report
under Integrated Reporting Framework
issued by the International Integrated
Reporting Council and uses the G4
criteria published by the Global
Reporting Initiative for Sustainability
Reporting (GRI G4) which we voluntarily
adopted. The Financial Statements
have been prepared based on Sri

Lanka Financial Reporting Standards
to comply with the Companies Act
No.7 of 2007, the Listing Requirements
of the Colombo Stock Exchange, the
Code of Best Practice on Corporate
Governance jointly issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Sri Lanka and the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka.
We understand that integrated reporting
is apprehended and continue to
monitor developments in local and the
international context to ensure that our
reports are in par with best practice.
The focus of this report is to provide
relevant financial and non-financial
information on material developments
to the stakeholders and the capital
providers to represent fairly the events
that shaped our performance during
the reporting period and are likely
to impact our future performance. In
identifying the reporting events the
materiality principle was applied.
Material aspects and boundaries were
defined in accordance with the GRI G4
standards and responses obtained from
the stakeholder engagement processes.
In presenting how we create value for

different stakeholders we sought to
explain the impacts made to and from
different resources namely human
capital, manufactured capital, financial
capital, social and relationship capital.

Scope and Boundary
All narrative in this report refers to
Keells Food Products PLC (“KFP”)
and covers operations in both the
local market and export markets. The
information of our financial, social and
environmental performance, whilst
being comprehensive, has been limited
to a review of events and progress
within the year.

Feedback
We welcome your comments,
suggestions and queries regarding this
Report.
For feedback please contact;
Sector Financial Controller
Keells Food Products PLC
148, Vauxhall Street
Colombo 02
nelindra.ccs@keells.com
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PERFORMANCE
HIGHLIGHTS
Operational Performance
Revenue
Results from Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax (PBT)
Profit After Tax (PAT)
Dividends paid During the Year
Earnings per Share
Cash Earnings per Share
Interest Cover
Return on Capital Employed (ROCE)
Return on Equity (ROE)
Balance Sheet Strength
Total Assets
Total Debt
Shareholders' Funds
Number of Shares in Issue
Net Assets per Share
Debt / Equity
Debt / Total Assets
Quick Assets Ratio

Revenue vs Gross Profit

2016

2015

Change %

Rs.'000
Rs.'000
Rs.'000
Rs.'000
Rs.'000
Rs.
Rs.
No.of Times
%
%

3,030,204
426,782
433,388
334,706
280,500
13.13
20.92
31.70
22.31
19.29

2,617,980
338,353
331,415
261,289
127,500
10.25
17.28
17.25
18.25
16.09

16
26
31
28
120
28
21
84
22
20

Rs.'000
Rs.'000
Rs.'000
No.'000
Rs.
%
%
No. of Times

2,412,241
144,229
1,771,138
25,500
69.46
8.14
5.98
2.30

2,318,504
212,559
1,698,806
25,500
66.62
12.51
9.17
1.99

4
(32)
4
4
(35)
(35)
16

Earnings Per Share vs
Dividend Per Share

Revenue vs Operating Profit

Rs. Mn

Rs. Mn

Rs. Mn

Rs.

3,500

3,500

500

15

3,000

3,000

400

2,500

2,500

2,000

2,000

1,500

1,500

1,000

1,000

500

500

200

2013

2014

2015

2016

Net Revenue
Gross Profit
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2015

Change %

Social Performance
Market Price per Share as at 31st March

Rs.

170.00

108.30

57

Market Capitalization

Rs.'000

4,335,000

2,761,650

57

Enterprise Value

Rs.'000

4,186,070

2,722,122

54

Price Earning Ratio

No. of Times

12.95

10.57

23

Dividend Payout

%

83.80

48.80

72

Dividend Per Share

Rs.

11.00

5.00

120

Dividend Yield

%

6.47

4.62

40

Economic Value Added

Rs.'000

1,251,748

1,081,544

16

Employee Benefit Liability as of 31st March

Rs.'000

69,220

59,861

16

Community Services and Infrastructure Projects

Rs.'000

2,913

2,160

35

Proportion of Purchases from Suppliers within Sri Lanka

%

85

82

4
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CHAIRMAN’S
MESSAGE
Dear Shareholder,
“KFP continued to
It is with pleasure that I present the
deliver a strong
Annual Report and the Audited
performance which Financial Statements of Keells Food
Products PLC (KFP) for the financial year
resulted in the
ended 31st March 2016.
Company achieving For the year under review, KFP
to deliver a strong
its best performance continued
performance which resulted in
the Company achieving its best
to date in terms of
performance to date in terms of toptop-line and bottom- line and bottom-line, surpassing the
records set in 2014/15. As a result, the
line, surpassing
Company experienced a growth of 28
percent in consolidated Profit After Tax
the records set in
as well as earnings per share.
2014/15 "
Our Brand
“Product responsibility
remains a key priority as
food safety is a critical factor
for growth and we continue
to invest in ensuring that our
reputation for delivery of high
quality products is zealously
safeguarded.”

12

Keells Food Products PLC
Annual Report 2015/16

Synonymous with convenience and
quality, our brands continue to grow
meeting the expectations of our
consumers. Hotels, Restaurants and
Catering establishments (HORECA)
account for 36 percent of volume
making this our largest customer
segment which demonstrates an
increasing demand for ready to eat
meals arising from changes in lifestyles.
In terms of products, the Keells range of
sausages and meatballs and the Krest
range of crumbed formed meats have
proved popular with these products
accounting for 71 percent of total
volume of our range. The Elephant
House Brand introduced several
seasonal products in its range of
sausages to the premium segment of the
market, which was well received.

Food processing is a fast growing
industry in the country and we have
witnessed competitors increasing their
presence, particularly in the HORECA
channel. KFP retains its position as the
market leader in sausages and meat
balls and continues to have the highest
brand recall amongst consumers as
confirmed by our regular consumer
surveys. Improving the productivity of
the sales and distribution operations
using information technology driven
processes resulted in improving
the availability of our products in
approximately 17,000 outlets islandwide, thus sustaining our competitive
advantage while ensuring cost
efficiencies in distribution.

Financials
Keells Food Products PLC has delivered
a commendable performance achieving
revenue and profit growth of 16
percent and 28 percent respectively
to record a consolidated Profit After
Tax of Rs.334.71mn for the financial
year ending 31st March 2016. It is
the outcome of the strategy formulated
through intensive stakeholder
engagement ensuring that our products
are relevant to an increasingly discerning
consumer. We continue to support our
dealers and suppliers by investing in
growing their business with us. This
enabled a more granular approach
to marketing and promotions, driving
revenue growth which was buoyed by
increased disposable income. Gross
Profit margin for the year remained
consistent at 29 percent whilst Net Profit
margin improved to 11 percent.

GRI - G4

KFP is well
positioned to
maintain its
leadership position
in the processed
meats industry
with a proven
track record,
an unparalleled
network of
distributors and
suppliers

employees whilst balancing the interests
of shareholders.

Dividends

A Positive Outlook

Your Board has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of Rs.8.00
per share in addition to the interim
dividend of Rs. 4.00 per share paid
in October 2015, resulting in a total
dividend per share of Rs.12.00 for the
financial year 2015/16. The total payout for the financial year will amount
to Rs.306 million which amounts to a
dividend pay-out ratio of 91 percent.

KFP is well positioned to maintain its
leadership position in the processed
meats industry with a proven track
record, an unparalleled network of
distributors and suppliers. Increasing
consumption of meat, and a lifestyle
trending towards convenience foods,
indicates a healthy growth for the
industry. We expect stringent regulation
and are proactively working with
regulators to ensure that regulation is
relevant and fair to both consumers and
manufacturers. Product responsibility
remains a key priority as food safety
is a critical factor for growth and we
continue to invest in ensuring that our
reputation for delivery of high quality
products is zealously safeguarded.
Opportunities in export markets are
also likely to produce positive results in
2016/17. During the last two years,
our exports to India were hindered due
to changes in regulations at the point
of entry. It is heartening to note that
these regulations have been relaxed
during quarter four (4) of the year

A Peoples’ Business
The Company has a total workforce of
342 employees. Annual appraisals are
carried out and employees are provided
training in numerous aspects to facilitate
enhanced performance and realisation
of their career aspirations. Our goal
is to ensure that the next generation of
employees are trained, groomed and
empowered to succeed employees who
exit our business by way of retirement or
resignation. Remuneration, recognition
and benefits are aligned with the
business needs taking into consideration
the need to motivate and retain

Sustainable Sourcing
KFP has developed sustainable
procurement sources for meat,
vegetables and spices with farmer
networks which comprise mainly
of small to medium scale farmers.
Guaranteed prices provide an incentive
for increasing levels of production,
together with a reputation for fair play,
while our team of visiting specialists
provide technical support to ensure that
quality is maintained through awareness
of best practices and regular monitoring.
It is particularly encouraging to see
the development of these networks into
more organised bodies that are able
to progress towards obtaining quality
assurance certification in line with those
provided by our large scale suppliers.

G4 - 1

G4 - 8

under review and we are hopeful of recommencing our exports to India during
the 2016/17 financial year.

Acknowledgements
On behalf of the Board, I would like to
thank the management team and the
staff at Keells Food Products for effective
execution of strategy which has created
enhanced value for all key stakeholders.
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suppliers, shareholders and bankers for
their support extended to complete a
satisfactory year.
Mr. Eardley Perera who has reached
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2015/16 has informed us that he would
not be seeking re-election. Mr. Harsha
Amerasekera and Mr. Ranil Pieris come
up for re-election in terms of section 83
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served the Board for nine years, they
have informed us that they would not be
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Preethi Jayawardena, having served the
Board for more than nine years from the
date of his first appointment, has also
informed us that he would be resigning
after the Annual General Meeting of
the Company. I would like to place on
record our sincere appreciation to all
of them for the valuable contribution
made during their tenure and wish them
all the best in their future endeavours.
I also take this opportunity to thank
my colleagues on the Board for their
guidance and support.

Susantha Ratnayake
Chairman
16th May 2016
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
1. Executive Summary
Keells Food Products PLC (KFP) and its
Subsidiary John Keells Foods India
(Pvt) Limited (JKFIL) referred to as
the “Group” and its Holding Company
John Keells Holdings PLC (JKH) has
a Corporate Governance philosophy
founded on a culture of performance
within a framework of conformance
and compliance which helps to create
and maintain a business model which
succeeds in today’s competitive
business environment in a manner that
is sustainable and equitable to all our
stakeholders.
KFP practices good Corporate
Governance to gain and maintain
the trust of all stakeholders – trust in
the way business is managed and
supervised, trust in risk control, trust in
financial and non-financial reporting
and therefore trust in the Company as
a whole. Integrity, transparency and
clear communication are the vanguards
of sound Corporate Governance at
KFP. In compliance with legislation and
regulations, the Company will provide
all shareholders and all other parties at
the same time with the same information
on topics that could have a significant
impact on the share price, subject to
exceptions stipulated by law. Strict
compliance with the basic principles
of integrity, transparency and clear
communication are high on the KFP’s
agenda. The internal processes are
devised carefully and transparently as
possible, ensuring that these values are
adhered to throughout the organisation.
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KFP is fully compliant with all the mandatory provisions of the Companies Act No.
07 of 2007, Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) and Rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka (SEC). KFP practices are in line
with the Code of Best Practices on Corporate Governance jointly advocated by the
SEC and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA Sri Lanka). The
systems and procedures are continuously reviewed to provide transparency and
accountability.
1.1 New Corporate Governance Initiatives at KFP for the Year 2015/16
• A Forensic Data Analytic Vendor has been contracted to assist in enhancing the
internal controls by providing management, authorised approvers and Internal
Auditors early “cautionary triggers”, via a user friendly dashboard, using “realtime” data which highlight transaction exceptions and outliers.
•

A comprehensive review of the Segregation of Duties (SoD) of all the roles and
individuals who execute transactions across an entire business process under
Sarbanes-Oxley (SOX) guidelines.

1.2 Highlights of the 33rd Annual General Meeting held on 15th June 2015
• Mr. J R Gunaratne, who retired in terms of Article 83 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, was re-elected as a Director of the Company.
•

Mr. A D Gunewardene, who retired in terms of Article 83 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, was re-elected as a Director of the Company.

•

Re-appointment of Ernst and Young as the Auditors of the Company.

1.3 Key Governance Disclosures
Reference section
The Governance Framework

Section 2

Board Related Disclosures

Section 3.1

Group Executive Committee (GEC) and Other
Management Committees

Section 3.2

Employee Empowerment

Section 3.3

Audit Committee

Section 3.4.1

Human Resource Committee

Section 3.4.2

Nominations Committee

Section 3.4.3

GRI - G4

Reference section
Related Party Transaction Review Committee

Section 3.4.4

Integrated Governance Systems and Procedures

Section 4

Stakeholder Management

Section 4.3

Assurance Mechanisms

Section 5

Outlook and Emerging Challenges

Section 6

Compliance Summary

Section 7

2. Corporate Governance Framework
The Corporate Governance Framework of KFP guided by its Parent entails three key
components as summarised below and the discussion within this report is sequenced
to highlight the different elements that combine to ensure a robust and a sound
governance framework.

G4 - 34

2.1 Internal Governance Structure
This comprises of the committees
which formulate, execute and monitor
strategies and initiatives and the
integrated governance systems and
procedures which support these
committees to perform their roles
effectively.
2.2 Assurance Mechanisms
This comprises of the ‘bodies and
mechanisms’ which are employed in
enabling regular review of progress
against objectives with a view to
highlighting deviations and quick
redress and in providing assurance
that actual outcomes are in line with
expectations.

Corporate Governance Framework
Level

Internal Governance Structure

Committee (GEC)

Group Executive

Board of Directors and
Senior Management Committees
Related Party
Human Resources
Transaction
and Compensation
Review Committee
Committee
Chairman and
the Board of
Directors
Nominations
Audit
Committee
Committee

Function

Industry

Group Management Committee (GMC)

Integrated
Governance Systems
and Procedures
Strategy Formulation
and Decision
Making Process

Human Resource
Governance

Integrated Risk
Management

Assurance
Mechanisms
Independent
Director

Audit
Committee

Employee
Participation

Ombudsman

Function

Business

Employee Empowerment

Stakeholder
Management
and Effective
Communication

Listing Rules of the
Colombo Stock
Exchange (CSE)
(Mandatory Compliance)

Internal Control

IT Governance
Management Committee (MC)

Companies Act
No. 07 of 2007

(Mandatory Compliance)

JKH Code of
Conduct

CEO

Regulatory Benchmarks
(Key components)

External Audit

The Code of Best
Practices on
Corporate
Governance
published by
the Securities
and Exchange
Commission and the

Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka
(Voluntary Compliance)
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2.3 Regulatory Framework
From an external perspective,
adherence to laws and best practices
plays a pivotal role in directing the
Group towards conforming with
established governance related laws,
regulations and best practices. The
Group’s governance philosophy is
practiced in full compliance with the
following Acts, rules and regulations;
•

Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 –
Mandatory compliance

•

Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock
Exchange (CSE) – Mandatory
compliance (Including subsequent
revisions up to 25th August 2015)

•

The Code of Best Practice on
Corporate Governance issued
jointly by the Securities and
Exchange Commission and the
Institute of Chartered Accountants,
Sri Lanka – Voluntary compliance

Where necessary, and applicable, any
deviations as allowed by the relevant
rules and regulations have been
explained.

3. Internal Governance Structure
The Internal Governance Structure
encompasses two main pillars as
illustrated in the diagram above and
those are;
1) Board of Directors and Senior
Management Committees
The Internal Governance Structure
encompasses the committees which
formulate, execute and monitor Group
strategies and initiatives and the
policies, processes and procedures
employed. The four (4) main pillars are
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•

Board of Directors

•

Board Subcommittees

•

Senior Management Committees

•

Employee Empowerment

Executive authority is well devolved
and delegated through a committee
structure ensuring that the CEO, and
profit centre/functional managers are
accountable for the business units/subfunctions respectively.
Clear definitions of authority limits,
responsibilities and accountabilities
are set and agreed upon in advance
to achieve greater operating efficiency,
expediency, healthy debate and
freedom of decision making.
As depicted in the Governance
framework, the above components
are strengthened and complemented
by internal policies, processes
and procedures such as strategy
formulation and decision making,
human resource governance, integrated
risk management, IT governance and
stakeholder management and effective
communication.
2) Integrated Governance Systems
and Procedures
Promote good governance within the
wider context of achieving sustainable
success which is beyond mere
conformance with regulations. The
mechanisms mentioned below, within
the internal governance structure, ensure
implementation and execution towards
upholding the Group’s Corporate
Governance framework.
•

Strategy formulation and decision
making

•

Human Resource governance,
Employee performance and People
and talent management

•

Stakeholder management

•

Effective & transparent
communication

•

Integrated risk management

•

IT governance

3.1 Board of Directors
The Board of Directors, along with the
Chairman, is the apex body responsible
and accountable for the stewardship
function. The Directors are collectively
responsible for upholding and ensuring
the highest standards of Corporate
Governance and inculcating ethics and
integrity.
Please refer Board of Directors section
for details on expertise, experience and
qualifications of the Board of Directors.
3.1.1 Board Responsibilities and
Decision Rights
Notwithstanding the functioning of
the Board Committees, the Board of
Directors is collectively responsible for
the decisions and actions taken by these
Board sub-committees.
The Corporate Governance Framework
expects the Board of Directors to:
•

Provide direction and guidance to
the Company and the Subsidiary
in the formulation of its highlevel strategies, with emphasis
on the medium and long term, in
the pursuance of its sustainable
development goals

•
•
•

Reviewing and approving annual
plans and long-term business plans
Tracking actual progress against
plans
Reviewing HR processes with
emphasis on top management
succession planning

•

Monitoring systems of governance
and compliance

•

Overseeing systems of Internal
Control, risk management and
establishing whistle-blowing
conduits

•

Determining any changes to the
discretions/authorities delegated
from the Board to the executive
levels

•

Reviewing and approving major
acquisitions, disposals and capital
expenditure

•

Approving any amendments to
constitutional documents

•

Adopting voluntarily, best practices
where relevant and applicable

•

Approving in principle issue of
equity / debt securities

3.1.2 Board Composition
As at 31st March 2016, the Board
consisted of eight (8) Directors, of which
four (4) are Non-Executive, Independent
Directors (NED/ID). As at the last
Annual General Meeting held on 15th
June 2015, the Board consisted of the
eight (8) Directors.
3.1.3 Non Executive-Independent
Directors and the Board Balance
The Group policy is to maintain a
healthy balance between, Non-Executive
Non Independent and Non-Executive
Independent Directors bringing in
deep knowledge of the businesses and
experience in corporate, marketing,
legal and financial activities enabling
them to discharge their governance

8
7
6
5
4
3
2
1
0

Over 70
NI/

61-70

NED
Male

Over 9

I/

55-60

NED

Designation

Gender

Age Group

Board Tenure

duties in an effective manner with
independent oversight.

The following skills and exposure are
currently represented on the Board;

Independence of the Directors has
been determined in accordance
with the criteria of the CSE Listing
Rules, and the Board confirms that its
present composition of Non-Executive
Independent Directors (NED/ID) is in
line with the requirements of the CSE
Listing Rules. The four (4) independent
Non-Executive Directors have
submitted signed confirmations of their
independence.

•

JKH Group exposure, including
intimate knowledge/experience of
its culture, over long periods of time

•

Large multinational and
international organisational
exposure and experience

•

Portfolio management including
mergers and acquisitions skills

•

Export oriented Companies, FMCGs
and commercial bank exposure and
experience

•

Chambers of Commerce and
Industry Associations exposure and
experience

•

HR Management and Industrial
Relations skills

•

Accounting, Auditing and Risk
Management skills

•

Sales and Marketing skills

•

Macro Finance, Economics and
Treasury skills

•

Legal skills

•

Regulatory Bodies exposure and
experience

All Non-Executive Directors are
encouraged to propose discussion items
for the Board meetings.
3.1.4 Board Skills
Collectively, Non-Executive Non
Independent Directors bring a wealth
of diverse experience, exposure
and knowledge of domestic and
international markets, specialised
functional know-how and independence
of thought, ensuring adequate Board
diversity in accordance with principals
of Corporate Governance.
The Group is ever conscious of the need
to maintain an appropriate mix of skills
and experience in the Board through
a regular review of its composition in
ensuring that the skills representation is
in sync with current and future needs.

The Board consists of two senior
qualified Accountants with significant
experience in the corporate sector.
Both of them possess the necessary
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knowledge and expertise to offer the
Board of Directors guidance on matters
of finance. One Director serves as the
Finance Director of the Parent Company
whilst the other as the Chairman of the
Audit Committee.
3.1.5 Conflicts of Interest and
Independence
Each Director has a continuing
responsibility to determine whether
he or she has a potential or actual
conflict of interest arising from external
associations, interests in material matters
and personal relationships which may
influence his judgment. Such potential
conflicts are reviewed by the Board from
time to time.
Details of Companies in which
Board members hold Board or Board
Committee membership are available
with the Company for inspection by
Shareholders on request. In order
to avoid potential conflicts or bias,
Directors adhere to best practices as
illustrated below;

The Independence of all Non-Executive Directors was reviewed on the basis of the
criteria summarised below
Definition

Status of Conformity

1.

Shareholding carrying not less than 10
percent of voting rights

None of the individual NED/IDs hold
any shares of the Company

2.

Director of another Company

None of the NED/IDs are Directors
of another Related Party Company as
defined

3.

Income/non cash benefit equivalent to
20 percent of the Director’s income

NED/ID income/cash benefits are
less than 20 percent of individual
Director’s income

4.

Employment at JKH two years
immediately preceding appointment
as Director

None of the NED/IDs are employed
or have been employed at JKH

5.

Close family member who is a Director,
CEO or a Key Management Personnel

No family members of the NED/IDs
is a Director or CEO of a Related
Party Company

6.

Has served on the Board continuously
for a period exceeding nine years from
the date of the first appointment

Refer note below

Note - Compliant by assessment and resolution - Mr. S.H Amarasekara PC , Mr. R.
Pieris, Mr. A.D.E.I Perera and Mr. M.P Jayawardene have all completed more than
9 consecutive years as members of the Board. However the Board having reviewed
their interests and their ability to bring strong independent oversight to the Board,
established that they continue to demonstrate their independence.

Prior to
Appointment

Nominees are requested to make known their various interests that could potentially
conflict with the interests of the Company.

Once
Appointed

Directors obtain Board clearance prior to:
• Accepting a new position
• Engaging in any transaction that could create or potentially create a conflict of interest
• All NEDs are required to notify the Chairman/ CEO of any changes to their current
Board representations or interests and a new declaration is made every financial year.

During Board
Meetings
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Summary of Directors Interest in the Company
Name of Director

Executive/ Non
Executive

Independent / Non
Independent

Involvement/ Involvement/ Involvement/ Continuously
Served for
Interest
Interest in
Interest in
9 Years
Shareholding Management in Supply
Contracts

Mr. S.C. Ratnayake –
Chairman

Non Executive

Non Independent

Yes

No

No

-

Mr. A. D. Gunewardene

Non Executive

Non Independent

No

No

No

-

Mr. J. R. F. Peiris

Non Executive

Non Independent

No

No

No

-

Mr. J. R. Gunaratne

Non Executive

Non Independent

No

No

No

-

Mr. S.H Amarasekara PC

Non Executive

Independent

No

No

No

Yes (Note 1)

Mr. R Pieris

Non Executive

Independent

No

No

No

Yes (Note 1)

Mr. A.D.E.I Perera

Non Executive

Independent

No

No

No

Yes (Note 1)

Mr. M.P Jayawardena

Non Executive

Independent

No

No

No

Yes (Note 1)

Note 1 : Compliant by assessment and resolution - Mr. S H Amarasekara PC, Mr. R. Pieris, Mr. A D E I Perera and Mr. M.P
Jayawardena have all completed more than 9 consecutive years, as Directors of Keells Food Product PLC, However the Board
consider them independent given their objectives and unbiased approach to matters of the Board.

3.1.6 Board Appointment
Board appointments follow a structured
and formal process within the purview
of the Nominations Committee.
Details of new Directors are disclosed
to the shareholders at the time of
their appointment by way of public
announcement as well as in the Annual
Report (refer The Board of Directors
section of this Annual Report). The
Directors are required to report any
substantial changes in their professional
responsibilities and business
associations to the Nominations
Committee, which will examine the
facts and circumstances and make
recommendations to the Board.
3.1.7 Board Tenure, Retirement and
Re-election
The Executive Directors are appointed
and recommended for re-election subject
to their prescribed Company retirement
age whilst Non-Executive Directors
are appointed and recommended for
re-election subject to the age limit as
per statutory provisions at the time of
re-appointment

At each Annual General Meeting one
third of the Directors, retire by rotation
on the basis prescribed in the Articles
of Association of the Company and are
eligible for re-election. The Directors
who retire are those who have been
longest in office since their appointment
/ re-appointment. In addition any new
Director who was appointed to the
Board during the year is required to
stand for re-election at the next Annual
General Meeting.
The re-election of Directors ensures that
shareholders have an opportunity to
reassess the composition of the Board.
The names of the Directors submitted
for re-election are provided to the
shareholders in advance to enable them
to make an informed decision on their
election.
The names of the retiring Directors
eligible for re-election this year are
mentioned in the Notice of the Annual
General Meeting of the Company.
Further, all Directors who are over the
age of 70 years are re-elected to the
Board annually as per Section 210 of
the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007

3.1.8 Access to Independent
Professional Advice
In order to preserve the independence
of the Board, and to strengthen the
decision making process, the Board
seeks independent professional advice
when deemed necessary. Accordingly,
the Board obtains independent
professional advice covering areas such
as;
•

Impacts on business operations of
the current and emerging economic
and geo-political shifts.

•

Legal, tax and accounting aspects,
particularly where independent
external advice is deemed
necessary in ensuring the integrity
of the subject decision.

•

Market surveys, architectural and
engineering advisory services as
necessary for business operations.

•

Actuarial valuation of retirement
benefits and valuation of property
including that of investment
property.
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•

Information technology consultancy services pertaining to enterprise resource
planning system, distributor management system or other major projects.

•

Specific technical know-how and domain knowledge for identified project
feasibilities and evaluations.

Additionally, individual Directors are encouraged to seek expert opinion and/or
professional advice on matters where they may not have full knowledge or expertise.
3.1.9 Board Meetings
3.1.9.1 Regularity of Meetings
The Board meets at the least, once every quarter. Any absences are excused in
advance and duly recorded in the minutes. The absent members are immediately
briefed on the discussions and actions taken during the meeting.
Directors are provided with the necessary information well in advance (at least
one week prior to the board meeting) in order to facilitate more informed decision
making. Board information packs supplied to the Directors include the Board
Resolutions and other functional areas such as finance and accounting, tax, human
resources, treasury and corporate social responsibility. Dates and attendance of
Board of Directors to the quarterly Board meetings is as below.
Keells Food Product PLC
Name of Director

Date of Board Meeting & Attendance
30/04/2015

22/07/2015

19/10/2015

13/01/2016

Mr. S C Ratnayake

Present

Present

Present

Present

Mr. A D Gunewardene

Present

Present

Present

Present

Mr J R F Peiris

Present

Present

Present

Present

Mr. J R Gunaratne

Present

Present

Present

Present

Mr. R Peiris

Present

Present

Present

Present

Mr. S H Amarasekera PC

Excused

Present

Present

Present

Mr. A D E I Perera

Present

Present

Present

Present

Mr. M P Jayawardene

Present

Present

Present

Present

3.1.9.2 Typical Board Agenda
• Confirmation of previous minutes
•

Matters arising from the previous minutes

•

Board subcommittee reports and other matters exclusive to the Board

•

Status updates of major projects

•

Review of performance – in summary and in detail, including high level
commentary on actuals and outlook
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•

Summation of strategic issues
discussed at pre-Board meetings

•

Approval of Quarterly and Annual
Financial Statements

•

Ratification of capital expenditure,
disposal of fixed assets and
donations

•

Ratification of the Circular resolution

•

Ratification of the use of the
Company seal and share
certificates issued

•

New resolutions

•

Report on Corporate Social
Responsibility

•

Any other business; review of risks,
sustainability development, HR
practices/updates, etc.

3.1.9.3 Timely Supply of Information
In order to ensure robust discussion,
informed deliberation and effective
decision making, the Directors are
provided access to;
•

Information as is necessary to carry
out their duties and responsibilities
effectively and efficiently

•

Information updates from
management on topical matters,
new regulations and best practices
as relevant to the Group’s business

•

External and Internal Auditors

•

Experts and other external
professional services

•

The services of the Company
Secretaries whose appointment
and/or removal is the responsibility
of the Board

•

Periodic performance reports

•

Senior management under a
structured arrangement

3.1.9.4 Board Secretary
There is a Secretary to the Board. In
addition to maintaining Board minutes
and Board records, the Board Secretary
provides support in ensuring that the
Board receives timely and accurate
information relating to Corporate
Governance matters, Board procedures
and applicable rules and regulations
during the year. All concerns raised
and wished to be recorded have been
documented in sufficient detail.
3.1.10 Board Directors Delegation
of Authority
The Board has delegated some of its
functions to Board committees while
retaining final decision rights pertaining
to matters under the purview of these
committees.
The Board has, subject to pre-defined
limits, delegated its executive authority
to the Group Management Committee
(GMC) and the COO who is a member
of GMC and provides leadership and
direction.
3.1.11 Board Evaluation
The Board conducted its annual Board
performance appraisal for the financial
year 2015/16. This formalised process
of individual appraisal enabled
each member to self-appraise on an
anonymous basis, the performance of
the Board under the areas of;
•

Role clarity and effective discharge
of responsibilities

•

People mix and structures

•

Systems and procedures

•

Quality of participation

•

Board image

The scoring and open comments
are collated by a Non- Executive
Independent Director, and the results
are analysed to give the Board an
indication of its effectiveness as well as
areas that required addressing and/
or strengthening. Despite the original
anonymity of the remarks, the open and

frank discussions that follow include
some Directors identifying themselves as
the person making the remark reflecting
the openness of the Board.
3.1.12 Director Remuneration
3.1.12.1 Non-Executive Director
Remuneration
Compensation of NEDs is determined in
reference to fees paid to other NEDs of
comparable Companies and is adjusted
where necessary in keeping with the
Group complexity. The fees received
by NEDs are determined by the Board
and reviewed annually. Additional fees
are paid for either chairing or being a
member of a subcommittee. NEDs do
not receive any performance/incentive
payments and are not eligible to
participate in any of the Group’s share
option plans. Non-Executive fees are
not subject to time spent or defined by
a maximum/minimum number of hours
committed to the Group per annum, and
hence are not subject to additional/
lower fees for additional/lesser time
devoted.
3.1.12.2 Compensation for Early
Termination
In the event of an early termination of
a Director there are no compensation
commitments other than for NEDs Fees
payable, if any, in terms of contract.
3.1.13 Directors’ Responsibilities
The Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities in relation to financial
reporting is given in the Financial
Information section of the Annual
Report. The Directors’ interests in
contracts of the Company are addressed
in the Annual Report of the Board of
Directors.
The Board of Directors in consultation
with the Audit Committee have taken
all reasonable steps in ensuring the
accuracy and timeliness of published
information and in presenting an honest
and balanced assessment of results
in the quarterly and annual Financial
Statements.

As discussed in the shareholder relations
section of this note, all price sensitive
information has been made known
to the Colombo Stock Exchange,
shareholders and the press in a timely
manner and in keeping with the
regulations.
3.1.14 Going Concern
The Board of Directors upon the
recommendation of the Audit Committee
is satisfied that the Company and the
Subsidiary has sufficient resources
to continue in operation for the
foreseeable future. In the event that
the net assets of the Company and the
Subsidiary Company fall below a half
of shareholders’ funds, shareholders
would be notified and an extraordinary
resolution passed on the proposed way
forward.
The going concern principle has
been adopted in preparing the
Financial Statements. All statutory and
material declarations are highlighted
in the Annual Report of the Board
of Directors in the Annual Report.
Financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the Sri Lanka Financial
Reporting Standards (SLFRS) and Lanka
Accounting Standards (LKAS), including
all the new standards introduced during
the subject year, and International
Accounting Standards (IAS), as
applicable.
Information in the Financial Statements
of the Annual Report are supplemented
by a detailed ‘Management Discussion
and Analysis’ which explains to
shareholders the strategic, operational,
investment and risk related aspects
of the Company and the Subsidiary
that have translated into the reported
financial performance and are likely to
influence future results.
3.1.15 Time Spent by Non-Executive
Directors and Support Given
Every member of the Board has
dedicated adequate time and effort for
the affairs of the Company by attending
Board meetings, Board subcommittee
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meetings and by making decisions via
circular resolutions. In addition, the
Board members have meetings and
discussions with management when
required.
The Board met on four (4) occasions
during the year and the Chairman and
all Directors attended all meetings unless
they had excused themselves.
The Board is satisfied that the Chairman
and the Non-Executive Directors
committed sufficient time during the year
to fulfil their duties.
3.1.16 Board Induction and Training
In instances where Non-Executive
Directors are newly appointed to the
Board, they are apprised of the:
Values and culture, operations of the
Company and its strategies, operating
model, policies, governance framework
and processes, responsibilities as
a director in terms of prevailing
legislation, the code of conduct
demanded by the Company and
important developments in the business
activities of the Group. The Board policy
on Directors’ training is to provide
adequate opportunities for continuous
development, subject to requirement and
relevance for each Director.

under the leadership of the Chairman,
that was primarily responsible for
ensuring that the strategies and policies
adopted by the Board are converted
into immediate, short-term, mediumterm and long-term action plans and
that there exist mechanisms for tracking
actual progress against plans, goals
and targets.

•

Career management of senior
executives (Assistant Vice President
and above).

•

Regularly reviewing the
HR practices, including the
compensation philosophy, of the
Group through surveys and other
internally generated indicators.

Policies that affect the JKH Group and
strategic matters that can be synergised
across the JKH Group are discussed at
the GEC prior to it being recommended
to the KFP Board.

3.2.1.3 Enablers of the JKH
Operating Model
A key responsibility of the members
of the GEC is to act as the enablers of
the operating model of the JKH Group.
Towards this end, GEC members,
particularly the Presidents, not only
play a mentoring role, but are totally
accountable for the business units and
functions under their purview. The
members of the GEC are well equipped
to execute these tasks and bring in a
wealth of experience and diversity to
the Group in terms of their expertise and
exposure.

3.2.1.1 Composition
As at 31 March 2016, the 10 member
GEC consisted of the Chairman, the
Deputy Chairman, the Group Finance
Director of JKH and the Presidents of
each business/function of JKH.
3.2.1.2 Key Responsibilities
• Approving the Industry Group’s
short, medium and long term
strategies and annual plans and
monitoring the actual business
performance against pre-set
objectives and key performance
indicators on a quarterly basis.
•

Regularly reviewing the portfolio
of businesses, and the supporting
functions, in terms of current
performance, future prospects and
synergy.

•

Recommending to the Board new
business opportunities.

The Directors are constantly updated on
the latest trends and issues facing the
Company and the industry in general.
3.2 Group Executive Committee (GEC)
of the Parent Company and Other
Management Committees
3.2.1 Group Executive
Committee (GEC)
The Group Executive Committee (GEC)
of the Parent Company, John Keells
Holdings PLC (JKH) is the Committee,
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•

Assisting the Chairman in
succession planning and
appointment of Presidents, Sector
Heads, Functional Heads and other
Senior Managers.

3.2.2 Group Management Committee
(GMC)
The GMC of the Consumer Foods Sector
operates under the leadership of the
respective President and are dedicated
and focused towards implementing
strategies and policies determined by
the Board and designing, implementing
and monitoring the best practices in
their respective functions, strategic
business units or even at departmental
level where appropriate and material.
3.2.2.1 Key Objective
The underlying intention of the GMC
is to encourage the respective business
units to take responsibility and
accountability to the lowest possible
level, via suitably structured committees
and teams in a management by
objectives setting.

GRI - G4

3.2.2.2 Scope
The agenda of the GMC is carefully
structured to avoid duplication of
effort and ensure that discussions and
debate are complementary both in
terms of a bottom-up and top-down flow
of accountabilities and information.
Responsibility and accountability of
the effective functioning of the GMC is
vested upon the President, the functional
heads and the profit centre/function
managers as applicable.
The GMC focus is aligned to headline
financial and non-financial indicators,
strategic priorities, risk management,
implement the strategies and policies
determined by the Board, the use of
IT as a tool of competitive advantage,
new business development, continuous
process improvements , management
of the human resource and managing
through delegation and empowerment,
the business affairs of the respective
sectors.
Responsibility for monitoring and
achieving plans as well as ensuring
compliance with Group policies and
guidelines rests with the Presidents, the
functional heads and the profit centre/
functional managers where applicable.

Industry Group

3.3 Employee Empowerment
The Group considers its employees as
it greatest asset and embraces them
at various levels within its Internal
Governance Structure. In recognition
of the same, policies, processes and
systems are in place to ensure effective
recruitment, development and retention
as the Group is committed to hiring,
developing and promoting individuals
who possess the required competencies.
With that view, the Group continued
with, and further strengthened, the
following practices.
•

Top management and other senior
staff were mandated to involve, as
appropriate, all levels of staff in
formulating goals, strategies and
plans.

•

Decision rights were defined for
each level of employment in order
to instil a sense of ownership,
reduce bureaucracy and speed-up
the decision making process.

•

A bottom-up approach was taken
in the preparation of annual
and long-term plans and the
Group also ensured employee

Group Management
Committee

President

G4 - HR5

G4 - HR6

involvement in strategy, and thereby
empowerment, in the process.
•

Organisational and committee
structures are designed to enable,
and facilitate, high accessibility
of all employees to every level of
management.

•

Open, honest, frank and
constructive communication was
encouraged at all levels. The Group
strongly believes that constructive
disagreement is essential for optimal
decision making.

Moreover, the Group provides a safe,
secure and conducive environment
for its employees, allows freedom
of association and collective
bargaining, prohibits child labour,
forced or compulsory labour and any
discrimination based on gender, race
or religion, and promotes workplaces
which are free from physical, verbal
or sexual harassment. Additionally,
the Group strives to incorporate these
practices, where relevant, in the supply
chain contracts entered into by the
Group.

• Strategy Formulation
• Performance Monitoring

Sector

Sector Committee

Executive Vice
President

• Career Management and
Succession Planning

• Risk Management
Business unit/
Function

Management
Committee

Vice President/
Assistent Vice
President/ Manager

• Implementation of Group
Initiatives
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3.4 Board Sub Committees of the Parent Company (JKH)
3.4.1 Audit Committee of the Company
Composition

Mandate

Scope

All members to be exclusively Non-Executive, Independent Directors with at least one member having significant,
recent and relevant financial management and accounting experience and a professional accounting
qualification.
The CFO, the Sector Financial Controller (SFC) and COO are permanent invitees for all Committee meetings.
Monitor and supervise management’s financial reporting process in ensuring:
• Accurate and timely disclosure
• Transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting
i. Confirm and assure:
• Independence of External Auditor
• Objectivity of Internal Auditor
ii. Review with independent auditors the adequacy of internal controls and quality of financial reporting
iii. Regular review meetings with management, internal auditor and external auditors in seeking assurance on
various matters

The Audit Committee had 4 meetings during the year. The attendance of the Audit Committee members is indicated in the Audit
Committee Report on pages 81 to 89.
3.4.2 Human Resources and Compensation Committee of the Parent Company and Policy
The Human Resources and Compensation Committee of the Parent company John Keells Holdings PLC functions as the Human
Resources and Compensation Committee of the Company and the Subsidiary conforms to the requirements of the Listing Rules of
the Colombo Stock Exchange
The Human Resources and Compensation Committee of the Parent Company consists of following four (4) Non Executive
Independent Directors
1) E F G Amerasinghe – Chairman		
2) I Coomaraswamy			

Composition

Mandate

Scope
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3) A N Fonseka
4) M A Omar

5) D A Cabraal

The Chairperson must be a Non-Executive Director. Committee should comprise exclusively of Non-Executive
Directors, a majority of whom shall be independent.
The Chairman and JKH Group Finance Director are present at all Committee meetings unless the Chairman or
Executive Director remuneration is under discussion respectively. The President, Human Resources and Legal is
also present at all meetings.
Determine the quantum of compensation (including stock options) for Chairman and Executive Directors, conduct
performance evaluation of Chairman, review performance evaluation of the other Executive Directors and
establish a Group Remuneration Policy
i. Determine and agree with the Board a framework for remuneration of the Chairman and Executive Directors
ii. Consider targets, and benchmark principles, for any performance related pay schemes
iii. Within terms of agreed framework, determine total remuneration package of each Executive Director,
keeping in view;
• Performance
• Industry trends
• Past remuneration
iv. Succession planning of Key Management Personnel
v. Determining compensation of Non-Executive Directors will not be under the scope of this Committee
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3.4.3 Nominations Committee of the Parent Company
The Nomination Committee of the Parent Company consist of the following six (6) members;
1) T Das – Chairman
2) E F G Amerasinghe
3) D A Cabraal
4) M A Omar
5) M P Perera (Ms.)
6) S C Ratnayake
Composition

The Chairperson must be a Non-Executive Director. The Chief Executive Officer should be a member.

Mandate

Define and establish nomination process for NEDs, lead the process of Board appointments and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Non-Executive Directors

Scope

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)

Assess skills required on the Board given the need of the businesses
From time to time assess the extent to which required skills are represented on Board
Prepare a clear description of the role and capabilities required for a particular appointment
Identify and recommend suitable candidates for appointments to the Board.
Ensure, on appointment to Board, NEDs receive a formal letter of appointment specifying clearly
Expectation in terms of time commitment
Involvement outside of the formal Board meetings
Participation in committees
( The appointment of Chairperson and EDs is a collective decision of Board)

3.4.4 Related Party Transaction Review Committee of the Parent Company
The committee consist of five (5) members as follows 1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

A N Fonseka – Chairman		
E F G Amerasinghe
D A Cabraal
M P Perera (Ms.)
S C Ratnayake

The Board of the Parent Company established a Related Party Transaction Review Committee with effect from 01 April 2014, to
review all the Related Party Transactions of the listed Companies within the JKH Group. This move also complies with the early
adoption of the Code of Best Practice on Related Party Transactions issued by the SEC. On the basis that the Parent Company
is also a listed company, the SEC has permitted the Related Party Transactions Review Committee of the Parent Company, to
represent the listed Companies in the JKH Group of which, Keells Food Products PLC is a member.

Composition

The Chairperson must be a Non-Executive Director. Must include at least one Executive Director.

Mandate

To ensure on behalf of the Board, that all Related Party Transactions of John Keells Holdings PLC and its Listed
Subsidiaries are consistent with the Code of Best Practices on Related Party Transactions issued by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka.

Scope

a)

b)

Develop, and recommend for adoption by the Board of Directors of John Keells Holdings PLC and its Listed
subsidiaries, a Related Party Transaction Policy which is consistent with the Operating Model and the
Delegated Decision Rights of the JKH Group.
Update the Board of Directors the Related Party Transaction of each of the listed companies of the JKH Group
on a quarterly basis.
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3.5 Direct Discussions with the NonExecutive Directors
Whilst there is no formal structure to
have such meetings, Chairman has an
open door policy to allow Independent
Directors to have a discussion on
any issue which in their opinion is
significant. During the year under
review Chairman had discussions with
Independent Directors on an informal
basis.
3.5.1 CEO Appraisal
The Chairman and the Non-Executive
Non Independent Directors appraise
the performance of the CEO of the
Company on the basis of pre-agreed
objectives for the Company set in
consultation with the Board.

4. Integrated Governance
Systems and Procedures
Listed below are the main governance
systems and procedures of the Group.
These systems and procedures
strengthen the elements of the JKH
Internal Governance Structure and are
benchmarked against industry best
practices.
i.

Strategy formulation and decision
making

ii.

Employee performance governance

iii. People and talent management
iv. Stakeholder management
v.

Effective and transparent
communication

vi. IT governance
vii. Integrated risk management
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4.1 Strategy Formulation and Decision Making

1. Formulating
business strategy,
objectives and risk
management for
each BU for the
financial year

5. Performance
evaluation of the
second half/
full year

2. GEC review
and approval

Continuous
Performance
Monitoring
at BU Level

4. Reforecasting
the targets for the
second half of
the year and GEC
approval

4.1.1. Project Approval Process
Projects undertaken follow a detailed
feasibility report covering key business
considerations under multiple scenarios,
within a framework of sustainability.
The feasibility stage is not restricted
to a financial feasibility only, but
encompasses a wider scope of work
covering risk management, sustainable
development and HR considerations
as well as social and environmental
impacts will also be considered in
ensuring the sustainability of the
business and the communities impacted
by it.
Subsequent to the initial GEC review
of the feasibility report and once
approval in principle is obtained,

3. Business
performance
evaluation of the first
six months
against target

a multi-disciplined project team will
proceed to the next phase of the project
evaluation which will focus on detailed
operational, commercial financial and
legal due diligence. Discussions will
also commence with regulatory and
licensing authorities, financial institutions
and possible partners as being relevant
and deemed necessary.
Subsequent to the project satisfying
the above highlighted criteria, the final
approval to proceed will be granted by
the Board of Keells Food Products PLC.
When required, the GEC is empowered
to approve such proposals in terms of
the delegated decision rights with the
Keells Food Products PLC Board being
kept informed.

The aforementioned project appraisal framework flow is illustrated below:
Project Appraisal Framework Flow
Risk Management

Project
Origination

Feasibility
Study

Review by the
GEC

Due
Diligence

Board/GEC
Approval

Sustainability Management

4.2 Employee Performance Governance
As stated at the outset, a proven
Performance Management System
and other supporting Human Resource
Management Processes are essential in
entrenching a culture of performance
within a framework of compliance,
conformance and sustainable
development.

4.2.1 Performance Management
The Performance Management System
as illustrated below is at the heart of
many supporting Human Resource
Management processes such as
Learning and Development, Career
Development, Succession Planning,
Talent Management, Rewards/
Recognition and Compensation/
Benefits.

The JKH Group’s Performance
Management System has been very
instrumental in empowering staff in
achieving organisational goals through
relevant training, recognition and
reward.

JKH Performance Management System

Learning and
Development

Pay decisions based on:
• Performance rating
• Competency rating

Compensation
and Benefits

Identification of:
• Long term development plans
• Competency based training needs
• Business focused training needs

Career
Development

Identification of:
• Promotions
• Intercompany transfers
• Inter department transfers

Performance
Management
System
Nomination for Awards:
• Chairman’s Award
• Employee of the Year
• Champion of the Year

Rewards and
Recognition

Identification of:
• High Performers
• Group talent

Succession
Planning

Identification of:
• Jobs at risk
• Suitable successors
• Readiness level of successors
• Development plans
• External recruitments

Talent
Management
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4.2.2 Performance Based Compensation
Manager and above - given the high
level of decision making authority, the
performance is measured annually
on well-defined individual as well as
organisational objectives and matrices
which reflect, and are positively
correlated to the Company’s objectives,
thereby aligning employee management
and stakeholder interests.

4.2.3 Equity Sharing
The employee share option plan
(ESOPs) implemented by the Parent
company JKH, has been offered to
employees of the Company at defined
career levels based on pre-determined
criteria which are uniformly applied
across the eligible levels. Such options
are offered at market prices prevailing
on the date of the offer.

Assistant Manager and Executive
level - measured only by the individual
performance rating as it is difficult for
these individuals to directly influence the
performance of their respective business
units.

The equity sharing scheme has primarily
paved the way for;

Clerical and Non-executive - At these
levels the short term incentive takes the
form of a share of profits (Group-wide)
calculated as a multiple of basic salary.
No recognition is given to the individual
performance rating.

•

Improved employee commitment
and buy-in to management goals

•

Alignment of interest between
employees and shareholders

•

Emergence of a more transparent
governance mechanism

As per the historical data, the financial
benefit of the long term incentive scheme

(ESOP) had been far greater than that of
short term incentives and these long term
incentives have been very instrumental
in inculcating, in the recipients, a deep
sense of ownership.
4.2.4 People and Talent Management
KFP believes that shareholders’
long term interests are well served
by involving employees actively in
safeguarding the Corporate Governance
framework, where the employees
are encouraged and empowered to
positively contribute towards upholding
the principles of Corporate Governance.
Having considered its employees as
its greatest asset, the KFP engages
employees at various levels to the
internal governance structure and
in recognition of the same, policies,
processes and systems are in place
to ensure effective recruitment,
development and retention as the KFP is

JKH Group Compensation Policy
Satisfaction

Performance Management
“Pay for performance”

“More than just a workplace”

Greater prominence is given to the incentive component of the total
target compensation of the management.

Continuously focuses on creating a sound work environment covering
all aspects of employee satisfaction.

Compensation Policy
•
•
•
•

Compensation comprises of fixed (base) payments, short term incentives and long term incentives
Higher the authority level within the Group, higher the incentive component
Greater the decision influencing capability of a role, higher the weight given on organisational performance as opposed to the individual performance
Long term incentives in the form of Employee Share Options

Internal Equity
•

Remuneration policy is built upon the premise of ensuring equal pay
for equal roles.

•

Manager and above level roles are banded using the Mercer
methodology for job evaluation on the basis of the relative worth of
jobs
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External Equity
•

Fixed compensation is set at competitive levels using the median,
65th percentile and 75th percentile of the best comparator set of
companies (from Sri Lanka and the region, where relevant) as a guide

•

Regular surveys are done to ensure that employees are not under /
over compensated

committed to hiring, developing and promoting individuals who possess the required
competencies.
Moreover, KFP provides a safe, secure and conducive environment for its employees,
allows freedom of association and collective bargaining, prohibits child labour,
forced or compulsory labour and any discrimination based on gender, race or
religion, and promotes workplaces which are free from physical, verbal or sexual
harassment, all of which compliment effective Corporate Governance.
4.2.4.1 Employee Involvement and Empowerment
• Top management and other senior staff are mandated to involve, as appropriate,
all levels of staff in formulating goals, strategies and plans.
•

Decision rights are defined for each level in order to instill a sense of ownership,
reduce bureaucracy and speed-up the decision making process.

•

A bottom-up approach is taken in the preparation of annual and five year plans
and the Group also ensures employee involvement and empowerment in the
process.

•

Employee relations are designed to enable, and facilitate, high accessibility by
all employees to every level of management.

4.3 Stakeholder Management
The Board views effective stakeholder management as a vital aspect in safeguarding
the Group’s Corporate Governance philosophy.

4.3.1 Employee Relations
HR units are designed in a manner
that enables high accessibility by any
employee to every level of management.
Constant dialogue and facilitation are
also maintained, relating to work-related
issues as well as matters pertaining
to general interest that could affect
employees and their families. Therefore,
the Group follows open-door policies
for its employees and key stakeholders
and this is promoted at all levels of the
Group.
The Group also has skip level meetings
where an employee can discuss matters
of concern with superiors who are at a
level higher than their own immediate
supervisor in an open but confidential
environment. A detailed discussion
on employee relations was discussed
in the Effective and Transparent
Communication section under Internal
Governance Structure.

Stakeholder Management Process

Stakeholder Management

Shareholders/
Investors

•
•
•
•

Presence of an Investor relations team
Prompt release of information to public/CSE
Effective Communication of AGM related matters
Measures in place in case of serious loss of capital

Customers/
Suppliers

• Providing of quality and safe products
• Constant engagement with customers
• Procedures to ensure long term business relationships with suppliers.

Government

• Transactions in compliance with all relevant laws and regulations,
transparently and ethically
• Zero tolerance policy in ensuring that all business units meet their
statutory obligations in time and in full

Key
Stakeholder

• Provision of formal and sometimes informal, access to other key
stakeholders

Employees

• Accessibility to all levels of the management
• Various means for employee involvement
• Corporate Communications
• JK Forum
• Young Forum
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4.3.2. Channels to Reach All
Shareholders of the Company
The primary modes of communication
between the Company and the
shareholders are through the Annual
Report, Quarterly Reports and the
Annual General Meeting (AGM).
4.3.2.1 Investor Relations
The Investor Relations team of the Parent
Company is responsible for maintaining
an active dialogue with shareholders,
potential investors, investment banks,
stock brokers and other interested
parties in ensuring effective investor
communication.
The Investor Relations team has regular
discussions with shareholders, as and
when applicable, to share highlights
of the Group’s performance as well
as to obtain constructive feedback.
Shareholders may, at any time, direct
questions, request for publicly available
information and provide comments and
suggestions to Directors or management
of the Group by contacting the Investor
Relations team, Secretaries, the Senior
Independent Director or the Chairman.
Further, individual shareholders are
encouraged to carry out adequate
analysis or seek independent advice
on their investing, holding or divesting
decisions at all times.
4.3.2.2 Release of Information to the
Public and CSE
The Board of Directors, in conjunction
with the Audit Committee where
applicable, is responsible in ensuring
the accuracy and timeliness of published
information and in presenting an honest
and balanced assessment of results
in the quarterly and annual Financial
Statements.
All other material and price sensitive
information about the Company is
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promptly communicated to the CSE and
such information is also released to
employees, press and shareholders.
4.3.2.3 Annual General Meeting
KFP makes use of the AGM
constructively towards enhancing
relationships with the shareholders
and towards this end the following
procedures are followed:
•

Notice of the AGM and related
documents are sent to the
shareholders along with the Annual
Report within the specified time

•

Summary of procedures governing
voting at general meetings are
clearly communicated

•

All the Executive and Non-Executive
Directors are available to answer
queries

•

The Chairman ensures that the
relevant senior managers are
available at the AGM to answer
specific queries

•

Separate resolutions are proposed
for each item

•

Proxy votes, those for and against,
are announced

4.3.2.4 Serious Loss of Capital
In the unlikely event that the net assets of
a Company fall below half of shareholder
funds, shareholders would be notified
and the requisite resolutions would be
passed on the proposed way forward.
4.4 Sustainability Governance
The Group places great importance on
sustainable development. The Group
believes that its financial performance
and brand image are closely lined
with sound Corporate Governance
practices, product and service
excellence, a productive workforce,
environmental stewardship and social
responsibility. During the year under
review, the Group’s sustainability
scope was increased to encompass
the Global Goals, which expands on
the Millennium Development Goals.
Please refer the Sustainability Integration
section of the Report for a detailed
discussion of the Group’s strategy of
entrenching sustainability within its
business operations, and the scope and
boundary of its sustainability content.
4.5 Information Technology Governance
The Group believes that ‘Information
Technology’ is a Strategic Asset and
as such it needs to be managed to
leverage competitive business benefits
for the Group.

JKH Group IT Structure
Chairman - Board of Directors

IT Governance Executive Committee

Chairman
GEC

IT Governance Operating Committee
Group CIO
Group IT MC

Industry Groups

Heads of SGIT

Sector Heads

HoBSs

Functional Heads

•

Leverage IT as a Strategic Asset

4.5.2 IT Governance Framework
The IT governance framework used within the Group leverages best practices and
industry leading models such as CObIT (Control Objectives for Information and
Related Technology), ISO 31000, ISO 27001, ISO 9001, COSO (Committee of
Sponsoring Organisations of the Tread way Commission) /BCP (Business Continuity
Planning), ISO 20000: ITIL (Information Technology Infrastructure Library), in
providing a best of breed framework as illustrated below.

•

Create an “Agile Governance
Model”

IT Governance Framework

4.5.1 IT Governance Objectives
To achieve the same, the Information
Technology Governance frame work is
built upon the following set of primal
objectives:

•

Create better alignment between
business and IT

•

Create greater business value with
our investments in IT

•

•

•

Create a strong IT governance and
regulatory framework through a
coherent set of policies, processes
and adoption of best practices in
line with world-class organisations
The basic philosophy of the IT
Governance is based on Business
Value Creation vis-à-vis Capital,
Benefit, Cost and Risk
The Governance is based on
the following model in aligning
IT Value, Performance, Risk and
Accountability across the Group
through well-defined governance
structures, procedures, policies.

Objective

Drivers

Enterprise Governance

IT Governance

Value

Assurance

Performance
Management Goals

Risk Management Goals

Performance Matrices

Risk Matrices

CObIT/ COSO

Best Practices

Risk IT
ITIL
ISO 31000 ISO 20000

ISO
27001

Policies/Procedures

IT Risk
IT Service
Management Management

Security/
Risk
Principles

PMI

ISO 9001/
CMMI

Project
Process
Management
Management
Principles

IT Governance Mandate
Deliver business
value

Business/ IT
Alignment

Accountability

IT
Governance

Sustainable of
business value

Value
Management
Deliver business
value

Risk
Management
Sustainable of
business value
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4.5 Integrated Risk Management
The GMC has adopted the JKH Groupwide risk management programme
with focus on wider sustainability
development, to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks and to stresstest various risk scenarios which the
Group has adopted. The programme
ensures that a multitude of risks, arising
as a result of the diverse operations,
are effectively managed in creating
and preserving shareholder and other
stakeholder wealth.
Following steps are taken towards
promoting integrated risk management;
•

Integrating and aligning activities
and processes related to planning,
policies/ procedures, culture,
competency, internal audit, financial
management, monitoring and
reporting with risk management.

•

Supporting executives/managers in
moving the organisation forward in
a cohesive integrated and aligned
manner to improve performance,
while operating effectively,
efficiently, ethically, legally, and
within the established limits for risk
taking.

•

The detailed Risk Management
report of the Annual Report
describes the process of risk
management as adopted by KFP
and the identified key risks to
the achievement of the strategic
business objectives of KFP.

with effectiveness tests carried out, and
corrective actions being proposed and
implemented.
5.1 Independent Directors
Independent Directors represent more
than one third of the Non-Executive
Directors in the Board to preserve the
Corporate Governance as stake holders
need an independent party to voice
their concerns on a confidential note.
5.2 Audit Committee
The Audit Committee plays an important
supervisory and monitoring role by
focusing on the designated areas of
responsibility passed to it by the Board.
For more information refer to Audit
Committee section on pages 87 to 89.
5.3 Employee Participation in Assurance
KFP is continuously working towards
introducing innovative and effective
ways of employee communication and
employee awareness. The importance
of communication – top-down, bottomup, and lateral in gaining employee
commitment to organisational goals
has been conveyed extensively through
various communications issued by the
Chairman and the management. Whilst
employees have many opportunities to
interact with senior management, the
Group has created formal channels for
such communication through feedback
as listed below.
•

Skip Level meetings

•

Exit interviews

5. Assurance Mechanisms

•

Young Forum meetings

The ‘Assurance mechanism element is
the supervisory module of the Corporate
Governance Framework, where a
range of assurance mechanisms such as
monitoring and benchmarking are used

•

360 Degree evaluation

•

Great Place to Work survey

•

Voice of Employee survey

•

Monthly staff meetings
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Additionally, the Group continued with
its whistle-blower policy and securities
trading policy. The Group has witnessed
an increased level of communication
flow from employees. Such
communication and feedback received
from the employees by the management
are recorded, irrespective of the level of
anonymity, and subsequently discussed
and followed up. The respective
outcomes are duly recorded.
5.4 Internal Control
The Board has taken necessary steps
to ensure the integrity of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting
systems and internal control systems
remain effective via the review and
monitoring of such systems on a
periodic basis. A brief description of
some of the key internal control systems
are listed below:
5.4.1 Internal Compliance
A quarterly self-certification programme
requires the CEO and SFC to confirm
compliance with Financial Standards
and regulations. Further, the CEO and
the functional heads units are required
to confirm operational compliance with
statutory and other regulations and key
control procedures, and also identify
any significant deviations from the
expected norms.
5.4.2 System of Internal Control
The internal audit function in the
Company and the Subsidiary is not
outsourced to the external auditor in
a further attempt to ensure external
auditors independence. The Auditor’s
report on the financial statements of the
Company and the Group for the year
under review is found in the Financial
Information section of the Annual
Report.
The Risk Review Programme
covering the internal audit of the

GRI - G4

Company is outsourced to Messrs’.
PricewaterhouseCoopers (Pvt) Limited,
a firm of Chartered Accountants. The
reports arising out of such audits are,
in the first instance, considered and
discussed at the business / functional
unit levels and after review by the
respective CEO of the Company are
forwarded to the Audit Committee
on a regular basis. Further, the
Audit Committee also assesses the
effectiveness of the risk review process
and systems of internal control on a
regular basis. Follow-ups on internal
audits are done on a structured basis.
The role of the internal auditor has been
transformed into a value adding function
instead of merely a ‘policing’ function,
where audit findings form an integral
input in modifying and improving our
internal processes.
5.4.3 Review of Segregation of Duties
(SoD) under Sarbanes-Oxley (SOX)
Guidelines
During the year, the Company reviewed
the SoDs of every role and individual
using the SOX guidelines. The Company
is very aware of the need to ensure that
no individual should have excessive
system access to execute transactions
across an entire business process or
business processes which have critical
approval linkages. The increasing use of
information technology and integrated
financial controls creates unintended
exposures within the Company.
SoD dictates that problems such as
fraud, material misstatements and
manipulation of Financial Statements
have the potential to arise when the
same individual is allowed to execute
two or more conflicting sensitive
transactions. Separating discrete jobs
into task oriented roles can often result
in inefficiencies and costs which do
not meet the cost vs benefit criteria.
Whilst the attainment of a zero SoD
conflict state is utopian, during the
year, the Group took steps, to identify
and evaluate existing conflicts and
reduce residual risks to an acceptable
level under a cost vs benefit rationale.

A revised SoD matrix is one of the
outcomes of the exercise.
5.4.4 Data Analytics
Traditionally, Internal Auditing followed
an approach which was based on a
cyclical process that involves manually
identifying control objectives, assessing
and testing controls, performing
tests, and sampling only a relatively
small population of the data set to
measure control effectiveness and
operational performance. Today,
the Company operates in a complex
and dynamic business environment
where the transaction numbers have
increased exponentially over the years
and the traditional cyclical/sample
based Internal Auditing techniques are
becoming less effective. Therefore,
during the year under review, the
Company commenced “big-data
analysis” techniques on the total data
using Standard Deviations and Z-Scores
in establishing real time, user-friendly
“outlier identification” and “early
warning triggers”.
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strong set of corporate values which
are well institutionalised at all levels
within the Group through structured
communication. The degree of employee
conformance with corporate values and
their degree of adherence to the JKH
Code of Conduct are key elements of
reward and recognition schemes.
5.6 Ombudsperson
The Ombudsperson entertains
complaints from an individual employee
or a group of employees of alleged
violations of the published ‘Code of
Conduct’ if the complainant feels that
the alleged violation has not been
addressed satisfactorily.
The findings and the recommendations
of the Ombudsperson arising
subsequent to an independent inquiry
is confidentially communicated to the
Chairman upon which the duty of the
Ombudsperson ceases.
The Chairman will place before the
Board;

5.4.5 Internal Audit
The Company internal audit process
is conducted by outsourced parties at
regular intervals, coordinated by the
JKH Group Business Process Review
function (GBPR) of the Group. GBPR
ensures that the internal audit plan
adequately covers the significant risks
of the Company, reviews the important
internal audit findings and follow-up
procedures.

a.

The decision and the
recommendations

b.

Action taken based on the
recommendations

c.

Where the Chairman disagrees
with any or all of the findings and
or the recommendations thereon,
the areas of disagreement and the
reasons therefore.

5.5 Code of Conduct
The written Code of Conduct, to which
all the employees including the Board
of Directors are bound by, engraves the
desired behaviours of staff at executive
and above level, particularly the senior
management. This is being constantly
and rigorously monitored.

In situation (c) the Board is required
to consider the areas of disagreement
and decide on the way forward. The
Chairman is expected to take such steps
as are necessary to ensure that the
complainant is not victimized for having
invoked this process.

During the year there were no instances
of the code of conduct being violated.
5.5.1 Group Values
The objectives of the Code of
Conduct are further affirmed by a

5.7 External Audit
Messrs. Ernst & Young Chartered
Accountants are the external Auditors
of the Company (KFP) and Luthra and
Luthra Chartered Accountants of the
Subsidiary (JKFIL). Messrs. Ernst &
Young also audit the Consolidated
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Financial Statements. In addition to the
normal audit services Ernst and Young
external auditor, also provided certain
non-audit services to the Company.
However, the consolidating auditor
would not engage in any services which
are in the restricted category as defined
by the CSE for external auditors. All
such services have been provided
with the full knowledge of the audit
committee and are assessed to ensure
that there is no compromise of external
auditor independence.

the strategic, operational, investment,
sustainability and risk related aspects of
the Company that have translated into
the reported financial performance and
are likely to influence future results.

•

Corporate Governance under Listing Rules published by the CSE;
and

The Board has agreed that, such nonaudit services should not exceed the
value of the total audit fees charged by
the subject auditor within the relevant
geographic territory. The external
auditors also provide a certificate of
independence on an annual basis.

•

Companies Act No. 7 of 2007

The audit and non-audit fees paid by
the Company and Group to its auditors
are separately classified in the notes to
the Financial Statements of the Annual
Report.
5.8 Regulatory and Accounting
Benchmarks
The Board, through its other operating
structures, strived to ensure that the
Company and its subsidiary and
associate complied with the laws and
regulations.
The Board of Directors also took all
reasonable steps in ensuring that all
Financial Statements were prepared
in accordance with the Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards (SLFRS/LKAS)
issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA Sri Lanka)
and the requirements of the CSE and
other applicable authorities. Information
in the Financial Statements of the
Annual Report are supplemented by a
detailed Management Discussion and
Analysis which explains to shareholders
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KFP is fully compliant with all the
mandatory rules and regulations
stipulated by the:

KFP has also given due consideration
to the Best Practice on Corporate
Governance Reporting guidelines jointly
issued by the SEC of Sri Lanka and CA
Sri Lanka and have in all instances,
barring a few, embraced such practices,
voluntarily, particularly if such practices
have been identified as relevant and
value adding. In the very few instances
where KFP has not adopted such best
practice, the rationale for such non
adoption is articulated.

6. Outlook and Emerging
Challenges
In an ever changing and dynamic
world of Corporate Governance,
KFP is acutely aware of the need to
remain relevant through its level of
preparedness and its capability in
meeting the emerging governance
needs of the Group, its stakeholders
and the environment in which the
Group operates. As is evident from
the aforesaid Commentary, the Group
has continued to endeavour, in the
year under review, to stay abreast of
governance best practices.
Corporate implosions in the recent past,
the pursuit of continuous improvement
in governance and a call for increased

transparency are exerting change
pressure on selected governance
aspects. Summarised below are the
more significant challenges, amongst
many others, being addressed by the
Group
6.1 Gender Diversity on the Board
There will undoubtedly be a renewed
push to increase the number of women
Board Directors. The question of
whether more women in the boardroom
leads to improved results have already
been answered empirically, in many
fora.
KFP believes that a Board which is
composed of Directors who represent,
and therefore reflect the needs and
desires of its customers, employees
and other stakeholders will be more
effective. Given that women comprise
a significant proportion of the customer
and employee populations, the Group
will make greater effort to attract
appropriately qualified women to its
various Boards.
6.2 Activist Investors
The past few years have seen a
significant increase in shareholder
activism. This would invariably
mean that the Directors will be held
increasingly accountable for the
Company’s performance. The Group
will meet this challenge through
more regular communication with its
shareholders and through enhanced
levels of public disclosure. The Group
will continue to focus on maintaining
suitable channels of communication with
investors, and analysts, as required, on
a timely basis.
6.3 Cyber Security
KFP and its subsidiaries, are increasing
reliantly on technology in ways that
were, perhaps, inconceivable several
years ago. In fact, there is really

no end to the possibilities of how
technology will continue to impact
businesses. Your Board is well aware of
the need to protect our companies from
threats which are novel and illusive.
There is a need to be proactive in
avoiding, planning and being prepared
for an inevitable breach. Therefore,
cyber security will be a regular item on
the agenda of Risk Management and
Audit Committees. Needless to say, it
will also be periodically discussed at the
Board level.
6.4 Board Refreshment
There is increasing pressure for Boards
to update themselves more frequently
than they have done in the past. Whilst
there is one school of thought that
routine turnover on Boards is necessary
to introduce new ideas, experiences
and to keep up with the dynamic needs
of the business, there is another school
which is of the view that Boards and

Companies benefit from tenured and
experienced board members who know
the business and industry since they
have been engaged in it for some time.
The Group is in favour of a “middle of
the road” approach in this respect.
6.5 Board Independence
In Corporate Governance,
independence is important in a number
of contexts. It is vital that external
auditors are independent of their clients.
The internal Auditors are independent
of the colleagues they are auditing
and that Non-Executive Directors have
a degree of independence from their
Executive colleagues on the Board.
JKH will, as stated before, strike a
right balance between continuous
Board refreshment, which, in general,
is thought to facilitate independence,
and tenured and experienced Board
members, who are perceived as having
lesser independence because of their
extended tenure on the Board.

6.6 Greater Employee Involvement in
Governance
KFP acknowledges, and recognises
the role played by all its employees
in reinforcing an effective governance
system. Going forward, the Company
will encourage employee participation
through;
•

A further strengthened performance
management process

•

Engagement and empowerment via
greater authority

•

Enhanced training and development

•

Increased communication and
collaboration

•

Adoption of differentiated means of
communication based on the age
dynamics of employee segments.

7. Compliance Summary
7.1 Levels of Compliance with the listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange Section 7.10, Rules on Corporate Governance
(Mandatory Provisions – Fully Complied)
Rule
No.

Applicable Requirement

Compliance
Status

KFP / JKH (Parent) Action

Compliant

KFP is in compliance with the Corporate Governance
Rules and any deviations are explained where
applicable.

Compliant

All eight (8) Board members are NEDs. KFP is conscious
of the need to maintain an appropriate mix of skills and
experience in the Board and to refresh progressively its
composition over time in line with needs.

7.10 Compliance
a/b/c

Compliance with Corporate Governance
Rules.

7.10.1 Non-Executive Directors (NED)
a/b/c

Two or at least one third of the total number
of Directors should be Non-Executive
Directors.

7.10.2 Independent Directors
a

Two or one third of Non-Executive Directors,
whichever is higher, should be independent.

Compliant

Four (4) out of the eight (8) NEDs are independent.

b

Each Non-Executive Director should submit
a declaration of independence / nonindependence in the prescribed format.

Compliant

Independence of the Directors has been determined
in accordance with CSE Listing Rules, and the 4
Independent NEDs have submitted signed confirmation
of their independence.
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Rule
No.

Applicable Requirement

Compliance
Status

KFP / JKH (Parent) Action

7.10.3 Disclosures Relating to Directors
a/b

The Board shall annually determine the
independence or otherwise of NEDs

Compliant

All Independent NEDs have submitted declarations as
to their independence.

c

A brief resumé of each Director should be
included in the Annual Report including the
Directors’ experience.

Compliant

Refer to the Board of Directors section in the Annual
Report.

d

Provide a resume of new Directors appointed Compliant
to the Board along with details specified in
7.10.3 (a), (b) and (c) of the Rules.

No new Director was appointed during the year.

7.10.4 Criteria for Defining Independence
a-h

Requirements for meeting criteria to be an
Independent Director

Compliant

Refer to summary of Directors interests section in the
Corporate Governance of the Annual Report.

7.10.5 Remuneration Committee
a.1

Remuneration Committee shall comprise
of NEDs, a majority of who will be
independent.

Compliant

The Human Resources and Compensation Committee
of the Parent Company JKH (equivalent of the
Remuneration Committee with a wider scope) only
comprises of Independent NEDs.

a.2

One NED shall be appointed as Chairman of
the Committee by the Board of Directors.

Compliant

The Senior Independent NED of the Parent Company
JKH is the Chairman of the Committee.

b

The Remuneration Committee shall
recommend the remuneration of the Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) and Executive
Directors.

Compliant

The remuneration of the Executive Directors and CEO
of the Company and that of the CEO of the Subsidiary
is determined as per the remuneration principles of
the JKH Group and recommended by the Human
Resources and Compensation Committee.

c.1

Names of Remuneration Committee
members.

Compliant

Refer Corporate Governance Section 3.4.2 of the
Annual Report.

c.2

Statement of Remuneration policy.

Compliant

Refer Corporate Governance Section 4.2 of the
Annual Report.

c.3

Aggregate remuneration paid to NEDs.

Compliant

Refer Note No. 7 to the Financial Statements.

7.10.6 Audit Committee (AC)
a.1

AC shall comprise of NEDs, a majority of
who should be independent.

Compliant

The AC comprises only of Independent NEDs.

a.2

A NED shall be the Chairman of the
committee.

Compliant

Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent
NED.

a.3

CEO and CFO should attend AC meetings.

Compliant

The COO, CFO and SFC attended AC meetings by
invitation.

a.4

The Chairman of the AC or one member
should be a member of a professional
accounting body.

Compliant

The Chairman of the AC is a member of a professional
accounting body.
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Rule
No.

Applicable Requirement

Compliance
Status

KFP / JKH (Parent) Action

b.1

Overseeing of the preparation,
presentation and adequacy of disclosures in
the Financial Statements in accordance
with SLFRS/LKAS.

Compliant

The AC assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities for the integrity of the Financial
Statements of the Company and the Group.

b.2

Overseeing the compliance with financial
reporting requirements, information
requirements as per the laws and
regulations.

Compliant

The AC has the overall responsibility for overseeing
the preparation of financial statements in accordance
with the laws and regulations of the country and also
recommending to the Board, on the adoption of best
accounting policies

b.3

Ensuring that internal and risk management
controls, are adequate, to meet the
requirements of the SLFRS/LKAS.

Compliant

The AC assesses the effectiveness of internal controls
and risk management practices.

b.4

Assessment of the independence and
performance of the Entity’s external auditors.

Compliant

The AC assesses the external auditor’s performance,
qualifications and independence.

b.5

Make recommendations to the board
pertaining to external auditors.

Compliant

The Committee is responsible for appointment, reappointment, removal of external auditors and also the
approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement.

c.1

Names of the AC members shall be
disclosed.

Compliant

Refer Report of the AC in this Annual Report.

c.2

AC shall make a determination of the
independence of the external auditors.

Compliant

Refer Report of the AC in this Annual Report.

c.3

Report on the manner in which AC carried
out its functions.

Compliant

Refer Report of the AC in the Annual Report

7.2 Companies Act No. 7 of 2007
Section

Compliance
Status

Reference

168 (1) (a)

The state of the Company’s affairs and nature
of the business of the Company or any of it’s
Subsidiaries together with any change thereof
during the accounting period

Yes

Annual Report 2015/16 - Notes to
the Financial Statements

168 (1) (b)

Signed Financial Statements of the Company and
its Subsidiary for the accounting period completed

Yes

Annual Report 2015/16 –
Financial Statements

168 (1) (c)

Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements of the
Group and the Company

Yes

Annual Report 2015/16 –
Independent Auditors’ Report

168 (1) (d)

Accounting policies and any changes therein

Yes

Annual Report 2015/16 –
Notes to the Financial Statements

168 (1) (e)

Particulars of the entries made in the Interests
Register during the accounting period

Yes

Annual Report 2015/16 –
Financial Statements

168 (1) (f)

Remuneration and other benefits paid to Directors
of the Company during the accounting period

Yes

Annual Report 2015/16 –
Notes to the Financial Statements

168 (1) (g)

Corporate donations made by the Company
during the accounting period

Yes

Annual Report 2015/16 –
Notes to the Financial Statements

168 (1) (h)

Names of the Directors of the Company and its
Subsidiary at the end of the accounting period
and names of Directors who ceased to hold office
during the accounting period.

Yes

Annual Report 2015/16 –
Annual Report of Board of Directors
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Section

Compliance
Status

Reference

168 (1) (i)

Amounts paid/payable to the External Auditor
as audit fees and fees for other services rendered
during the accounting period

Yes

Annual Report 2015/16 - Notes to
the Financial Statements

168 (1) (j)

Other relationship or any interest of Auditors with
the Company and its Subsidiary

Yes

Audit Committee Report

168 (1) (k)

Acknowledgment of the contents of this Report and
signatures on behalf of the Board

Yes

Annual Report 2015/16 - Financial
Statements

7.3 The Code of Best practice on Corporate Governance jointly issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka
(SEC) and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (ICASL).
Voluntary Provisions – Fully Complied
Rule

Compliance
Status

Corporate Governance Commentary
Section Reference

A. 1. 1 Regular Board meetings

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.9

A. 1.2 Board should be responsible for matters including
implementation of business strategy, skills and succession of the
management team, integrity of information, internal controls and
risk management, compliance with laws and ethical standards,
stakeholder interests, adopting appropriate accounting policies and
fostering compliance with financial regulations and fulfilling other
Board functions.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.1

A. 1. 3 Act in accordance with the laws of the country and obtain
professional advice as and when required.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.8

A. 1. 4 Access to advice and services of the Company Secretary.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.9.4

A. 1. 5 Bring Independent judgment on various business issues and
standards of business conduct.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.4

A. 1. 6 Dedication of adequate time and effort.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.15

A. 1. 7 Board induction and training.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.16

A. Directors
A. 1 Effective Board to Direct and Control the Company
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Rule

Compliance
Status

Corporate Governance Commentary
Section Reference

Compliant

The position of Chairman and CEO
are separated to ensure a balance
of power an authority and to prevent
any one individual from possessing
unfettered decision making authority.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.9.2

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.4

A. 2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
A.2 Division of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEO.

A. 3 Chairman’s Role
A 3.1 The Chairman should ensure Board proceedings are
conducted in a proper manner.
A. 4 Financial Acumen
A. 4 The Board should ensure the availability within it of those with
sufficient financial acumen and knowledge to offer guidance on
matters of finance.
A. 5 Board Balance
A. 5.1 In the event the Chairman and CEO is the same person,
NEDs should comprise a majority of the Board.

N/A

N/A

A 5. 2 Where the constitution of the Board of Directors includes only
two NEDs, both such NEDs should be Independent.

N/A

N/A

A. 5. 3 Definition of Independent Directors.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.5

A. 5. 4 Declaration of Independent Directors.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.5

A. 5. 5 Board determinations on Independence or NonIndependence of NEDs.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.5

A.5.6 If an alternate Director is appointed by a NED such alternate
Director should not be an Executive of the Company.

N/A

N/A

A. 5. 7 In the event the Chairman and CEO is the same person,
the Board should appoint one of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be the “Senior Independent Director” (SID).

N/A

N/A

A. 5. 8 The Senior Independent Director should make himself
available for confidential discussions with other Directors who may
have concerns.

N/A

N/A

A. 5. 9 The Chairman should hold meetings with the NEDs without
the Executive Directors being present.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.5.1

A. 5. 10 Where Directors have concerns about the matters of the
Company which cannot be unanimously resolved, they should ensure
their concerns are recorded in the Board Minutes.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.9.4
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Rule

Compliance
Status

Corporate Governance Commentary
Section Reference

A. 6.1 Board should be provided with timely information to enable it
to discharge its duties.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.9.3

A. 6. 2 Timely submission of the minutes, agenda and papers
required for the board meeting.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.9.3

A. 7. 1 Nomination Committee to make recommendations on new
Board appointments.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.6

A. 7. 2 Assessment of the capability of Board to meet strategic
demands of the Company.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.4.3

A. 7. 3 Disclosure of new Board member profile and Interests.

Compliant

No new Board Member
appointments were made in
2015/16

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.7

A. 9. 1 The Board should annually appraise itself on its performance
in the discharge of its key responsibilities.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.11

A. 9. 2 The Board should also undertake an annual self-evaluation of
its own performance and that of its Committees.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.11

A. 9. 3 The Board should state how such performance evaluations
have been conducted.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.11

Compliant

Directors Profiles – KFP Annual
Report 2015/16

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.5.1

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.4.2

A. 6 Supply of information

A. 7 Formal and Transparent Procedure for Board Appointments

A. 8 Re - election
A. 8. 1 / A. 8. 2 Re-election at regular intervals should be subject
to election and re-election by shareholders.
A. 9 Appraisal of Board performance

A. 10 Disclosure of information in respect of Directors
A. 10. 1 Profiles of the Board of Directors
A. 11 Appraisal of the Chief Executive Officer
A. 11. 1 / A. 11. 2 Appraisal of the CEO against the set strategic
targets
B. Directors’ Remuneration
B. 1 Remuneration procedure
B. 1. 1 the Board of Directors should set up a Remuneration
Committee.
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Rule

Compliance
Status

Corporate Governance Commentary
Section Reference

B. 1. 2 Remuneration Committees should consist exclusively of NEDs

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.4.2

B. 1. 3 The Chairman and members of the Remuneration Committee
should be listed in the Annual Report each year.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.4.2

B. 1. 4 Determination of the remuneration of NEDs.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.12.2

B. 1. 5 The Remuneration Committee should consult the Chairman and/
or CEO about its proposals relating to the remuneration of other EDs
and have access to professional advice.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.12.1

B. 2. 1 to B. 2. 4 Performance related elements in pay structure and
alignment to industry practices.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.12

B. 2. 5 Executive share options should not be offered at a discount.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.12

B. 2. 6 Designing schemes of performance-related remuneration.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.12

B. 2. 7 / B. 2. 8 Compensation commitments in the event of early
termination of the Directors.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.12.2

B. 2. 9 Level of remuneration of NEDs

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.12.1

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.1.12

B. 2 The level and makeup of Remuneration

B. 3 Disclosure of Remuneration
B. 3. 1 Disclosure of remuneration policy and aggregate
remuneration.
C. Relations with Shareholders
C. 1 Constructive use of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and Conduct of General Meetings
Shareholders have the opportunity at the AGM, to put forward questions to the Board and to the Chairman, CEO and the
Chairman of the Audit Committee to have better familiarity with the Group’s business and operational workings.
C. 1. 1 Counting of proxy votes

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
4.3.2.3

C. 1. 2 Separate resolution to be proposed for each item.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
4.3.2.3

C. 1. 3 Chairmen of Board subcommittees to be available to
answer queries.

Compliant

Chairman of the Audit Committee is
available to answer queries.

C. 1. 4 Notice of Annual General Meeting to be sent to shareholders
with other papers as per statute.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
4.3.2.3

C. 1. 5 Summary of procedures governing voting at General
meetings to be informed.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
4.3.2.3

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
4.3.2.2

C. 2 Communication with shareholders
C. 2. 1. Channel to reach all shareholders to disseminate timely
information.
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Rule

Compliance
Status

C. 2. 2 - C.2.7 Policy and methodology of communication with
shareholders and implementation.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Commentary
Section Reference
Corporate Governance Section
4.3.2

C. 3 Major and Material Transactions including major related party transactions.
C. 3. 1 Disclosure of all material facts involving any proposed
acquisition, sale or disposition of assets.

Compliant

KFP Annual Report 2015/16 –
Notes to Financial Statements

D. 1. 1 Disclosure of interim and other price-sensitive and statutorily
mandated reports to Regulators.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
4.3.2.2

D. 1. 2 Declaration by the Directors that the Company has not
engaged in any activities, which contravene laws and regulations,
declaration of all material interests in contracts, equitable treatment
of shareholders and going concern with supporting assumptions or
qualifications as necessary.

Compliant

Refer to Annual Report of the Board
of Directors in the Annual Report

D. 1. 3 Statement of Directors’ responsibilities and Auditor’s
reporting responsibilities.

Compliant

Refer to Statement on Directors’
Responsibility in the Annual Report
and the Auditor’s Report.

D. 1. 4 Management Discussion and Analysis.

Compliant

Refer to Business Review

D. 1. 5 The Directors should report that the business is a going
concern, with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary.

Compliant

Refer to the Board of Directors
Section of the Annual Report

D. 1. 6 Remedial action at an Extraordinary General Meeting if net
assets fall below 50% of value of shareholders’ funds.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
4.3.2.4

D. 1. 7 Disclosure of Related Party Transactions.

Compliant

Refer to Notes to the Financial
Statements.

D. 2. 1 Annual review of effectiveness of system of Internal Control
and report to shareholders as required.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section 5.4

D. 2. 2 Internal Audit Function.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section 5.4

D. 2. 3 / D. 2. 4 Maintaining a sound system of internal control.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
5.4.2

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.4.1

D. Accountability and Audit
D. 1 Financial Reporting

D.2 Internal Control

D. 3 Audit Committee
D.3.1 The Audit Committee should be comprised of a minimum of
two Independent Non-Executive Directors or exclusively by NonExecutive Directors, a majority of whom should be Independent,
whichever is higher. The Chairman of the Committee should be a
Non-Executive Director, appointed by the Board.
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Rule

Compliance
Status

Corporate Governance Commentary
Section Reference

D.3.2 Terms of reference, duties and responsibilities.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.4.1

D.3.3 The Audit Committee to have written Terms of Reference
covering the salient aspects as stipulated in the section.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.4.1

D.3.4 Disclosure of Audit Committee membership.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
3.4.1

D.4.1 Availability of a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and
an affirmative declaration that the Board of Directors abide by such
Code.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section 5.5

D.4.2 The Chairman must certify that he is not aware of any violation
of any of the provisions of this Code.

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section 5.5

Compliant

Corporate Governance Report in the
Annual Report

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
4.3.2

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
4.3.2

Compliant

Corporate Governance Section
4.3.2.1

Compliant

Complied at the AGM

Compliant

Refer the Sustainability Report under
the Business Review Section of this
Annual Report

D. 4 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

D.5 Corporate Governance disclosures
D.5.1 The Directors should include in the Company’s Annual Report a
Corporate Governance Report.
E. Institutional Investors
E. 1 Shareholder Voting
E.1.1 Conducting regular and structured dialogue with shareholders
based on a mutual understanding of objectives.
E. 2 Evaluation of Governance Disclosures.
E.2. When evaluating Companies’ governance arrangements,
particularly those relating to Board structure and composition,
institutional investors should be encouraged to give due weight to all
relevant factors drawn to their attention.
F. Other Investors
F.1 investing Divesting Decision
F.1 Individual shareholders, investing directly in shares of companies
should be encouraged to carry out adequate analysis or seek
independent advice in investing or divesting decisions.
F.2 Shareholder Voting
F.2 Individual shareholders should be encouraged to participate in
General Meetings of companies and exercise their voting rights.
G. Sustainability Reporting
G.1 – G.1.7 Disclosure on adherence to sustainability principles.
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OF DIRECTORS
Susantha Ratnayake
Non-Independent – Non-Executive,
Director, Chairman
Mr. Ratnayake was appointed to the
Board of Keells Food Products PLC from
the 1st of April 1993.
Susantha Ratnayake was appointed as
the Chairman and CEO of John Keells
Holdings PLC (JKH) in January 2006
and has served on the JKH Board since
1992/1993 and has 39 years of
management experience, all of which
is within the John Keells Group. A past
Chairman of the Sri Lanka Tea Board
and Ceylon Chamber of Commerce,
he is also the Chairman of Employers’
Federation of Ceylon.

Ajit Gunewardene
Non-Independent – Non-Executive,
Director
Mr. Gunewardene was appointed to the
Board of Keells Food Products PLC from
1st October 2002.
Ajit Gunewardene is the Deputy
Chairman of John Keells Holdings PLC
and has been a member of the Board
for over 23 years. He is a Director of
several companies in the John Keells
Group and is the Chairman of Union
Assurance PLC. He is a member of
the Board of SLINTEC, a Company
established for the development of
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nanotechnology in Sri Lanka under the
auspices of the Ministry of Science and
Technology. He is also a member of the
Tourism Advisory Committee appointed
by the Minister of Tourism Development,
a member of the advisory committee
for Investment Promotion appointed by
the Minister of Development Strategy &
International Trade and a member of the
Steering Committee for establishment
of the National Science Centre in Sri
Lanka appointed by the Minister of
Science, Technology & Research. He
has also served as the Chairman of the
Colombo Stock Exchange and Nations
Trust Bank PLC. Ajit has a Degree in
Economics and brings over 33 years of
management experience.

Ronnie Peiris
Non-Independent – Non-Executive,
Director
Mr. Peiris was appointed to the Board of
Keells Food Products PLC from 1st June
2003.
Appointed to the John Keells Holdings
PLC Board during 2002/03, Ronnie,
as Group Finance Director, has overall
responsibility for the Group’s Finance
and Accounting, Taxation, Corporate
Finance, Treasury, and the Information
Technology functions. He is also a
Director of several companies in the
John Keells Group. He was previously
the Managing Director of Anglo

American Corporation (Central Africa)
Limited in Zambia.
He has over 40 years of finance and
general management experience in Sri
Lanka and abroad. He is a Fellow of
the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, UK, Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants,
UK, and the Society of Certified
Management Accountants, Sri Lanka
and holds an MBA from the University of
Cape Town, South Africa. Previously,
the Chairman of the Sri Lanka Institute
of Directors, he is currently a member of
the Committee, of the Ceylon Chamber
of Commerce.

Jitendra Gunaratne
Non-Independent – Non-Executive,
Director
Mr. Gunaratne was appointed to the
Board of Keells Food Products PLC from
1st July 2005.
Jitendra Gunaratne is responsible
for the Consumer Foods sector. Prior
to his appointment as President, he
overlooked the Plantations and Retail
sectors. His 36 years of management
experience in the Group also covers
Leisure and Property. He is a Director of
Ceylon Cold Stores PLC and is also the
President of the Beverage Association
of Sri Lanka. He is a member of the
Council of the Employers' Federation of
Ceylon.

Harsha Amarasekera PC
Independent Non-Executive,
Director
Mr. Amarasekera was appointed to
the Board of Keells Food Products PLC
from 1st July 2005 and is a member
of the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors.
Harsha Amarasekera has a wide
practice in the Original Courts as
well as in the Appellate Courts. He
specialises in Commercial Law, Business
Law, Securities Law, Banking Law and
Intellectual Property Law. He serves as
the Chairman of CIC Holdings PLC ,
Chemanex PLC and CIC Agri Business
(Pvt) Limited and as an Independent
Director in several leading listed
Companies in the Colombo Stock
Exchange including Vallibel One Ltd.,
Royal Ceramics Lanka PLC, Expo Lanka
Holdings PLC, Chevron Lubricants Lanka
PLC, Amana Bank PLC, Amaya Leisure
PLC, and Vallibel Power Erathna PLC.

Eardley Perera
Independent Non-Executive,
Director
Mr. Perera was appointed to the Board
of Keells Food Products PLC from 1st
October 2005 and is a member of
the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors.
He currently serves on the Boards of
many Public and Private Companies
as a Non-Executive Director. He also
serves as a Member on the Board
of Study, Postgraduate Institute of
Management (PIM), University of Sri
Jayewardenepura. He is a Chartered
Marketer and senior member of
the Chartered Institute of Marketing,
UK with many years of experience in

general management and marketing
in trade and industry. His focus has
been on strategic marketing and
business strategy, in which areas he is
also actively engaged in consultancy
assignments.

Ranil Pieris
Independent Non-Executive,
Director
Mr. Pieris was appointed to the
Board of Keells Food Products PLC
from 1st July 2005 and is a member
of the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors.

A Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka and Certified
Professional Managers. He is a
Consultant to the Chemanex Group.
The Deputy Chairman of Commercial
Bank of Ceylon PLC, the Chairman
of Commercial Insurance Brokers Ltd.
Non-Executive Director of CIC Holdings
PLC and a number of other unlisted
Companies in the CIC Group. Served
at Zambia Consolidated Copper Mines
Limited for 13 years and held several
Senior positions including Head of
Treasury. He is also the Senior Deputy
Chairman of the Sri Lanka Institute of
Directors.

He previously was Director and Chief
Operating Officer at Richard Pieris and
Company PLC (RPC), and at that time
he was on the Board of 13 Subsidiary
Companies of RPC and was Chairman
of some of these Companies. He
conceptualized and spearheaded the
Arpico Super Centres and introduced
the hyper market concept to the local
market. For a period he was CEO at
EDNA. More recently he was Managing
Director of GTECH Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.,
a fully owned Subsidiary of GTECH
Corporation (USA).
Today he is involved with developing
a project in Real Estate. In addition,
he is on the Board of Rajawella
Holdings, Arel Holdings and is a
Trustee of the Lionel Wendt. Mr. Pieris
holds a Bachelor’s degree from Florida
International University in the USA.

Preethiraj Jayawardena
Independent Non-Executive
Director
Mr. Jayawardena was appointed to the
Board of Keells Food Products PLC from
10th May 2007 and is the Chairman
of the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors.
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ENTERPRISE RISK
MANAGEMENT
The underlying principal of enterprise
risk management practiced at KFP is to
provide value to all stakeholders of the
Company. Like any other business KFP
also faces uncertainty and challenges
within its operating environment. The
management determines how much
of such uncertainties are manageable
as it strives to grow stakeholder value.
Uncertainties presents risk as well as
opportunities, with the potential to erode
or enhance the value.
Enterprise risk management enables
the Company to effectively manage
the uncertainties and associated risks,
whilst trying to create value through
capitalizing on business opportunities.

The annual Risk Management cycle
begins with a detailed discussion and
identification of risks, their impacts
and what preventive, or mitigatory
actions could be taken in conjunction
with the JKH ERM division after which
the Company carries out quarterly
risk reviews. Risk management is an
integral part of the strategic decision
making process of the Company. Risks
are identified and assessed through a
Risk Control Self-Assessment (RCSA)
document unique to the John Keells
Group. The Company rates its level
of risk for each identified risk event
using an evaluation of the ‘expected
severity of impact of the risk event’,
the ‘likelihood of its occurrence’, and
the Velocity of impact of the risk event,

which is the speed at which the risk
event will impact the Company.
Senior Management and the Board
of Directors of the Company are the
ultimate owners of its risks and are
responsible for reviewing their RCSA
forms on a quarterly basis. Identified
risks are validated at the Group
Management Committee (GMC) and
presented to the Audit Committee on a
half yearly basis. The risk management
cycle is concluded with the distribution
of a Group Risk Report containing risk
profiling and analysis to the John Keells
Group Audit Committee.
The risk management process and
information flow adopted by JKH Group
is depicted below in table 1.

Table 1 -JKH Group Risk Management Process
John Keells
Risk Universe
Headline Risks

External
Environment

Business
Strategies
and Policies

Business
Process

JKH PLC Audit Committee

Risk
Normalisation

Group Executive Committee (GEC)

Risk
Validation

Listed Company Audit Committee

Business Unit

Operational Units
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Technology
and Data

JK Group Review
Risk Report
and Action

BU Review and
Sector Risk Report
and Action

Group Management Committee (GMC)

Risk
Identification
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Analysis and
Reporting

BU Risk Report
and Action

Report Content

Risk Management Team
Risk and Control Review Team
Sustainability Integration

Risk
Presentation

Organisation
and People

GRI - G4

The ERM Framework adopted by the John Keells Group and implemented by the
Company and the Subsidiary involves the following:
i. Identification of types of Risk
A Risk Event - Any event with a degree of uncertainty which, if it occurs, may result in
the Organisation or Business Unit failing to meet its stated objectives.
Core Sustainability Risks - Core Sustainability Risks are defined as those risks having
a catastrophic impact to and from the organisation, but may have a very low or nil
probability of occurrence.
ii. Establishment of Risk Grid with Likelihood of Occurrence and Severity of Impact
Using the JKH Group guidelines a risk grid is established for the Company. Every risk
is analysed in terms of Likelihood of Occurrence and Severity of Impact assigning
a number ranging from 1 (low probability/impact) to 5 (high probability/impact)
to signify the probability of occurrence and the level of impact to the organisation.
Please see Table 2 for further details.
iii. Establishment of Level of Risk based on the Risk Grading Grid
Based on the values assigned for each individual risk, using the matrix given in
Table 2 a level of risk is established by multiplying the Likelihood of Occurrence with
Severity of Impact.

Impact /Severity

4

Quarterly review of the risks
identified using Risk Framework
by the Company
It is the responsibility of the Chief
Operating Officer (COO)and the risk
management team to ensure that each
risk item is tracked over the course
of the year (reviewed at least on a
quarterly basis) and to ensure that the
mitigation actions identified during the
risk review process are being carried
out adequately. This ensures that the
Company has a ‘living’ document
that is updated based on internal and
external conditions.
All risks are validated by the Group
Management Committee and risks are
profiled, analysed and reported to the
Audit Committee of the Company on a
bi - annual basis.

Risk Universe

Table 2 - Risk Grid
5
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Catastrophic/
Extreme Impact
Major/
Very high impact

5

10

15

20

25

4

8

12

16

20

3

Moderate /
High Impact

3

6

9

12

15

2

Minor Impact

2

4

6

8

10

1

2

3

4

5

1 Low/ Insignificant
Impact

Rare/Remote Unlikely to
to Occur
Occur

1

2

Possible
to Occur

3

The identified risks are broadly
classified into the Risk Universe as
identified by the John Keells Group.
The Risk Universe for the KFP is as
given in Table 3.

Likely Almost Certain
to Occur
to Occur

4

5

Occurrence/Likelihood
The Colour Matrix implies the following;
Priority Level

1

2

3

4

5

Colour Code

Ultra High

High

Medium

Low

Insignificant

15-25

9-14

4-8

2-3

1

Score
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Table 3 - Keells Food Products PLC - Risk Universe
External
Environment

Business Strategies
and Policies

Business Process

Organisation and
People

Analysing and
Reporting

Technology and Data

Political

Reputation and
Brand Image

Internal Business Process

Leadership

Performance
Measurement &
Reporting

Technology
Infrastructure/
Architecture

Competitor

Capital & Finance

Operations – Planning,
Production, Process

Skills/ Competency/
Motivation

Budgeting/ Financial
Planning

Data Relevance &
Integrity

Catastrophic Loss

Strategy &
Innovation

Operations – Technology,
Design, Execution,
Continuity

Change Readiness

Accounting/ Tax
Information

Data Processing
Integrity

Customer
Expectations

Business/Product
Portfolio

Resource, Capacity &
Allocation

Communication

External Reporting &
Disclosures

Technology Reliability
& Recovery

Macro Economic

Organisation
Structure

Vendor/Partner Reliance

Performance
Incentives

Pricing / Margins

IT Security

Foreign
Exchange and
Interest Rates

Stakeholders

Channel Effectiveness

Accountability

Market Intelligence

IT Processes

Weather &
Climate

Investment
and Mergers &
Acquisitions

Interdependency

Fraud & Abuse

Contract Commitment

Environment,
Health and Safety

Customer Satisfaction

Knowledge/
Intellectual Capital

Insurable Risks

Legal, Regulatory
Compliance and Privacy

Change Integration

Innovation

Labour Relations

Property and Equipment
Damage

Attrition

Liability

Sustainable Risk Management
Risk Management process of KFP
is intrinsically interwoven with
sustainability and CSR and forms the
foundation for the engagements with
internal and external stakeholders.
The risk management process now
extends to its value chain as KFP seeks
a holistic approach of management
and mitigation of risk entrenching it
with GRI Indicators and guidelines. Risk
management is therefore considered
more than the operational and
finance risk faced by the company
but encompasses macro-economic ,
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environmental community, employees , value chain and other risk related to the triple
bottom-line approach of the Company.

Risk Management During the Reporting Year
The Enterprise Risk Management cycle begins during the second quarter of the year
with the annual risk review of all Business Units. The John Keells Group’s Enterprise
Risk Management (ERM) Division assisted the heads of Business Units and the
respective heads of Departments to comprehensively assess, rate and set mitigation
plans for any structural, operational, financial and strategic risks relevant to each
Business Unit, based on past information and horizon scanning.
Any high level risks or Core Sustainability Risks were then reviewed by Group
Management Committee (GMC) headed by the President of the Industry Group as a
means of validating the risk process at Business Unit level. The significant risk areas
that impact the achievement of the strategic business objectives of the Company and
the measures taken to address these risks are given below;

GRI - G4

G4 - 14

1. Macro-Economic Environment, Changes in Interest Rates, Exchange Rates , Taxes and Tariffs
The macro - economic factors such as inflation, GDP growth and interest rates, fuel prices, exchange rates , duties and taxes
directly impacts the fixed and variable cost of the Company. The Company’s cost of production is largely dependent upon the
cost of raw materials sourced from local suppliers, as well as the raw materials which are imported where the depreciation of
the rupee and duties and taxes have a significant impact. The Company makes best efforts to support local organisations and
entrepreneurs in the communities where it operates, with its sustainability sourcing initiative. This not only promotes local industry
but also acts to mitigate supply chain risks and lowers dependence on foreign imports
We have addressed this risk by continuous review of macro-economic conditions and consumer behaviours through market
surveys, development of alternative suppliers for raw materials to obtain competitive rates, lobbying against increased taxes and
levies and maintain an ongoing dialogue with Government agencies along with other leading retailers and suppliers.
The Company’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk using a mix of fixed and variable rate debt taking advantage of the
changes in the market rates and forward booking for imports to hedge against exchange rate risks. Guidance received from
JKH Group Treasury division with respect to forecasting of exchange rates, interest rates etc. has been of immense value in
management of this interest risk exposure.
Risk item

Headline
Risk

2015/16
Risk Rating

2014/15
Risk Rating

Macro - economic environment, changes in interest rates, exchange rates
taxes and tariffs

External
environment

Medium

Medium

2. Inconsistency in Supply of Raw Materials and Fluctuating Raw Material Price
Over the years there has been significant price volatility in the market especially in the pork and chicken categories which are
two of the key raw materials of the Company. The Company has mitigated some of the risks associated with price volatility and
availability of raw material by entering into long-term contracts with suppliers at guaranteed terms, giving know-how training to
the local farmers of best practices in the industry and establishing strong relationship with the farming community in order to
ensure continuous supply of good quality material at stable price levels.
Unfavourable weather conditions and spread of different diseases can also affect the supply of chicken and pork in the market.
The risk control measures such as identifying alternate suppliers, monitoring of raw material prices on a continuous basis,
backward integration for selected raw materials and sustainable sourcing initiatives have all been put in place.
Risk item

Headline
Risk

2015/16
Risk Rating

2014/15
Risk Rating

Inconsistency in supply of raw materials and fluctuating raw material price

Business Process

Medium

High

3. Human Resource, Labour Relations, Talent Management and Health and Safety
Key Human Resource areas such as recruitment, career development, performance management, training and development,
competency frameworks, coaching and mentoring, talent management, reward and recognition, compensation and benefits have
been reviewed and revised to modern standards and aligned to JKH Group policies.
The Company has 342 employees in its cadre of which 136 members are represented by unions. For KFP, deterioration of labour
relations could result in a significant increase in labour costs, disruption to operations , increase in production down time and
impact the image of the Company. With a view to addressing the above concerns the Company maintains a dialogue on a
proactive basis with unionised employees to maintain cordial industrial relations.
Limited availability of specialized staff in the market is also a concern to the Company. KFP believes in succession planning to
overcome this risk and has embedded various personal development programmes to develop skills and capabilities of internal staff
to take over higher responsibilities and challenges that will come in the future.
Deficiencies in skills/ knowledge/training amongst existing staff cadre is identified as an area for improvement and the Company
has deployed specialised training programs which are targeted to improve specialised skills and knowledge.
For KFP, ensuring a safe working environment for its employees, suppliers and customers remains a top priority for the Company,
as it believes this improves motivation, productivity and reduces accidents at the work place. The Company has obtained OHSAS
certification, streamlining their organisational processes, with continuous monitoring and process improvement to ensure safe
working conditions for its employees.
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Risk item

Headline Risk

Human resource, labour relations, talent management and health and safety

Organisation and people

2015/16
Risk Rating
Low

2014/15
Risk Rating
Low

4. Business Process and Product Liability Risk
The Company has identified Business Process and product liability which can arise due to any fault in the product from food
contamination and poisoning as a core risk.
Over the years the Company has taken several steps to mitigate this risk which includes certifying the manufacturing processes
through ISO 9001: 2008 and ISO 22000 : 2005, adherence to Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP) and Food Safety standards,
compliance with all Consumer Affairs Authority rules and regulations and other statutory regulations. Further the Company
has established a hot line for consumers to convey any message regarding the products to Company officials and an internal
mechanism has been established to address these suggestions or complaints promptly.
Products manufactured and sold by the Company have a leading house hold brand name with high brand equity. Therefore
it must be managed and protected to survive and prosper in the years to come. The irreparable damage done to the brand
following a crisis or catastrophe may substantially outweigh the immediate and visible costs.
Risk item
Business process and product liability risk

Headline
Risk
Business process

2015/16
Risk Rating
Medium

2014/15
Risk Rating
Medium

5. Changing Customer Expectations and Requirements of the Food Industry
The food manufacturing industry is subject to general risks of food spoilage or contamination, consumer preferences with respect
to nutrition and health related concerns, governmental regulations, consumer liability claims etc. The quality assurance system of
the Company is administered by qualified specialists using international benchmarks. Towards addressing nutritional concerns the
Company has a specialised Research and Development team validating all nutritional standards of the products. With respect to
Governmental regulations the Company ensures that only ingredients that satisfy international standards are used in its product
formulations. The Company also ensures compliance with the ISO 22000 (2005) food safety standard with the conduct of
regular internal and external audits as applicable to the industries and product lines we operate in.
Risk item

Headline Risk

Changing customer expectations and requirements of the food industry

Business process

2015/16
Risk Rating
Low

2014/15
Risk Rating
Low

6. Fraud and Corruption
KFP promotes an organisational culture that is committed to the highest level of honesty and ethical dealings and will not tolerate
any act of fraud or corruption. The Anti-Corruption Policy is designed to put these principles into practice. It is KFP Policy to protect
itself and its resources from fraud and other similar malpractices, whether by members of the public, contractors, sub-contractors,
agents, intermediaries or its own employees.
Apart from the legal consequences of fraud and corruption, improper acts have the potential to damage KFP’s image and
reputation and financial position. Unresolved allegations can also undermine an otherwise credible position and reflect negatively
on innocent individuals. All staff must be above fraud and corruption and sanctions will apply to those who are not. In addition,
staff must act so they are not perceived to be involved in such activities. Through transparent and accountable decision-making,
together with open discussion by staff and managers about the risks of fraud and corruption, KFP seeks to foster an organisational
culture which does not tolerate fraud or corruption.
Risk item

Headline Risk

Fraud and corruption

Organisation and people
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2015/16
Risk Rating
Low

2014/15
Risk Rating
Low
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7. Break - Down of Internal Controls Risk
Segregation of duties, definition of authority limits, operating manuals, detective and preventive controls and internal and external
audit procedures which are independent of each other enable the management to ensure that the operations are being carried out
as per laid down procedures.
A comprehensive authorization matrix, clearly defining the authorities and responsibilities of each employee, controls and
procedure are in place.
Risk item
Break down of Internal controls risk

Headline
Risk
Organisation and people

2015/16
Risk Rating
Low

2014/15
Risk Rating
Low

8. Vulnerabilities from IT Related Risks
KFP relies on Information Technology to obtain a competitive advantage, whilst recognising the need for stringent internal controls
and IT governance policies. The JKH Group’s IT governance structures and policies are followed by KFP having a disaster
recovery readiness in all business systems. Dedicated professionals and use of appropriate software ensures continuity of business
operations and safeguard from IT related risks including maintaining up to date virus definition files & firewalls, daily, weekly &
monthly “on site” & “offsite” data backups, enable cloud storage for all users, conduct quarterly internal audits by IT department
based on a checklist and setting up of early warning mechanism to mitigate possible infrastructure failures.
Risk item
Vulnerabilities from IT related risks

Headline
Risk
Technology and data

2015/16
Risk Rating
Low

2014/15
Risk Rating
Low

9. Environmental Pollution due to Effluent Water, Gas Leaks and Incinerator Fumes
Due to the nature of operations in a food manufacturing Company, KFP is exposed to the risk of environmental pollution that could
occur through effluent water, incinerator fumes that is generated in the process of disposal of waste and also the possibility of gas
or fuel leaks that could escape to the surrounding environment. Any of these possibilities pose a risk to the Company in the form of
loss of reputation and brand boycotting which will have a negative impact.
As mitigation strategies for this risk, KFP dispose the waste water of the Ja-ela manufacturing facility directly to the Central Waste
Water Treatment plant which is maintained by National Water Supply and Drainage Board. The waste water of the Pannala
manufacturing facility is treated at the Effluent Treatment Plant with in the factory before being irrigated in the land of the factory
premises. The quality of the treated water complies with the standards stipulated by the government which is covered by the
Company’s environmental protection licence (EPL) issued by the Central Environmental Authority.
Waste water quality checks are done fortnightly through accredited laboratories to ensure that the treated water conforms to
the COD and BOD levels that are stipulated under the EPL. In order to mitigate the risk of gas and fuel leakages the Company
regularly maintain the storage tanks and lines. In keeping with best practices and going beyond compliance, KFP additionally
monitors its oil and grease as well as total dissolved solids parameters of its effluent discharge.
Risk item
Environmental pollution due to effluent water, gas leaks and
incinerator fumes

Headline
Risk
Business process

2015/16
Risk Rating
Medium

2014/15
Risk Rating
Medium

10. Exposure to Credit Risk
Credit facilities are offered to Company’s Customers and Distributors in keeping with the business environment. This may expose
the Company to default payments and increase the cost of operations due to bad debts.
The Company mitigates such risk by distributor financing system, credit evaluation of dealers, holding of bank guarantees,
evaluation of creditworthiness before approval of additional credit together with measures to adequately safeguard exposures with
sufficient asset backed securities.
Risk item
Exposure to credit risk

Headline
Risk
Business process

2015/16
Risk Rating
Low

2014/15
Risk Rating
Low
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REVIEW
Our Strategy
Value Creation Model
Our value creation model outlines the resources used, the activities we engage in and the relationships we depend on to generate
sustainable value to our stakeholders over the long-term.

FINANCIAL CAPITAL

Value Creation Process
Products - Keells, Krest and Elephant House

Shareholders’ Equity:
Rs. 1,771 million
Debt: Rs. 144 million

Procurement

MANUFACTURED CAPITAL

Warehousing

Manufacturing Plants and
Warehouse: Rs. 1,084 million
SOCIAL AND RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL

Manufacturing
and
Packaging

Distribution

Sales and
Marketing

Market

Suppliers: 130
Distribution Network: 9 Provinces
Distributors - 41
Retail Outlets – 17,000

Quality
Assurance

General
Trade

Modern
Trade

Hotels,
Restaurants and
Catering
Establishments

Risk Management

Capital Inputs

Star Class
Hotels and
Institutions

Environment

Brands, Tacit Knowledge, Processes
HUMAN CAPITAL
Employees: 342
NATURAL CAPITAL
Raw Materials: 4.343 MT
Water: 56,683 m3

Supply
Chain

Financial
Management

Human
Management

Research and
Development

Energy: 25,049 GJ
Distribution
Network
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Technology

Corporate Governance

Value Drivers
INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL

Outputs and Impacts

Value Shared and Outcomes

Production Volume: 4,732 MT

SHAREHOLDERS
• Generate sustainable earnings growth

Net Profit: Rs.335 million
Earnings per Share: Rs.13.13
Total Payments to Employees:
Rs. 362 million
Investment in Training and
Development: Rs.6 million
Total Training Hours: 7,876 Hours
Payments to Suppliers:
Rs.2,430 million
Payments to Out-growers:
Rs. 973 million
Investments in Community
Engagement: Rs.2.9 million
Waste Generated: 715 MT

CUSTOMERS
• Enhance customer experience by offering
value, quality, innovation and choice
DISTRIBUTORS & RETAILERS
• Earnings growth
• Fair terms of engagement
• Training and Development
SUPPLIERS
• Fostering long term relationships
• Fair and ethical sourcing
• Training and development
EMPLOYEES
• Enabling environment with equal
opportunities, career development and
work life balance
• Provide a safe and conducive working
environment
• Training and skill development

Effluent Discharged : 37,723 m3
Waste Recycled: 16,745 Kg
Treated Effluents: 17,833 m3
Carbon Footprint: 3,944 MT

COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMENT
• Empowerment and uplifting living
standards of communities by CSR
activities.
• Sustainable and environmentally friendly
business practises.
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Stakeholder Engagement
KFP has structured stakeholder engagement mechanisms in place to ensure that areas of concern are identified, prioritised
and addressed in the interests of long term sustainability of the Company. Responsibility for engagement is shared across the
organisation with some specialised teams focussing attention on the same to drive performance of the business as in the case of
production teams ensuring quality products are available on time for the sales teams to distribute depending on their engagement
with distributors to drive sales. The outcomes of these discussions are input into the strategic planning and risk management
processes
Stakeholder Group

Method and Frequency of Engagement

Key Topics and Concerns

Shareholders
The Company’s principal
shareholder is John Keells Holdings
PLC and other JKH Group
Companies which holds a stake of
92%.

•

Annual General Meeting and publication
of Annual Report (annually)

•

•

Regular quarterly performance updates
(quarterly)

•

•

Announcements to the Colombo Stock
Exchange (continuous basis)

•

•

Corporate website (continuous basis)

•

Sustainable growth in financial,
social and environmental
performance
Returns commensurate with the risk
undertaken
Corporate Governance and risk
management frameworks
Transparency and credibility of
disclosures
Corporate reputation

Customers
Customers demand drives revenue
growth and KFP seeks to have
products that are relevant and
appeals to all Sri Lankans and
targeted customer segments in
overseas markets

•

Customer complaints from dedicated
channels
Surveys conducted by third party
agencies
Social Media
Website
New product offerings

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Product quality
Availability
Taste
Ease of preparation
Experience
Nutrition
Price

Distributors and Retailers
Distributors will facilitate the
availability of our products in retail
stores and we rely on retailers to
maintain cold chains and promote
our products to our customers.

•

Sales Team engages with retailers on an
ongoing basis
Distributor Conventions
One to one meetings
Evaluations and monitoring

•
•
•
•
•

Facilitate earnings growth
Recognition & Rewards
Fair administration
Fair terms and condition
Training and Development

Suppliers
We rely on suppliers for a stable
supply of high quality raw materials
at a fair price for our manufacturing
processes

•

Focused Supply Chain team
engagements and supplier audits
Capacity building workshops
Evaluations and monitoring to provide
feedback
Training and development

•
•
•

Uplifting of supplier livelihood
Support for growth
Ethical Procument Practices
o Timely payments
o Fair pricing
o Fair terms of trade

Open door policy
Employees Satisfaction Surveys
Performance Management System
Health and safety
Intranet , newsletters and other internal
communication mechanisms

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Remuneration
Rewards & Recognition
Training and Development
Career Progression
Conducive work environment
Dignity, Health and Safety
Freedom of Collective Bargaining

•

The remainder is held by institutional
investors and the Public.

•
•
•
•

•
•
•

•
•
•

Employees
Employees convert other capitals in
to value for stakeholders and are key
to KFP’s value creation process
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Stakeholder Group

Method and Frequency of Engagement

Key Topics and Concerns

Community & Environment
Brand building activities are
dependent upon the perceptions of
the community and how we impact
their lives

•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

•
•

Press releases
Social media
Website
Interaction with Pradeshaya Saba and
community leaders
Marketing Communications
Complaints mechanisms with sustainable
business practises

G4 - 27

Responsible business practices
CSR activities
Create jobs
Facilitate socio economic progress

Determining Materiality
KFP evaluates its key variables that
impact its performance on an annual
basis to ensure that all material aspects
are measured and monitored to
facilitate required interventions, driving
performance and delivery of agreed
strategy. The process adopted is as
illustrated.

Identify matters that
can impact our value
creation process with
reference to inputs
required for the process
and the impact to
stakeholders

Accordingly, the following aspects were determined to be
material to the Company and/or the stakeholder, based
on feedback received from stakeholder engagement
processes outlined on page 54.

High

9,10

1,2,3,4,15,16

7,8,11,13

5,6,12,14

DISTRIBUTORS/
RETAILERS

Low

Moderate

SHAREHOLDER

CUSTOMERS

Material Aspects of the Company

Significance to Stakeolder

Evaluate their
significance to
the Company
and the impacted
stakeholders

Low

Moderate

High

SUPPLIERS

Determine matters
to be disclosed
in the Integrated
Report

SUSTAINABLE GROWTH
1

Market Leadership

2

Sustainable Financial performance

3

Governance practices

FULFILLING OUR CUSTOMER PROMISE
4

Product quality and adherence to labelling
requirements

5

Market reach

6

New product development catering to health,
nutrition and lifestyle expectations

VALUE CHAIN AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
7

Distributor relationships and efficient network

8

Stability and continuity of suppliers

VALUE CHAIN AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
9

Significance to KFP

Prioritize matters
based on their
relative
importance

Ethical and sustainable procurement practices

10 Developing livelihoods
11 Job creation and CSR activities
EMPLOYEES

EMPOWERED TEAM
12 Employee relations and trade unions
13 Remuneration and benefits
14 Employee health and safety

COMMUNITY &
ENVIRONMENT

PRESERVING THE ENVIRONMENT
15 Managing inputs and outputs
16 Environmental Compliance
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Delivering on Our Strategy
Our industry is shaped by demographics, changing wealth patterns, availability of resources, government policies and regulations
and a number of other factors which are beyond our control, which shape our operating environment. These factors are monitored
by us on a regular basis to assess their impact and to proactively plan for mitigation action. The factors that impact our business
are represented graphically in the perimeter of the diagram below. KFP’s Corporate Governance framework and risk appetite
define how we do business and respond to external changes serving as the fence between the external environment and the
organisation. The quadrants inside the diagram represent our strategic focus integral to building the brand and our reputation.

Availability of Water

Energy

Wealth

Availability of Raw Materials

•

Explore New Markets

•

Product Innovation

•

Diversified Business Channels

•

Product Responsibility

•

Business Conduct, Values
& Ethics

•

Nurturing the Planet

•

Empowering the Community

Keells , Krest
and Elephant
House Brands
Sustained Profitability

Inspired Team

•

Efficient Production

•

Employee Productivity

•

Supply Chain Management

•

Rewards & Recognition

•

Effective Working Capital
Management and Finance
discipline

•

Attraction & Retention

•

Talent Management

•

Health & Safety

•

Long term Sustainability of
Distributors and Retailers
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Bio Diversity

Climate Change

Delighted Customers

Risk Management

Corporate Governance

•

Geo-political Risk
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Corporate Responsibility and
Sustainability

Eco System Decline

Government Policy

Demographics

Growth

Technology
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Keells Food Products is Sri Lanka’s market leader in the processed meats industry. The products are marketed under three brands,
Keells, Krest and Elephant House as described below. It is in the top of the mind of Sri Lankan customers as “a Company with a
proven track record with high quality products”. The Company also exports to India, Maldives and the UAE.
Key Products Lines
Our Products

Description
Keells Chicken Sausages, Cheesy Blast,
Spicy Bites, Chicken Garlic Sausages,
Chicken Cheese and Onion Sausages
are renowned names in the households
and restaurant industry for its superior
quality and taste.
This range generates 70% of Revenue
The ready-to-fry superior golden
crumbed meat products and French fries
are offered under this product. Chicken
Drum Sticks, Chicken Nuggets, Chicken
Kieves, Fish Fingers, Chinese Rolls Fish/ Chicken/Vegetable and French
fries are known for snacks and bites.
This range generates 19 % of Revenue
Elephant House Sausages “The
Legendary Taste” requires no more
description. Chicken Sausages,
Elephant House Lingus, Bacon Whopper
Sausages and Black Forest are products
offered under this range.
This range generates 6 % of Revenue

Operating Environment
Sri Lankan Economy
Adopting a new methodology to
measure GDP in July 2015, Sri Lanka
recorded a growth of 4.8% in 2015
driven by improved performance
in all three sectors. The agriculture
sector growth improvements are partly
due to normalization of output after
last year's drought with strong growth
from paddy off-setting the decline
in tea, rubber and spices. Industrial

sector output growth recorded 3.0%
in 2015 supported by manufacture
of wood and products of wood
and manufacture of machinery and
equipment which compensated for the
decline in manufacture of textile and
wearing apparel activities. Service
sector activity continues to be the highest
contributor (56.6%) to total GDP and
recorded a growth of 5.3% in 2015 led
by the improvement in wholesale and
retail activities.

Improvement in wholesale and retail
trade, transportation and storage,
accommodation and food serve
activities, and communication reflects
improvement in consumption demand
supported by an increase in per capita
income with a significant salary increase
in the government sector, increased
public sector pension payments, healthy
remittance flows and low inflation.
Representing around 70% of GDP,
private consumption is the biggest
contributor to growth and is expected to
be the key driver of growth in 2016/17
as well.
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Per Capita Income and Price Index

GDP & Sector Growth Rates
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Inflation remained at low levels during the year reaching negative territory in
September but picked up in the 3rd quarter recording 3% for the year supporting
increased consumer demand. Interest rates, which were relatively flat for the past
two years, increased as policy rates were increased during the year, ending a period
of relaxed monetary policy as the budget deficit increased. The Sri Lankan rupee
depreciated against the US dollar by 9.03% during 2015 with the Central Bank of
Sri Lanka (CBSL) decision to accommodate greater flexibility in the determination
of the exchange rate in September 2015 as the outflow of foreign funds invested in
rupee denominated Government Securities, interest and loan repayments of foreign
debt and record vehicle imports exerted pressure on the exchange rate.

Food & Beverages Industry Outlook
The Food & Beverage Industry is a sub sector under the Industrial sector which
accounts for approximately 25% of the Industry sector as depicted in the chart and is
the largest sub sector in the category. Operating in the processed meats industry, it is
encouraging to witness the growth in per capita availability of meat as depicted in the
respective chart below, which demonstrates a steadily rising demand for meat, and
chicken in particular. Meat production in the country has also increased during the
year strengthening the supply side. It is noteworthy that the country has achieved selfsufficiency in 2014 in chicken with negligible quantities being imported.
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Composition of Industry
Sector 2015
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Source : Central Bank of Sri Lanka Monthly Bulletin
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Sri Lanka’s population is expected to
grow to 24 million by 2050 and the
food requirements are expected to grow
in the future. Increasing disposable
incomes and lifestyle changes with
higher consumption of meat products
and convenience foods augur well for
the growth prospects of the company.

Value Creation Report
This segment of the report focuses
on how the company has utilised or
transformed Financial and Manufactured
Capital, Social and Network Capital,
Human Capital, and Natural Capital for
the creation of value to the Company

Financial and Manufactured
Capital
KFP has maintained its growth trajectory
recording the highest growth in revenue
and profits through regular structured
investment in state of art manufacturing
plants and machinery to manufacture
high quality products, proactive
research and development activities
to come up with new and innovative
products and to engage with our
distributors to ensure the availability of
products in the market at the right time
and right place.

Activities
Value Outputs

Total Property, Plant
and Equipment
Rs. 1,161 million
Total Non-Current
Assets Rs. 273
million
Total Current Assets
Rs. 978 million
Total Assets Rs.
2,412 million

Revenue
Revenue growth witnessed in the past
five years continued during the current
financial year as well recording an
increase of 16% with a total revenue
of Rs.3,030 million in 2015/16. This
revenue growth was mainly due to
increase in disposable income as well
as effective engagement with distributors
and aligning market activities to our
core products.
The Keells range continues to be the
volume driver contributing 70% to
revenue. The Keells range of products
posted a revenue growth of 16%
compared to last year. The Krest range
has also performed well and contributed
19% to total revenue and its revenue
grew by 24%. Our premium range
Elephant House contributed 6% towards
the total revenue and its revenue grew
by 3% when compared to last year.
Trading item revenue contribution was
5% to the total Company turnover whilst
it revenue grew by 23% .

Earnings per share Rs. 13.13
Earnings Attributable to
Shareholders Rs. 335 million
Dividends 2015/16 Rs. 306 million
Interest Paid to Funding
Providers Rs.13.5 million

Cost of Sales
Establishment of out-grower models for
chicken, pork, spices and vegetables
in previous years facilitated sustainable
supply chain management with stability
in prices, volumes, and most importantly,
quality. Extension of the out-grower
model for pork facilitated increased
stability in the sourcing of pork which
was an issue in previous years. These
initiatives enabled KFP to maintain
the cost of raw materials at Rs.1,656
million where the cost of raw material
was 55% of the company revenue. The
comparative in the previous year was
Rs.1,416 million which was 54% to the
total revenue.

Cost of Sales
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Production overheads grew by 11%
which is in line with volume growth
of the Company as many overheads
under production costs are variable to
production volumes. Initiatives to make
our operations more environmentally
friendly have resulted in reduced energy
cost per Kilogram produced.
Gross Profit
Gross profit improved by 19% over
the previous year supported mainly
by volume growth. Gross margins
remained flat at 29% for the year under
review. Despite raw materials and
labour cost increases the Company
managed to maintain the GP margin.
This was supported by strong supply
chain management processes in
curtailing production costs. As prices
are fairly elastic, a careful balance
is maintained between raw material
suppliers, customer, and employees
which has enabled the company to
maintain a healthy GP margin.

GP Margin
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Operating Profit
KFP recorded consolidated operating
profit of Rs.427 million, an increase of
26% over the previous year supported
by tight cost controls, investments in
developing the distributor network
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together with targeted marketing
campaigns customised for the different
geographies and retail segments yielded
these returns. Strict control over Selling
and Distribution and Administration
expenses which grew at a slower
pace than revenue also contributed to
enhance the operating profit margins
from 13% in 2015 to 14% in 2016.

Net Profit vs Taxation
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Profit Before Tax
Profit Before Tax amounted to Rs.433
million for the financial year as the
company reported a commendable
performance recording an increase of
31% over the previous year. Effective
delivery of a multi-faceted strategy
served to strengthen and streamline
many aspects of the operations
facilitating growth and productivity
as described in this report. Efficient
cash-flows and liquidity management
enabled a decrease in finance cost by
31% to Rs.13.5 million in comparison
to the previous year of Rs.19.6 million
which also served to enhance profits.
The profit before tax margin for the year
was 14%, which is an increase from the
previous year’s margin of 13%.

Profit After Tax
Profit after tax amounted to Rs.335 million
reflecting an increase of 28%. Taxation
amounted to Rs.99 million, recording an
increase of 41% mainly due to strong
growth in profits during the year. The
effective tax rate increased marginally
from 21.2% in 2015 to 22.8% in the
current year. Consequently, Earnings per
Share increased by 28% from Rs.10.25
in the previous year to Rs.13.13 in the
year under review. Other comprehensive
income increased to Rs. 11 million
from previous years Rs. 9.7 million as
a result of the gain from revaluation of
land and buildings and foreign currency
translations.
Profit After Tax for the year attributable
to shareholders amounted to Rs.335
million as a result, 28% over the amount
recorded in 2015.
Dividends
The strong financial performance enabled
KFP to declare an interim dividend of
Rs 4/- per share in October 2015 and
propose a final dividend of Rs. 8 per
share payable on the 20th of May 2016.
It is the aim of the Company to return to
shareholders the free cash flow which is
excess of the Company’s known short to
medium term needs.

Total Dividend vs
Dividend Per Share
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Current Assets accounted for 41% of
Total Assets with a growth by 10% to
Rs.978 million keeping pace with the
volume expansion of the company
which also increased the working
capital requirement of the Company.
Net Assets per Share increased
from Rs.66.62 in 2015 to Rs.69.46
in 2016 mainly due to increase in
reserves. The current ratio increased
from 2.66 times to 3.02 times due to
increased inventory, receivables and
investments in short term deposits. The
quick ratio increased from 1.99 times
to 2.30 times, due to the same reasons.
Inevitably the working capital cycle has
expanded during the year which will
be addressed in the reporting period
just commenced to an optimal level that
supports expansion whilst effectively
managing risk and resource allocation.
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Total Assets
Total assets grew from Rs.2,319 million
to Rs.2,412 million due to growth
of current assets driven by growth in
business volumes. Property, Plant &
Equipment accounts for 48% of Total
Assets which has declined marginally in
value due to total depreciation charge
for the year of Rs.89 million which was
greater than the total acquisition of
Property Plant and Equipment for the
year of Rs. 80 million.
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Shareholders’ Funds
Shareholders’ funds increased
marginally by 4% from Rs.1.699 million
in 2015 to Rs.1,771 million in 2016 as
the company paid a healthy dividend of
Rs.281 million.
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Liabilities
Liabilities grew marginally by 3% to
Rs.641 million mainly due to increased
deferred tax liabilities resulting from
reduction in tax losses available for
utilisation in future years. Borrowings
declined by 27% from a total of Rs.184
million to Rs.134 million due to the
payment of loan instalments. Employee
benefit liabilities and trade payables
increased in line with expectations
relating to business growth.

0
2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

Cash Flow
Net Cash flow from operating activities
increased by 17% to Rs.451 million
as a result of the business growth
enumerated throughout the report.
Investment activities carried out during
the year reflect the purchase of Rs.80
million worth of Property plant and
equipment to facilitate further expansion
of the business as well as replacement
of machinery and equipment beyond
repair. Finance activities comprised the
dividend payments of Rs.281 million
and repayment of debt of Rs.50 million.
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Liquidity
The Company maintains an optimal
funding structure maintaining an
appropriate balance between debt,
equity, long term and short term
funding requirements and a variety of
other factors enumerated in the Risk
Management Report. The debt equity
ratio at 8 % maintains the company
in a strong financial position with
sufficient borrowing capacity in case
it is warranted for future growth. At
the end of year KFP’s Bank Overdrafts
has been reduced to Rs.10.4 million
from Rs.28.7 million in previous year
resulting in a net increase in working
capital. The Company has maintained a
healthy Current Ratio at 3:1 and Quick
Ratio at 2:1.

Shareholder's Fund + Debts

Summary of Value Created for Shareholders
The financial performance of the company together with brand building activity,
governance and strategy all served to create value for shareholders which are also
impacted by a variety of factors beyond the control of the company. The table below
summarises how the company has delivered value to shareholders together with
benchmarks to facilitate comparison.
Value Created for Shareholders
Market Price per Share as at
31st March
Market Capitalization
Number of Shares in issue
Earnings per Share
Dividend per Share

2015
108.30

Change %
57

Rs.'000 4,335,000 2,761,650
Rs.'000
25,500
25,500
Rs.
13.13
10.25
Rs.
11.00
5.00

57
28
120

Rs.

Rs. 000’
Dividend Paid
Growth in KFP Share Price
Benchmarks:
ASPI

2016
170.00

Over 1 year
280,500
57%

Over 3 Years
459,000
143%

-11%

5%

Rs. Mn
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Our value creation process is where the relationships has been nurtured and
developed with our customers, business partners such as suppliers, distributors,
retailers ,bankers, communities, industry associations and government and related
regulators. The Group’s brand and reputation, built over many decades is also a vital
element of this capital input and is essential to maintain our social license to operate.
This section of this Report will provide a brief, balanced assessment of the capital
resources allocated and the shared value generated to each component of our Social
and Relationship capital
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The infogram below summarises how Social & Relationship Capital was nurtured
during the year.

GRI - G4

Inputs
Distributors 41
Retail outlets 17,000
Suppliers 130
Brands 3

Activities
Value Outputs

Brand building
Rs. 67 million
CSR Rs. 3 million
Training given to
Distributors and
Suppliers
Rs. 4.2 million

Sales Volume 5,065 MT
Commission paid to
Distributors Rs. 210 million
Purchases
Rs. 2,340 million
Dealer and Distributor
Cold Storage Investment in
Freezers 126

Customer Value Creation
Keells, Krest and Elephant House branded products are served on its own or as part
of a meal in homes as well as hotels and restaurants across the country and are
synonymous with high quality that customers have come to trust and expect. The
three brands offer convenience and protein nutrition to the chefs and housewives as
they can be quickly converted in to a variety dishes that are guaranteed to please
those served. Our customer value proposition comprises the following components:

Consumer Value Proposition

High Quality Products

Consumer Satisfaction

Convenience

Accessibility

Available at Your Store

Easy to Prepare

Convenient Packaging

Innovation & Taste

Marketing Communication

Product Labelling & Nutrition

Customer Health & Safety

Product Responsibility

G4 - PR3

G4 - PR7

Our Product Responsibility Framework
ensures maintenance of high standards
in food safety and quality through
the entire supply chain. Elements of
the Product Responsibility Framework
includes Our Pledge, Products and
Services Policy and requirements for
the certifications obtained, which
are integrated in to our systems and
processes. Keells Food Products is the
first processed meat manufacturing
company, which was awarded with Sri
Lanka Standards Institute (SLS) mark for
its products range.
ISO 22000:2005 specifies requirements
for a food safety management system
where an organisation in the food
chain needs to demonstrate its ability to
control food safety hazards in order to
ensure that the food is safe at the time
of human consumption. ISO 9001:
2008 addresses quality management
aspects to ensure that the products and
services consistently meet customers’
requirements and that quality is
continually improved. The occupational
health and safety management
system based on OHSAS 18001:
2007 standard ensures elimination or
minimization of occupational health
and safety risks to employees and
others who may be exposed to such
risks associated with its activities. The
company is certified to the above
international standards by Sri Lanka
Standards Institute (SLS)
We comply with Food Act No. 26
of 1980 and all applicable Food
Regulations as per Consumer Affairs
Authority Act No. 9 of 2003 and
all applicable Directions enforced
thereunder, Factories Ordinance No.45
of 1942, National Environment Act
No.47 of 1980 and other relevant
acts and regulations. In addition,
being a responsible corporate, the
company conforms to the International
Chamber of Commerce (ICC ) code of
Advertising and Marketing in consumer
communications of its products.
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Product Responsibility Framework

Our Pledge

Products and Services Policy

We will strive to ensure that all our
suppliers, employees, customers,
and other stakeholders are treated
fairly and with respect. We remain
committed to act responsibly at all
times, where we will be governed by
all applicable regulatory stipulations
and industry benchmarks. If these
have not yet been defined, we will
seek to enact voluntary standards
as per internationally accredited
benchmarks.

The Keells Food Products PLC will
strive to maintain products and
services at the highest standards
through embracing industry and
corporate best practice and
compliance with all relevant local and
international statutory and regulatory
requirements in the markets we serve.
All products and services will seek to
identify and assess any environmental
and social impact through
communications, service, operations
and supply chain.

SLS 342
SLS 1146
SLS 1218

Innovation is key to success as we monitor the changing lifestyles and preferences of
Sri Lankan consumers and continuously invest in research and development to widen
our product range and to ensure that our products remain relevant to the Sri Lankan
household and food industry. Growth of product portfolio over the years, gaining
wide acceptance, bear testimony to our efforts. Our seasonal items continue to be
popular adding cheer to the family gatherings at festive times. Our website contains
easy to follow recipes centred on our products to stimulate the imagination of our
consumers.
Our customer engagement processes include customer surveys to obtain objective
feedback about the quality of our products and the customer experience. Results
from surveys are positive and demonstrate growth in customer satisfaction levels.
We also engaged with consumers through events and promotions which served to
increase awareness of our products amongst consumers whilst adding value through
cookery demonstrations. All our products labels are printed with the consumer
helpline number and all helpline detailed are tracked. During the year there has been
no significant customer complains.
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Our distribution network is well
equipped to ensure that our products
are available at the right time in the
required manner to fulfil our customer
needs.
During the year there were zero
significant fines paid to regulatory
authorities as a result of not adhering
to product, environment or any other
regulatory requirements. The Company
defines significant fines as any fine paid
over rupees one million.
Creating Value for Distributors and
Retailers
A network of over 41 distributors
ensure availability of our products in
over 17,000 retail locations covering
Sri Lanka. They are key to our growth
as we rely on them to store, promote
and sell our products to the end
customers in accordance with specified
standards. Our sales team have overall
responsibility for implementing a
structured engagement plan with this key
stakeholder in the distribution channels
to identify their challenges, concerns
and to address them. A comprehensive
Dealer Management Software (DMS)
system supports the team to ensure that
the right product is available at the
right place at the right time fulfilling our
promise of convenience to consumers.
We safeguard our reputation for high
quality by educating and supporting
the distributors and retailers to have
proper disciplines in the cold chain
ensure food safety and environmental
considerations. Cold chain- temperature
loggers are in place to monitor and
maintain standardised temperatures
throughout the distribution journey to
guarantee freshness of the products.

GRI - G4

Distributor Value Proposition
Growth in
Earnings

Business
Development
and Fair
Administration

Training &
Development

Investment in
Cold Storage
Capacity
Enhancement

Our distributor network has grown over the years as depicted in the graph below
as we sought to ensure that our products reached every town in Sri Lanka and their
earnings have grown during the year

Distributor Earnings

Outlet Distribution by Province
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performance as part of our regular risk
management processes. Performance
incentive schemes are in place to inspire
dealers to reach stretched goals and
ongoing dialogue with the sales teams
ensures that we identify their concerns
to respond accordingly. We also
conducted workshops for distributors to
enhance their management capabilities,
supporting their growth.
Creating Value for Suppliers
KFP sources inputs for its manufacturing
processes from a small number of large
scale suppliers and large number of
small scale suppliers who are mainly
farmers or out-growers. Consequently
it has a two tier structure for managing
its supply chain which takes into
consideration the support required to
facilitate their growth. KFP creates value
for its suppliers in the following manner:
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KFP revamped the distributor network during the year, deepening its reach in
geographies outside the Western Province as disposable incomes in these provinces
grew. The average length of relationship for the distributors is approximately 6 years
with over 26% having been engaged for more than 8 years. New distributors are
screened to ensure alignment with company values and business requirements and
provided guidance and support to succeed. Additionally, we review their financial
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Supplier Value Proposition
Uplifting of
Livelihood
and Increased
Earnings

Sustainable
Business
Growth

Fair Dealing
and Timely
Payments

Technical
Support

Training and
Development

Tier I suppliers are typically corporates and are subject to social and environmental
screening and regular monitoring to ensure compliance with regulatory requirements.
We also encourage these suppliers to obtain formal certifications to ensure that their
products consistently meet our criteria. Tier II suppliers are typically smaller scale
farmers who are provided technical support by a team of KFP employees qualified
in animal husbandry and agriculture who visit their farms. An agreed pricing
formula which is revised regularly ensures that farmers get a fair price for the product
considering the price of feed and market factors, providing them a sustainable
livelihood. Out-grower/farmer projects, developed and managed to ensure stability
in the supply chain in the rural communities of the country are listed below
Product

Location

No. of
Farmers

Products
Supplied
(Kgs)

25

786,357

2,011,978

Pork

Kaluaggala,
Diulapitiya,Bujjampola,
Giriulla, Weliweriya, Katana,
Kosgama, Pamunugama,
Dambulla, Kandy, Marawila.

Poultry

Wennappuwa,
Hanwella, Kosgama,
Gampola,Udugampola,
Meethirigala, Pannala.

2,200

Namalthenna,Gallalla,
Kandy,Meegammana West,
Wattegema, Kandy.

2,500

83,693

30

331,780

Spices

Vegetables Meegammana West,
Wattegama, Kandy, Ekala,
Ja-Ela.

Amount
Paid Rs.

973
Million

Suppliers are also further assessed for labour practices, Human Rights and
environmental impacts, using the established Group-wide Supplier Assessment
Process Criteria Developed by the Group Sustainability Division.
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We create awareness of the impacts of
climate change and eco-system decline
on their earnings, ensuring they are
invested in adhering to good agricultural
practices that respect the environment
and conform to KFP’s quality assurance
standards. Our qualified teams work
with them to provide the necessary
knowledge to increase their yields with
feedback provided on visits on a one
to one basis which we have found to
be effective. Training programs are
conducted together with the Department
of Animal Health covering a number of
areas including the importance of timely
vaccination and general animal hygiene
standards. We also work with Banks
to facilitate access to finance to support
their growth which has enabled many of
them to grow their farms.

Intellectual Capital
Building Our Brand and Reputation
KFP is the market leader in processed
meats which is gaining popularity as
Sri Lankans lifestyle is changing with a
higher focus on ease of preparation.
Our products are marketed under three
brands which offer different value
propositions to our customers. The
Keells range of sausages, meatballs,
ham and bacon have wide appeal
and are available throughout the
island. The Krest ready to fry range of
snacks and bites are popular snacks
with Sri Lankans, eagerly sought after
at gatherings and outdoor events such
as cricket matches, fast becoming
part of our culture. Elephant House
sausages are the company’s premium
brand, made to international standards,
popular with the increasingly discerning
urban consumers and sought after by
the Sri Lankan diaspora in overseas
markets.

GRI - G4

A comprehensive marketing strategy
facilitates brand building and we have
adopted an increasingly granular
approach to this key aspect of our
operations. This has enabled us to
customise our marketing activities,
selecting themes that are relevant
for different geographical and other
segments, enhancing high levels of
brand recall.
Our reputation relies on the quality of
our products and we invest significant
resources to ensure that suppliers,
distributors and our employees
understand our values, commitment to
quality and the systems, processes and
controls that have been put in place in
this regard. Investments in technology

enable us to monitor critical aspects
of our supply chain and distribution to
ensure that products reaching consumers
conform to specified standards.
Revenue growth, market leadership and
high levels of brand recall are testimony
to our success in building our brand and
reputation.

Human Capital
Human capital is key to delivering
strategy and we rely on their collective
knowledge, experience, and dedication
and hard work to deliver value to other
stakeholders. KFP has 342 employees.
The infogram below outlines how we
create value for our employees.

Creating Value for Employees

Remuneration

Benefits

Training &
Development

Opportunity

Great Place
to Work

Rs. 362
million

Uniforms,
Company
Products at a
Discounted
Price, Travelling,
Staff Welfare
Activities

Training
Hours 7,876
Training Cost
Rs. 6 million

6
Promotions

More Than
Just a Work
Place

Dignity, Health & Safety

Freedom of Collective Bargaining

Governance, Culture & Ethics
The Company’s people strategies are implemented by Human Resources Division
which reports to the Chief Operating Officer and supports the Board Human
Resources & Remuneration Committee which determine policy, approves strategy and
monitor performance. Our people strategy primarily seeks to attract, develop and

G4 - 11

G4 - LA4

retain talent in line with requirements
of the business and conforms to the
Group’s HR policies and procedures.
Consequently, policies, procedures and
operational matters such as promotions,
increments, performance incentives
etc., are all determined by Group
Committees.
A comprehensive suite of HR policies
provides explicit guidance on a range
of matters including recruitment,
performance management, training
and development, remuneration,
rewards and recognition, promotions,
conduct and ethics, disciplinary matters
and managing exits. High levels of
engagement supported by formal
employee communication create a
culture where employee receive regular
feedback on performance enabling them
to reach higher levels efficiency and
where employees are able to approach
their line managers to voice their
concerns. Consequently, all employees
receive formal assessments of their
performance facilitating identification of
their training and development needs.
KFP is an equal opportunity employer
and does not discriminate based on
gender, race or religion.
All employees are provided with a Code
of Ethics which details the corporate
values, employee and employer
rights and obligations which include
provisions on respect and dignity in the
work place, health and safety matters
and anti-corruption practices.
Our employees enjoy freedom of
association and 51% of the nonexecutive employees are members
of the Ceylon Mercantile, Industrial
and General Workers Union (CMU)
with whom the company has excellent
relations since inception. Formal
and informal dialogue between
representatives and management
ensures that there is an appropriate
forum to voice their concerns and work
together to address the same.
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Attrition

New Recruits

Team Profile

Team Profile
As part of the John Keells Group of companies and in its own right, KFP is able to
attract talent at all levels and has a proven track record in developing and retaining
talent. Consequently, the company is able to maintain a healthy talent pipeline.
The team profile, new hires and employee exits are given in the tables below. It is
noteworthy that the team has a very high proportion of male employees which is due
to the nature of the job, particularly in the factories.
Employee Category
2015/16 2014/15 2013/14
Assistant Vice President (AVP) & Above
3
2
3
Managers
16
18
13
Assistant Managers
11
10
13
Executives
43
42
44
Non-Executives
269
248
238
Total Permanent Employees
342
320
311
Contractor’s Personnel
105
95
72
Total Workforce
447
415
383
Male
88%
89%
91%
Female
12%
11%
9%

Employee Category
2015/16 2014/15 2013/14
New Recruits aged below 30
48
36
25
New Recruits aged between 30 and 50
17
11
New Recruits aged above 50
1
1
1
Total New Recruits
49
54
37
Rate of Recruitment (As a percentage of
15%
18%
12%
Total Employees)

Employee Category
Employees who left during the period,
aged below 30
Employees who left during the period,
aged between 30 and 50
Employees who left during the period,
aged above 50
Total Attrition
Attrition rate (As a percentage of Total
Employees)

2015/16 2014/15 2013/14
10
24
22
14
3
27
8%

19
2
45
15%

13
0
35
12%

per employee. Employee productivity
has improved on both criteria supported
by streamlining of processes and
economies of scale.
Remuneration & Benefits
Remuneration of permanent employees
comprise two components, guaranteed
pay and performance incentives.
Typically, sales teams monthly pay
comprises elements of both while other
employees’ performance incentives
are awarded annually on completion
of performance appraisals which
assess several aspects of their role.
Employees also receive Employees
Provident Fund contributions of 12%
and Employee Trust Fund contributions
of 3%. Additionally, provision is
made for retirement gratuity in respect
of employees. Benefits provided to
employees include the following:
•

Medical insurance in case of
hospitalisation

•

Workmen’s compensation in case of
serious injury

•

Transportation

Employee Productivity
No

Rs. Mn

350

10

300

8

250
200

6

150

4

100
2

50

0

0

Employee Productivity
Employee productivity is a key measure of the value created by this group of
stakeholders and is measured using both revenue per employee and profit
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2014

2015

Head Count
Net Revenue/Employee
Net Profit/Employee

2016

GRI - G4

Training Hours & Coverage

Training & Development
Capacity and skill building is an
ongoing activity which is monitored by
the Group’s Learning and Development
function. Training and development
needs are identified through the
performance management process to
address current and future competency
requirements. Training opportunities
provided to employees include technical
training, competency development
and leadership development. The
adjacent graph is testimony to the
company’s commitment to training and
development. The Group also has
mentoring and coaching programmes
for employees at senior levels
which include one on one sessions
with identified mentors based on
requirements identified by mentees.
The Table below provides an analysis
of training and development activities
undertaken by KFP.

Employee Category
Assistant Vice President (AVP) &
Above
Managers
Assistant Managers
Executives
Non-Executives
Contractor’s Personnel
Total Workforce
Male
Female

G4 - LA10

the award categories, employees are
given plaques and cash awards in
recognition of their contribution to the
Company’s performance.

Investment in Training
Rs. Mn

Hrs

8

8000

7

7000

6
6000

5

5000

4
3

4000

2
3000

1

2000

0
2014

2015

2016

Investment
Training Hours

Training Hours
Employee Coverage
2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15
133
52
100%
100%
627
538
1,727
3,987
864
7,876
7,463
413

235
241
740
478
336
2,082
1,854
229

100%
100%
100%
82%
N/A
85%
85%
100%

81%
91%
92%
83%
N/A
66%
80%
90%

Recognition
There is a special recognition awards for employees who have completed 25 years
with the Company.
Further, the company has an awards
programme to recognise employees who
excel in their roles, motivating others to
reach higher and also live the company
values. Aptly named V Sparc, the
programme recognises high performers
based on a system of nominations and
moderation to determine recipients for

Dignity, Health & Safety
A comprehensive Health and Safety
programme is in place to ensure a Safe
Working Place for all employees as
depicted in the adjacent diagram. The
Company has obtained the OHSAS
18001 certification which assesses
the company’s systems in place to
ensure the health and safety of its
employees. All injuries are recorded
and statistics are monitored regularly
too assess the effectiveness of the
safeguards in place. Employees are
trained regularly on health and safety
aspects and adherence is mandatory
with line managers held accountable for
enforcement. Statistics for the reporting
year are given below:
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Health & Safety
Total No. of Injuries
No. of days lost due to injury

Health & Safety
Training
Fire Team
First aid Team
OHSAS Team

2015/16 2014/15 2013/14
43
8
4
78
52
9

Resource
Strategic Risk Solutions/Fire Brigade Gampaha,
Fire Brigade Gampaha Negombo
Red Cross Colombo
M.A.S.Business Consultants (Pvt) Ltd

No. of
Participants
80
21
19

More than Just a Work Place
KFP strives to create a workplace where employees enjoy working together and
inspire each other to strive higher. We undertake surveys every two years to ensure
that employee engagement levels are high and that they are motivated to perform
to the best of their ability. Results from the surveys are used to formulate policy and
the flexi working hour’s policy for Executives is an example of the outcomes of these
engagements. The results of the 2014/15 Great Place to Work survey undertaken as
a Group initiative are as follows:
GPTW (Great Place to Work) Survey 2014/15
Category Participants

Executive grade employees

Number of Participants

57

Response Rate

81.40%

Result

Trust Index-57 (2010 survey - 42)

High Score Areas

Fairness, Camaraderie and credibility

Areas for improvement

Respect

Additionally, the Staff Welfare Association works together with the HR function to organise
events which bring them together in a spirit of camaraderie, participating in sports events
and festivals with enthusiasm. A photo collage captures the highlights below.
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Natural Capital
KFP is reliant on natural capitals which
form the bulk of inputs to our processes
and are conscious of the need to reduce
our carbon footprint to mitigate global
warming, climate change and eco
system decline which directly impact our
business in the short, medium and long
term. Consequently we have developed
an environment management framework
and its key elements are graphically
depicted below.
Compliance
All our projects are screened for
environmental compliance using
the Central Environment Authority
requirements and group requirements as
the baseline, frequently exceeding the
requirements to optimise environmental
performance. Continuing requirements
of the CEA are monitored on a regular
basis and are also included in the
Internal Audit plans to ensure that internal
controls in place to facilitate compliance
are functioning effectively. Quarterly
sustainability accounting statements are
reviewed by management and the Board
to ensure that movement of non-financial
indicators are in line with expectations,
key variations are investigated and
concerns addressed in a timely and
effective manner. Our Sustainability
Performance indicators are summarised below:

GRI - G4

G4 - EN3

G4 - EN6

2015/16

2014/15

Change %

4,732

4,290

10.3

Total Energy Consumption (GJ)

25,049

23,108

8.4

Total Water Consumption (m )

56,683

53,219

6.5

715

594

20.4

3,944

3,629

8.7

Total Production of Finished Goods (MT)
3

Total Waste Generated (MT)
Carbon Footprint (MT)

Performance per Operational Intensity Factor (Per MT Produced)
Energy Consumption (GJ/MT)

5.29

5.39

(1.7)

11.98

12.40

(3.4)

Waste Generated (Per MT Produced)

0.15

0.14

9.2

Carbon Footprint (Per MT Produced)

0.83

0.85

(1.5)

Water Consumption (m /MT)
3

G4 - EN8 G4 - EN16 G4 - EN22 G4 - EN23

Water
Water is a critical input for our
processes as well as it functions as an
ingredient in our products and is used
for cleaning machines and ancillary
equipment and also for cooling and
heating systems. Investments facilitating
re-use of water recovered from our
cooling and heating systems has
enabled us to reduce water consumption
and the discharge of effluents
significantly over the past three years as
evinced in the adjacent graph.

Water
Managing Inputs & Outputs:
Controls over materials input seek to ensure that stringent quality standards are met
and processes to ensure that good agricultural practices are followed are described
in the Creating Value for Suppliers segment on page 65 to 66. Management of
Water, Energy and Solid waste are strategic priorities which are outlined below
whilst emissions, which are the result of energy related inputs, are curtailed through
energy management.

m3

m3/MT

60,000

15

50,000
14
40,000
30,000

13

20,000
12

Energy

Water

Solid Waste

Reduce electrical energy
consumption
(GJ/Kg produced)

Invest in alternative energy
and renewable energy

Reduce water consumption
(m3/MT produced)

Reduce annual water
discharged by reusing of
water for alternative uses

Reduce specific waste
generation (Kg/MT
produced)

Energy
Energy costs account for 16% of
manufacturing costs and are critical
to the operation of our manufacturing
facilities. The state of the art
manufacturing plant installed in Pannala
has high levels of energy efficiency
which has enabled the company to
reduce its energy consumption despite
higher volumes of production. Stringent
monitoring and continuous improvement
of manufacturing processes also
support the declining trend in energy
consumption.

10,000

2014

Energy
GJ

GJ/MT
5.4

25000
5.3
20000
15000

5.2

10000
5.1
5000
5.0

0
2014

2015

2016

2015

2016

Water Consumption
Water Intensity Ratio
Effluents Discharged

Increase the annual volume
of waste used for recycling
and composting

30000

11

0

Waste Management
Our manufacturing facilities generate
solid waste which comprises largely
of packaging materials and meat
and vegetable waste. A recycling
programme is in place for packing
materials which has been outsourced
to a third party. Meat and vegetable
waste are incinerated at facilities
installed at both factories which have
capacities of 100kg per hour at Pannala
and 150 kg per hour at Ja-Ela to ensure
that it is disposed in a responsible
manner. The incinerator units comply
fully with the mandatory stipulations of
the CEA guidelines for waste disposal
and operational data is monitored to
ensure compliance on an on-going
basis.

Electricity Consumption
Energy Intensity Ratio
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Waste

Emission

m3

m3/MT
0.25

1,000

m3

m3/MT

4,000

Employers’ Federation of Ceylon(EFC)

3,000
0.20

600

0.85

National Chamber of Commerce

2,500
2,000

400
0.15

0.84

1,500
1,000

200

0.83

500
0.10

0
2014

2015

2016

Total Waste
Kg of Waster MT Produced

Emissions
Controlling emissions is key to reducing
KFP’s carbon footprint and our energy
management, water management and
solid waste management initiatives
contribute to this goal.
During the reporting period, KFP was
able to reduce its emissions by 2%
despite achieving a volume growth of
10% in production.
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Ceylon Chamber of Commerce

0.86

3,500
800

Associations in which KFP holds
membership:

0.82

0
2014

2015

Emissions
Emission Intensity

2016

Export Development Board
Department of Animal Production and
Health

MANAGEMENT
TEAM
Sales and Marketing

Supply Chain

Human Resources

Mr. D A N Samarasinghe
Vice President
Head of Sales & Marketing

Mr. A A D H C Ambepitiya
Assistant Vice President
Chief Operating Officer

Ms. S M S N K Paranayapa
Assistant Vice President
Head of Employee Relations and Human
Resources - Consumer Foods Sector

Sales
Mr. S G Fernando
Channel Manager - Modern Trade

Production
Mr. W A V Boteju
Manager - Pannala Facility

Mr. M D T D Nishantha
Manager - Head of Human Resources

Mr. G W C G B Gonigoda
Channel Manager - Retail

Mr. K A V Fernando
Manager - Production Keells Factory

Finance

Mr. R Jamaldeen
Channel Manager - HORECA

Mr. C N Soza
Manager - Production Krest Factory

Mr. T G T P K Gamage
Manager - Sales Administration

Research and Development
Mr. A A N Lalantha
Manager - New Product Development

Mr. S R Jayaweera
Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Officer - Consumer
Foods & Retail Group
Ms. P N Fernando
Vice President
Sector Financial Controller - Consumer
Foods Sector

Marketing
Ms.W S J Ihalagedara
Assistant Vice President
Head of Marketing

Procurement
Mr. S V R Boteju
Manager - Purchasing

Mr. M K G W A Abayakoon
Assistant Vice President
Head of Exports - Consumer Foods Sector

Engineering
Mr. H M P Bandara
Manager - Engineering

Mr. S Senaratne
Assistant Vice President
Head of Financial Planning and
Analysis - Consumer Foods Sector

Mr. S Nanayakkara
Manager - Brand Activation

Quality Assurance
Mr. S H Jayaratne
Manager - Quality Assurance

Mr. A C Morris
Manager - Management Accounting

Logistics
Mr. T H M A K Tennakoon
Manager - Logistics

Mr. M C R Perera
Manager - Credit
Ms. J D Kanagaraj
Manager - Finance
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GLOBAL REPORTING INITIATIVE INDEX
General Standard Disclosures
Indicator

Disclosure

Page Number/Reference

1. Strategy and Analysis
G4-1

Chairman’s Statement

12 - 13

2. Organisational Profile
G4-3

Name of the Organisation

Inner back cover

G4-4

Primary brands, products, and services

5,57

G4-5

Location of the Organisation’s headquarters

Inner back cover

G4-6

Countries where the Organisation operates

80

G4-7

Nature of ownership and legal form

Inner back cover

G4-8

Markets served

13,57

G4-9

Scale of the reporting organisation

65

G4-10

Employee profile

68

G4-11

Percentage of total employees covered by collective bargaining
agreements

67

G4-12

Supply chain of the organisation

66

G4-13

Significant changes during the reporting period

No significant changes

G4-14

Precautionary approach or principle

46 - 51

G4-15

Externally developed economic, environmental, and social charters,
principles, or other initiatives to which the organisation subscribes or
which it endorses

56

G4-16

Memberships of associations

72

3. Identified Material Aspects and Boundaries
G4-17

Organisation’s entities covered and not covered by the report

Inner back cover

G4-18

Defining the report content and the Aspect Boundaries

9

G4-19

Material Aspects

55

G4-20

Aspect boundary for identified material aspects within the organisation

55

G4-21

Aspect boundary for identified material aspects outside the organisation

55
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Indicator

Disclosure

Page Number/Reference

G4-22

Effect of any restatements of information provided in previous reports, and
the reasons for such re-statements.

No Significant Changes

G4-23

Significant changes from previous reporting periods in the Scope and
Aspect Boundaries.

2015/16 is the first attempt at
Integrated Reporting referring
to standards disclosures from
GRI-G4 guidelines was made.

4. Stakeholder engagement
G4-24

List of stakeholder groups engaged by the organisation

54 - 55

G4-25

Basis for identification and selection of stakeholders with whom to engage

54 - 55

G4-26

Organisation’s approach to stakeholder engagement, including frequency
of engagement by type and by stakeholder group, and an indication of
whether any of the engagement was undertaken specifically as part of the
report preparation process

54 - 55

G4-27

Key topics and concerns that have been raised through stakeholder
engagement, and how the organisation has responded to them

54 - 55

G4-28

Reporting period

9

G4-29

Date of most recent previous report

1st Integrated Report

G4-30

Reporting cycle

9

G4-31

Contact point for questions regarding the report or its contents

9

G4-32

Compliance with GRI G4 guidelines and GRI content index

74 - 77

G4-33

External assurance

N/A

Governance structure of the Organisation

15

5. Report Profile

6. Governance
G4-34

7. Ethics & Integrity
G4-56

Organisation’s values, principles, standards, and norms of behaviour

3,33
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GLOBAL REPORTING INITIATIVE INDEX

Specific Standard Disclosures
Aspects

Indicator

Disclosure

Page Number/Reference

Economic performance

G4-EC1

Economic performance

4,10,11

Procurement practices

G4-EC9

Local purchasing

11,65,66

G4-EN3

Energy consumption within the organisation

71

G4-EN6

Reduction of energy consumption

71 - 72

G4-EN8

Water withdrawal by source

71

G4-EN16

Energy indirect Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions
(scope 2)

71

G4-EN21

nOx, SOx, and other significant air emissions

72

G4-EN22

Total water discharge by quality and destination

71

G4-EN23

Total weight of waste by type and disposal method

71

G4-EN29

Monetary value of significant fines and total number
of non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with
environmental laws and regulations

64

G4-LA1

Total number and rates of new employee hires and
employee turnover by age group, gender and region

68

G4-LA2

Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not
provided to temporary or part time employees, by
significant locations of operation

68

G4-LA4

Minimum notice periods regarding operational
changes, including whether these are specified in
collective agreements

67 - 68

G4-LA7

Workers with high incidence or high risk of diseases
related to their occupation

70

G4-LA8

Health and safety topics covered in formal
agreements with trade unions

70

Economic

Environmental
Energy

Water
Emissions

Effluents and Waste

Compliance

Social
Labour Practices and Decent Work
Employment

Labour/ Management Relations
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Aspects

Indicator

Disclosure

Page Number/Reference

Training and Education

G4-LA10

Programs for skills management and lifelong
learning that support the continued employability
of employees and assist them in managing career
endings

69 - 70

Diversity

G4-LA12

Composition of governance bodies and breakdown
of employees per employee category according to
gender, age group, minority group membership, and
other indicators of diversity

68

Child Labour

G4-HR5

Operations and suppliers identified as having
significant risk for incidents of child labour, and
measures taken to contribute to the effective
abolition of child labour.

23,68

Forced or Compulsory Labour

G4-HR6

Operations and suppliers identified as having
significant risk for incidents of forced or
compulsory labour, and measures to contribute to
the elimination of all forms of forced or compulsory
labour.

23,68

G4-SO8

Monetary value of significant fines and total
number of non-monetary sanctions for
non-compliance with laws and regulations

64

Product and Service Labelling

G4-PR3

Types of product and services information required
by the organisation’s procedures for product and
service information and labelling, and percentage of
significant product and service categories subject to
such information requirements.

63 - 64

Marketing and Communications

G4-PR7

Total number of incidents of non-compliance
with regulations and voluntary codes concerning
marketing communications, including advertising,
promotion, and sponsorship, by type of outcomes

63 - 64

Product Compliance

G4-PR9

Monetary value of significant fines for
non-compliance with laws and regulations
concerning the provision and use of products
and services

64

Human Rights

Society
Compliance

Product Responsibility
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS ON THE AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY
The Board of Directors of Keells Food
Products PLC has pleasure in presenting
the 34th Annual Report of your
Company together with the Audited
Financial Statements of the Company
and the Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st March 2016.
The content of this Report has also
considered the requirements of the
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, the
relevant Listing Rules of the Colombo
Stock Exchange and recommended best
reporting practices.
The Company was incorporated on
the 5th day of November 1982 as a
Public Limited Liability Company and
the shares of the Company are listed on
the Colombo Stock Exchange. Pursuant
to the requirements of the Companies
Act No. 7 of 2007, the Company
was re-registered and obtained a new
Company number PQ 3 on 15th June
2007.

Corporate Conduct

The business activities of the Company
and its Subsidiary are conducted with
the highest level of ethical standards.

Principle Activities

Company
The principal activities of the Company
which is manufacture and sale of
processed meats, crumbed products and
raw meats remained unchanged.
Subsidiary
The principal activity of John Keells
Foods India (Pvt) Limited is the marketing
of processed meat products in India. The
Company was incorporated on the 7th
day of April 2008. The Company did
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not carry out any operations during the
year ended 31st March 2016.
Ultimate Parent
The Company’s Ultimate Parent and
controlling entity is John Keells Holdings
PLC, which is incorporated in Sri Lanka.
Review of Business
A review of the Group’s financial and
operational performance during the
year and future business development
is given in the Chairman’s Review and
the Business Review section of this
Annual Report. These reports form an
integral part of the Annual Report of the
Board of Directors and together with the
Audited Financial Statements provide
a fair review of the performance of the
Company and its Subsidiary during the
financial year ended 31st March 2016.
Financial Statements and Auditors’
Report
The Financial Statements for the year
ended 31st March 2016 has been
prepared, in accordance with SLFRS/
LKASs, the Accounting Standards
issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka to converge
with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and International
Accounting Standards (IAS).
The Financial Statements of the Group
duly signed by the Directors are set out
on pages 92 to 151 and the Auditors’
Report on the Financial Statements is
provided on page 91 of this Annual
Report.
Accounting Policies
The Accounting Policies based on
Accounting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of

Sri Lanka (SLFRS/LKASs) are provided
in detail in the Notes to the Financial
Statements on pages 98 to 115.
Going Concern
After considering the financial
position, operating conditions,
regulatory and other factors and such
matters required to be addressed in
the Code of Best Practice on Corporate
Governance, issued jointly by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri
Lanka and the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Sri Lanka, the Directors
have a reasonable expectation that the
Company and its Subsidiary possess
adequate resources to continue in
operation for the foreseeable future. For
this reason, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the
Financial Statements.
Stated Capital
In compliance with the Companies Act
No. 7 of 2007, the Financial Statements
reflect the Stated Capital of the
Company. The Stated Capital is the total
of all amounts received by the Company
in respect of the issued Share Capital.
The total Stated Capital of the Company
as at 31st March 2016 was Rs. 1,295
million (Rs. 1.295 million as at 31st
March 2015) details of which are
provided in Note 24 to the Financial
Statements.
Revenue
The Net Revenue generated by the
Company and the Group for the
financial year amounted to Rs. 3,030
million (Rs.2,618 million in 2014/15).
An analysis of the Net Revenue is given
in Note 2 to the Financial Statements.

Detailed description of the results and appropriation are given below;
For the year ended 31 March
in Rs. ‘000s

Group

Profit from Operating Activities
Finance Cost
Finance Income
Profit Before Tax
Taxation Charge including Deferred Tax
Profit After Tax
Other Comprehensive Loss
Unappropriated profit brought forward from the
previous year
Profit available for Appropriation
Appropriations;
Final Dividend paid (2014/15)
Interim Dividend Paid (2015/16)
Balance Carried Forward

2016

2015

426,782
(13,461)
20,067
433,388
(98,682)
334,706
(5,306)
230,807

338,353
(19,613)
12,675
331,415
(70,126)
261,289
(4,074)
101,092

560,207

358,307

(178,500)
(102,000)
279,707

(51,000)
(76,500)
230,807

* The Final Dividend declared for this financial year has not been recognised at the
date of the Statement of Financial position in compliance with LKAS 10 Event after
the reporting period.
Financial Results and Appropriations
The profit after tax of the Group and
attributable to equity holders of the
Parent for the year was Rs. 335 million
(Rs. 261 million 2014/15).
Results of the Group and the Company
are given in the Income Statement.
Dividends
A Final Dividend of Rs. 7/- per share
for the financial year 2014/15 (Rs. 2/2013/14) was paid on the 29th of May
2015.
An Interim Dividend of Rs. 4/- per share
for the financial year 2015/16 (Rs.3/2014/15) was paid on the 28th of
October 2015.
The Board of Directors has now
approved a final dividend of Rs. 8/per share for 2015/2016 to be paid
on the 20th of May 2016 to those
shareholders on the register as of the

11th May 2016. In accordance with
Sri Lanka Accounting and Reporting
Standards 10, events after the reporting
period, the declared dividend has not
been recognised as a liability as at 31st
March 2016.
As required by Section 56 (2) of the
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, the
Board of Directors has confirmed that
the Company satisfies the solvency
test in accordance with section 57 of
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 and
a certificate has been obtained from
the auditors, prior to declaring all
dividends.
Dividend per share has been computed
for all periods based on the number
of shares in issue at the time of the
dividend payout.
The dividends paid out are out of
taxable profits of the Company and will
be subjected to a 10% withholding tax.

Donations
Total donations made by the Group
during the year amounted to Rs. 2.9
million (Rs. 2.2 million in 2014/15),
of which Rs.1.3 million was for school
renovation and other educational
programmes. The Group made
contributions to The John Keells
Foundation which is funded by JKH
and its subsidiaries and handles most
of the JKH Group’s CSR initiatives and
activities.
Provision for Taxation
Provision for taxation has been
computed at the rates given in Note 8 to
the Financial Statements.
Segment Reporting
A segmental analysis of the activities of
the Group is given in Note 2.1 to the
Financial Statements.
Related Party Transactions
Related Party Transactions, exceeding
the lower of 10% of Equity or 5% of the
total assets of the Company is detailed
below;
Jaykay Marketing Services (Pvt) Limited
- Rs. 620 million (Rs. 567 million in
2014/15).
Directors have disclosed transactions
with related parties in terms of Sri Lanka
Accounting Standard LKAS 24 – Related
Party Disclosures, in Note 33 to the
Financial Statements.
Property Plant and Equipment
The value of Property Plant and
Equipment as at the reporting date
amounted to Rs. 1,161 million
(Rs.1,153 million 2014/15) for the
Company and its Subsidiary. The details
of Property, Plant and Equipment and
their movements are shown in Note 14
to the Financial Statements.
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Intangible Assets
The details of Intangible assets are
shown in Note 15 to the financial
statements.
Capital Expenditure
The total capital expenditure on
acquisition of Property, Plant and
Equipment and intangible assets of the
Company amounted to Rs. 80 million
(Rs. 61 million in 2014/15) details of
which are given in Note 14 and 15
to the Financial Statements. Capital
expenditure approved and contracted
but not provided in the Financial
Statements, is given in Note 35 to the
Financial Statements.
Market Value of Freehold Properties
The Land and Buildings owned by
the Company were revalued by a
professionally qualified independent
valuer as at 31st March 2016. The
valuation was carried out by P.B
Kalugalagedera Chartered Valuation
Surveyor. The Directors are of the
opinion that the re-valued amounts
are not in excess of the current market
values of such properties.
The details of the re-valued land and
buildings of the Company as well as the
extent of land, location and the number
of buildings along with the relevant
accounting policies are given in Note
14.5 to 14.8 of the Financial Statements
and the Real Estate Portfolio on page
156 of the Annual Report.
Investments
Details of investments held by the
Company are disclosed in Note 16 to
the Financial Statements.
Reserves
Total reserves as at 31st March 2016
for the Company and the Group
amounted to Rs. 475 million (Rs.403
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million in 2014/15) and Rs. 476
million (Rs. 404 million in 2014/15)
respectively.
The detailed movement of Reserves is
given in the Statement of Changes in
Equity on page 97 of the Annual Report.
Events occurring after the reporting
period
There have been no events subsequent
to the reporting period, which would
have any material effect on the Group
or the Company other than those
disclosed Note 36 to the Financial
Statements.
Contingent Liabilities and Capital
Commitments
There were no material Contingent
liabilities or Capital commitments as
at 31st March 2016 except those
disclosed in Note 34 and 35 to the
Financial Statements.
Outstanding Litigation
In the opinion of the Directors and in
consultation with the Company lawyers,
litigation currently pending against
the Company will not have a material
impact on the reported financial results
or future operations of the Company.
Human Resources (HR)
The Group has an equal opportunity
policy and these principles are
enshrined in specific selection, training,
development and promotion policies,
ensuring that all decisions are based
on merit. The Group practices equality
of opportunity for all employees
irrespective of ethnic origin, religion,
political opinion, gender, marital status
or physical disability.
The number of persons directly
employed by the Company as at 31st
March 2016 was 342 (320 as at 31st
March 2015).

The Group is committed to pursuing
various HR initiatives that ensure the
individual development of all our team
as well as facilitating the creation of
value for themselves, the Group and all
other stakeholders.
There were no material issues pertaining
to employees and industrial relations
during the year under review.
System of Internal Controls
The Directors acknowledge their
responsibility for the system of Internal
Control and having conducted a
review of internal controls covering
financial, operational, compliance
controls and risk management, have
obtained reasonable assurance of their
effectiveness and successful adherence
for the period up to the date of signing
the Financial Statements.
Corporate Governance
Corporate Governance practices
and principles with respect to the
management and operations of the
Group are set out on pages 14 to 43 of
the Annual Report. The Directors confirm
that the Group is in compliance with
the Rules on Corporate Governance as
per the listing rules of Colombo Stock
Exchange.
The Directors declare that:
• The Company and its Subsidiary
have not engaged in any activities,
which contravene laws and
regulations.
•

The Directors have declared all
material interests in contracts
involving the Company and its
Subsidiary and refrained from
voting on matters in which they
were materially involved.

• The Company has made all
endeavours to ensure the equitable
treatment of all shareholders.
•

•

•

A review of Internal Controls
covering financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk
management has been conducted
and the Directors have obtained
a reasonable assurance of their
effectiveness and successful
adherence from the management.
The Company, being listed on the
Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE),
is compliant with the rules on
Corporate Governance under the
Listing Rules of the CSE with regard
to the composition of the Board and
its Sub Committees
The Company is in compliance
with the Code of Best Practice on
Corporate Governance jointly
issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka
(SEC) and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka (ICASL).
The Board of Directors is committed
to maintaining an effective
Corporate Governance structure
and process. A full report on
Corporate Governance is found on
pages 14 to 43.

Risk Management
The Board and the Executive
Management of the Company
have put in place a comprehensive
risk identification, measurement
and mitigation process. The Risk
Management process is an integral
part of the annual strategic planning
cycle. A detailed overview of the
process is outlined in the Enterprise Risk
Management Report on pages 46 to
51.

Board Committees

Audit Committee
The following Non-Executive,
Independent Directors of the Board
served as members of the Audit
Committee during the year.
Mr. M P Jayawardena - Chairman
Mr. S H Amarasekera PC
Mr. A D E I Perera
Mr. R Pieris
The report of the Audit Committee is
given on pages 87 to 89 of the Annual
Report. The Audit Committee has
reviewed all other services provided
by the External Auditors to the Group
to ensure that their independence as
Auditor has not been compromised.
Human Resources and Compensation
Committee
As permitted by the Listing Rules of
the Colombo Stock Exchange, the
Human Resources and Compensation
Committee of John Keells Holdings
PLC, the Parent Company of Keells
Food Products PLC, functions as the
Human Resources and Compensation
Committee of the Company. The
Human Resources and Compensation
Committee of John Keells Holdings PLC
comprises of five Independent NonExecutive Directors:

Nominations Committee
The mandate and the scope of the
Nominations Committee is set out in
page 25 of this Annual Report.
The Nominations Committee members of
the Parent Company are as follows;
Mr. T Das - Chairman
Mr. S C Ratnayake
Mr. M A Omar
Mr. E F G Amerasinghe
Mr. D A Cabraal
Ms. M. P. Perera
Related Party Transaction Review
Committee
Related Party Transaction Review
Committee of the Parent Company John
Keells Holdings PLC functions as Related
Party Transactions Review Committee
the Company and its Subsidiary and
conforms to the requirements of the
Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock
Exchange.
The Related Party Transactions Review
Committee members of the Parent
Company are as follows;
Mr. A N Fonseka – Chairman
Mr. E F G Amerasinghe
Mr. D A Cabraal

Mr. E F G Amerasinghe - Chairman

Mr. S C Ratnayake

Dr. I Coomaraswamy

Ms. M P Perera

Mr. M A Omar
Mr. A N Fonseka
Mr. D A Cabraal
The Remuneration Policy of the
Company is detailed in the Corporate
Governance Report on Page 28 of the
Annual Report.

The Group Finance Director Mr. J R F
Peiris attended meetings by invitation.
The mandate and the scope of the
Related Party Transaction Review
Committee is set out in Page 25 of this
Annual Report.
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Share Information
An Ordinary Share of the Company
was quoted on the Colombo Stock
Exchange at Rs. 170/- as at 31st
March 2016 (Rs. 108.30 as at 31st
March 2015).
Information relating to earnings,
dividends, net assets and market value
per share is given in the Ten Year
Information section on page 154, Key
Figures and Ratios are given on pages
155 to 156 of this report.
Shareholdings
There were 1,038 registered
shareholders, holding ordinary voting
shares as at 31st March 2016 (998
registered shareholders as at 31st
March 2015). The distribution of
shareholdings including the percentage
held by the public is given on page 152
of this report.
Equitable Treatment to all Shareholders
The Company has made every
endeavour to ensure the equitable
treatment of all shareholders and has
adopted adequate measures to prevent
information asymmetry.
Substantial Shareholdings
The list of the top twenty shareholders is
given on page 153 of this report.
Information to Shareholders
The Board strives to be transparent
and provide accurate information to
shareholders in all published material.
The quarterly financial information
during the year has been sent to the
Colombo Stock Exchange in a timely
manner.
Directorate
The Board of Directors of Keells Food
Products PLC consisted of eight Directors
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who served during the year and as at the
end of the Financial Year are given below.

No other Director held office during the
period under review.

Brief Profiles of the Director's appear on
pages 44 to 45 of this Annual Report.

Mr. S C Ratnayake (Chairman)
(Non –Executive, Non-Independent)

Mr. S C Ratnayake (Chairman)
(Non –Executive, Non Independent)

Mr. R S Fernando			
(Non –Executive, Non-Independent)

Mr. A D Gunewardane 		
(Non –Executive, Non Independent)

Mr. J R Gunaratne			
(Non –Executive, Non-Independent)

Mr. J R F Peiris				
(Non –Executive, Non Independent)

Retirement of Directors by Rotation or
otherwise and their Re-election
Mr. R. Pieris and Mr. S. H. Amarasekera
PC retire by rotation in terms of Article
83 of the Articles of Association of the
Company. Mr. R. Pieris and Mr. S. H.
Amarasekera PC having served on the
Board of the Company for over nine
years have informed the Board that
they do not wish to be re-elected as
Directors at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company in
terms of Article 83 of the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Mr. J R Gunaratne			
(Non –Executive, Non Independent)
Mr. M P Jayawardena			
(Non –Executive, Independent)
Mr. S H Amarasekera PC		
(Non –Executive, Independent)
Mr. A D E I Perera			
(Non –Executive, Independent)
Mr. R Pieris				
(Non –Executive, Independent)
The Board of Directors of John Keells
Foods India (Pvt) Limited who served
during the year and as at the end of the
Financial Year are given below.

Mr. A D E I Perera who is over the
age of 70 years and who has served
the Company for over 9 years, has
notified the Company that he will not be
presenting himself for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of
the Company.

Directors’ Interests in Shares
Name of Director
Mr.S C Ratnayake - Chairman
Mr.A D Gunewardane
Mr.J R F Peiris
Mr.J R Gunaratne
Mr.M P Jayawardane
Mr.S H Amarasekara PC
Mr.A D E I Perera
Mr.R Pieris

As at 31st
March 2016
12,750
-

As at 31st
March 2015
12,750
-

Mr. M P Jayawardene having completed
his tenure as a Director of the Company
for 9 years has given notice of his
intention to resign from the Board of
Directors after the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company.
Remuneration to Directors
Directors’ remuneration is established
within a framework approved by the
Human Resources and Compensation
Committee. The Directors are of the
opinion that the framework assures
appropriateness of remuneration
and fairness for the Company. The
remuneration of the Non-Executive
Directors is determined according to
scales of payment decided upon by the
Board previously. Details of Directors’
fees and emoluments paid during the
year are disclosed in the Note 7 and
Note 33.6 to Financial Statements.
Directors’ Meetings
Details of Directors’ meetings are
presented on page 20 of this report.
Interests Register
The Company has maintained an
Interests Register as contemplated by
the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. In
compliance with the requirements of
the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 this
Annual Report contains particulars of
entries made in the Interests Register.
Particulars of entries in the Interests
Register for the Financial Year
2015/16;
a) Interests in Contracts: The Directors
have all made a General Disclosure
to the Board of Directors as permitted
by Section 192 (2) of the Companies
Act No. 7 of 2007 and no additional
interests have been disclosed by any
Director.

b) Share Dealings: There have been no
disclosures of share dealings during the
year ended 31st March 2016.
c) Indemnities and Remuneration: There
have been no new disclosures made in
respect of indemnities and remuneration
in the Interest Register for the year
ended 31st March 2016.
Directors’ Responsibility for Financial
Reporting
The Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the Financial Statements
of the Company and it’s Subsidiary to
reflect a true and fair view of the state
of its affairs. The Directors are of the
view that these Financial Statements
have been prepared in conformity
with the requirements of the Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards, Companies Act
No. 7 of 2007, Sri Lanka Accounting
and Auditing Standards Act No. 15
of 1995 and the Listing Rules of the
Colombo Stock Exchange.
Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The Company and its Subsidiary has
complied with all applicable laws and
regulations. A compliance checklist
is signed on a quarterly basis by
responsible officers and any violations
are reported to the Audit Committee and
Board of Directors.
Statutory Payments
The Directors confirm to the best of their
knowledge that all taxes, duties and
levies payable by the Group and all
contributions, levies and taxes payable
on behalf of and in respect of the
employees of the Group and all other
known statutory dues as were due and
payable by Group as at the date of the
Statement of Financial Position have
been paid or where relevant provided.

Sustainability
The Group pursues its business goals
based on a model of stakeholder
governance. Findings of the continuous
stakeholder engagements have enabled
the Company to focus on material issues
such as the conservation of natural
resources and the environment and
material issues highlighted by other
stakeholders such as the employees and
the community. These steps have been
encapsulated in a sustainability initiative
which has seen continuous progress
over the last few years.
Supplier Policy
The Company applies an overall policy
of agreeing and clearly communicating
terms of payment as part of the
commercial agreements negotiated with
suppliers, and endeavours to pay for
its purchases in accordance with these
agreed terms. As at 31st March 2016
the trade and other payables of the
Company amounted to Rs. 216 million
(Rs.235 million 2014/2015).
Research and Development
The Company has an active approach
to research and development and
recognizes the contribution that it can
make to the overall operations of the
Company. Significant expenditure has
taken place over the years and efforts
will continue to be made to introduce
new products and processes and
develop existing products and processes
to improve the operational results of the
Company.
Auditors
The Financial Statements for the year
has been audited by Messrs. Ernst
& Young Chartered Accountants.
The retiring Auditor, Messrs. Ernst &
Young has intimated their willingness
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to continue in office and a resolution
to re-appoint them as auditors and
authorising the Directors to fix their
remuneration; will be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting.
The Audit Committee reviews the
appointment of the Auditor, its
effectiveness, independence and
its relationship with the Company,
including the level of audit and nonaudit fees paid to the Auditor.
The details of fees paid to the Auditors
for the Company and its Subsidiary
are set out in Note 7 to the Financial
Statements. As far as the Directors are
aware, the Auditors have no other
relationship with the Company and it’s
Subsidiary.
Independent Auditor’s Report
The Auditor’s Report of the Financial
Statements is given on page 91 of the
Annual Report.
Approval of the Financial Statements
The audited Financial Statements were
approved by the Board of Directors on
16th May 2016.
Notice of Meeting
The Notice of Meeting relating to 34th
Annual General Meeting is given on
page 158 of the Annual Report.
This Annual Report is signed for and on
behalf of the Board of Directors by:

J R Gunaratne
Director		

J F R Peiris
Director

Keells Consultants (Pvt) Limited
Secretaries

16th May 2016
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
The powers and responsibilities of
the Audit Committee are governed by
the Audit Committee Charter which is
approved and adopted by the Board.
The terms of reference comply with
the requirements of the Corporate
Governance Rules as per Section 7.10
of the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock
Exchange (CSE). The Audit Committee’s
functions and scope are in compliance
with the requirements of the Code of
Best Practice on Audit Committee and
conducted it’s affairs in compliance with
the requirements of the Code of Best
Practice on Audit Committees.
The Committee is tasked with assisting
the Board in fulfilling its oversight
responsibility to the shareholders,
potential shareholders, the investment
community and other stakeholders in
relation to the integrity of the Financial
Statements of the Group, ensuring that
a good financial reporting system is in
place and is well managed in order to
give accurate, appropriate and timely
information, that it is in accordance with
the Company’s Act and other legislative
reporting requirements and that
adequate disclosures are made in the
Financial Statements in accordance with
the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.
The Audit Committee reviews the design
and operational effectiveness of internal
controls and implement changes where
required and ensures that the risk
management processes are effective
and adequate to identify and mitigate
risks.
The Audit Committee also ensures
that the conduct of the business is in

compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and policies of the Group.
The Audit Committee also assesses the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in the foreseeable future.
The Committee evaluates the
performance and the independence of
the Internal Auditors and the External
Auditors. The Committee is also tasked
with the responsibility of recommending
to the Board the re-appointment and
change of External Auditors and to
recommend their remuneration and
terms of engagement.
In fulfilling its purpose, it is the
responsibility of the Audit Committee
to maintain a free and open
communication with the Independent
External Auditors, the outsourced
Internal Auditors and the management
of the Company and to ensure
that all parties are aware of their
responsibilities.
The Audit Committee is empowered to
carry out any investigations it deems
necessary and review all internal control
systems and procedures, compliance
reports, risk management reports etc. to
achieve the objectives as stated above.
The Committee has reviewed and
discussed with management and Internal
and External Auditors, the audited
Financial Statements, the quarterly
unaudited Financial Statements as well
as matters relating to the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting,
key judgments and estimates in the
preparation of Financial Statements and

the processes that support certification
of the Financial Statements by the
Directors and the CFO.

Composition of the Audit
Committee

The Audit Committee is a sub-committee
of the Board of Directors appointed
by and responsible to the Board of
Directors. The Audit Committee consists
of four Independent, Non-Executive
Directors in conformity with the Listing
Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange,
who are,
•

Mr. M P Jayawardena - Chairman

•

Mr. S H Amarasekera PC

•

Mr. A D E I Perera

•

Mr. R Pieris

The Audit Committee comprises of
individuals with extensive experience
and expertise in the fields of Finance,
Corporate Management, Legal and
Marketing. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee is a Chartered Accountant.
A brief profile of each member of the
Audit Committee is given on pages 44
and 45 of this report under the Board of
Directors section.

Meetings of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee meets as often
as may be deemed necessary or
appropriate in its judgment and at
least quarterly each year. During the
year under review there were four (4)
meetings and the attendance of the
committee members are given in the
table below.
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30th
April
2015

17th
July
2015

16th
October
2015

11th
January
2016

Mr. M P Jayawardena

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Mr. S H Amarasekera PC

No

Yes

Yes

No

Mr. A D E I Perera

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

Mr. R Peiris

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Name

During the year under review, the
Audit Committee has met the Internal
Auditors to consider their reports,
management responses and matters
requiring follow up on the effectiveness
of the internal controls and audit
recommendations.
The CFO, SFC and COO attended
such meetings by invitation and
briefed the committee on specific
issues. The External Auditors and the
Internal Auditors were also invited to
attend meetings when necessary. The
proceedings of the Audit Committee are
reported to the Board of Directors by the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.
Summary of Activities during the
Financial Year
Oversight of Company and
Consolidated Financial Statements
The Committee reviewed with the
Independent External Auditors who
are responsible for expressing an
opinion on the truth and fairness of the
audited Financial Statements and their
conformity with the Sri Lanka Financial
Reporting Standards (SLFRS) and Lanka
Accounting Standards (LKAS).
The Committee also reviewed the
Accounting Policies of the Company
and such other matters as are required

88

Keells Food Products PLC
Annual Report 2015/16

to be discussed with the Independent
External Auditors in compliance with
Sri Lanka Auditing Standard 260 –
Communication of Audit Matters with
those charged with Governance. The
quarterly Financial
Statements were also reviewed by the
Committee and recommended their
adoption to the Board.
The Committee also reviewed the
process to assess the effectiveness
of the internal financial controls
that have been designed to provide
reasonable assurance to the Directors
that the Financial Reporting System
can be relied upon in preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements
of the Company and the Group.
Internal Audit
The Committee monitors the effectiveness
of the internal audit function and
is responsible for approving their
appointment or removal and for
ensuring they have adequate access to
information required to conduct their
audits.
The internal audit function of the
Company has been outsourced to
Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers (Pwc),
a firm of Chartered Accountants. The

Audit Committee has agreed with the
Internal Auditor as to the frequency of
audits to be carried out, the scope of the
audit, the areas to be covered and the
fee to be paid for their services.
The internal audit frequency depends on
the risk profile of each area, higher risk
areas being on a shorter audit cycle.
The Audit Committee is of the opinion
that the above approach provides an
optimal balance between the need to
manage risk and the costs thereof.
Risk and Control Review
The Audit Committee has reviewed the
Business Risk Management Process and
procedures adopted to manage and
mitigate the effects of such risks and
observed that the risk analysis exercise
has been conducted. The key risks that
could impact operations have been
identified and wherever necessary,
appropriate action has been taken to
mitigate their impact to the minimum
extent.
External Audit
The External Auditors of the Company
Messrs Ernst & Young Chartered
Accountants submitted a detailed audit
plan for the financial year 2015/16,
which specified, inter alia, the areas of
operations to be covered in respect of
the Company. The audit plan specified
‘areas of special emphasis’ which had
been identified from the last audit and
from a review of current operations.
The Audit Committee had meetings
with the External Auditor to review the
scope, timelines of the audit plan and
approach for the audits.

The areas of special emphasis have
been selected due to the probability
of error and the material impact it can
have on the Financial Statements. At
the conclusion of the audit, the External
Auditors met with the Audit Committee
to discuss and agree on the treatment of
any matter of concern discovered in the
course of the audit and also to discuss
the Audit Management Letters. Actions
taken by the Management in response
to the issues raised were discussed with
the Chief Operating Officer (COO).
There were no issues of significant
importance during the year under
review.
The Audit Committee also reviewed
the audit fees of the External Auditors
of the Company and recommended
its adoption by the Board. It also
reviewed the other services provided
by the Auditors in ensuring that their
independence as Auditors was not
compromised.
The Audit Committee has received a
declaration from Messrs Ernst & Young,
as required by the Companies Act No.
7 of 2007, confirming that they do
not have any relationship or interest
in the Company, which may have a
bearing on their independence within
the meaning of the Code of Conduct
and Ethics of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka.
The Audit Committee has proposed
to the Board of Directors that Messrs
Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants,
be recommended for reappointment
as Auditors of the Company for the
financial year commencing 1st April
2016, at the next Annual General
Meeting.

Compliance with Financial Reporting
and Statutory Requirements
The Audit Committee receives a
quarterly declaration from the
Operational Heads, COO and the
SFC, listing any departures from
financial reporting, statutory
requirements and Group policies.
Reported exceptions, if any, are
followed up to ensure that appropriate
corrective action has been taken.

Group’s Internal and External Auditors
have been effective and independent
throughout the period under review.

M P Jayawardena
Chairman, Audit Committee
16th May 2016

With a view of ensuring uniformity of
reporting, the Group has adopted the
standardised format of Annual Financial
Statements developed by the ultimate
Parent Company.
Support to the Committee
The Committee received excellent
support and timely information at all
times from the Management during
the year to enable them to carry out its
duties and responsibilities effectively.
Evaluation of the Committee
The Audit Committee formally evaluated
the performance of the Committee as
well as the individual contribution of
each member. Steps have been taken
to address the matters highlighted
following such evaluation.
Conclusion
The Audit Committee is satisfied that
the effectiveness of the organisational
structure of the Group in the
implementation of the accounting
policies and operational controls,
provide reasonable assurance that the
affairs of the Group are managed in
accordance with accepted policies
and that assets are properly accounted
for and adequately safeguarded. The
Committee is also satisfied that the
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITY
The responsibility of the Auditors, in
relation to the Financial Statements
prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act No. 7
of 2007, is set out in the Independent
Auditors Report on page x of the Annual
Report.
As per the provisions of the Companies
Act No. 7 of 2007 the Directors are
required to prepare, for each financial
year and place before a general
meeting, Financial Statements which
comprise of;
•

A Statement of Income, which
presents a true and fair view of the
profit or loss of the Company for the
financial year; and

•

A Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income; and

•

A Statement of Financial Position,
which presents a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at the end of the
financial year.

The Directors have ensured that, in
preparing these Financial Statements:
•

Appropriate accounting policies,
have been selected and applied in
a consistent manner and material
departures, if any have been
disclosed and explained; and

•

All applicable accounting standards
as relevant have been applied; and

•

Reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates have
been made so that the form and
substance of transactions are
properly reflected; and
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Provides the information required
by and otherwise comply with the
Companies Act and the Listing Rules
of the Colombo Stock Exchange.

obtained a certificate from the Auditors,
prior to declaring a final dividend of Rs.
8/- per share for this year to be paid on
20th May 2016.

The Directors are also required to ensure
that the Company and its Subsidiary
have adequate resources to continue
in operation to justify applying the
going concern basis in preparing these
Financial Statements.

The Directors are of the view that they
have discharged their responsibilities as
set out in this statement.

•

Further, the Directors have a
responsibility to ensure that the
Company and its Subsidiary maintains
sufficient accounting records to disclose,
with reasonable accuracy the Financial
Position of the Company and of the
Group.
The Directors are also responsible for
taking reasonable steps to safeguard
the assets of the Company and its
Subsidiary, and in this regard to
give a proper consideration to the
establishment of appropriate internal
control systems with a view to
preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities.
The Directors are required to prepare
the Financial Statements and to provide
the Auditors with every opportunity
to take whatever steps and undertake
whatever inspections they may consider
being appropriate to enable them to
give their audit opinion.
Further, as required by section 56(2) of
the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, the
Board of Directors have confirmed that
the Company, based on the information
available, satisfies the solvency test
immediately after the distribution, in
accordance with Section 57 of the
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, and has

Compliance Report

The Directors confirm that to the best
of their knowledge, all taxes, duties
and levies payable by the Company
and its Subsidiary, all contributions,
levies and taxes payable on behalf of
the employees of the Company and
its Subsidiary, and all other known
statutory dues as were due and payable
by the Company and its Subsidiary as
at the date of the Statement of Financial
Position have been paid or, where
relevant provided for except as specified
in note 34 to the Financial Statements
covering contingent liabilities.
By Order of the Board

Keells Consultants (Private) Limited
Secretaries
16 May 2016

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KEELLS FOOD PRODUCTS PLC
Report on the Financial
Statements

We have audited the accompanying
financial statements of Keells Food
Products PLC (“the Company”), and
the consolidated financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiary (“the
Group”), which comprise the statement
of financial position as at 31 March
2016, and the income statement and
comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory
information, set out on pages 98 to 151.

Board’s Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) is
responsible for the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards, and for such
internal controls as Board determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka
Auditing Standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures
to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by Board, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2016, and of its
financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements
As required by Section 163(2) of the
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, we
state the following:
a)

The basis of opinion and scope and
limitations of the audit are as stated
above.

b)

In our opinion:

•

We have obtained all the
information and explanations
that were required for the audit
and, as far as appears from our
examination, proper accounting
records have been kept by the
Company,

•

The financial statements of the
Company give a true and fair view
of its financial position as at 31
March 2016, and of its financial
performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards,
and

•

The financial statements of the
Company and the Group comply
with the requirements of section
151 and 153 of the Companies Act
No. 07 of 2007.

16 May 2016
Colombo
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INCOME STATEMENT
Group
For the year ended 31st March

Revenue

Note

2

Cost of sales

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

3,030,204,446

2,617,979,834

3,030,204,446

2,617,979,834

(2,144,470,280) (1,870,846,610) (2,144,470,280) (1,870,846,610)

Gross profit
Other operating income

3

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

4

Operating profit

885,734,166

747,133,224

885,734,166

747,133,224

4,207,779

5,587,483

4,204,588

5,587,483

(258,688,198)

(230,982,377)

(258,688,198)

(230,982,377)

(127,538,535)

(118,020,507)

(127,304,583)

(118,050,043)

(76,932,995)

(65,364,518)

(76,932,219)

(65,363,036)

426,782,217

338,353,305

427,013,754

338,325,251

Finance costs

5

(13,461,842)

(19,613,076)

(13,461,842)

(19,613,076)

Finance income

6

20,067,393

12,674,888

19,800,894

12,371,656

6,605,551

(6,938,188)

6,339,052

(7,241,420)

Net finance income/(cost)
Profit before tax

7

433,387,768

331,415,117

433,352,806

331,083,831

Tax expense

8

(98,682,248)

(70,125,643)

(98,682,248)

(70,125,643)

334,705,520

261,289,474

334,670,558

260,958,188

334,705,520

261,289,474

334,705,520

261,289,474

9

13.13

10.25

10

11.00

5.00

Profit for the year
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent

Earnings per share
Basic
Dividend per share

The accounting policies and notes as set out in pages 98 to 151 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
Group
For the year ended 31st March

Note

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

334,705,520

261,289,474

334,670,558

260,958,188

Currency translation of foreign operations

409,495

(347,071)

-

-

Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified
to profit and loss in subsequent periods

409,495

(347,071)

-

-

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to
profit and loss in subsequent periods

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit and loss in subsequent periods
Revaluation of land and buildings

17,652,327

19,591,964

17,652,327

19,591,964

Re-measurement (loss) on defined benefit plans

14.1 & 14.2
29

(7,333,673)

(5,658,343)

(7,333,673)

(5,658,343)

Income tax on other comprehensive income

8.3

464,960

(3,901,414)

464,960

(3,901,414)

Net other comprehensive income not to be
reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods

10,783,614

10,032,207

10,783,614

10,032,207

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

11,193,109

9,685,136

10,783,614

10,032,207

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

345,898,629

270,974,610

345,454,172

270,990,395

345,898,629

270,974,610

345,898,629

270,974,610

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent

The accounting policies and notes as set out in pages 98 to 151 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31st March

Note

2016
Rs

Group

2015
Rs

2016
Rs

Company

2015
Rs

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment in subsidiary
Other non-current financial assets
Other non-current assets

14
15
16
17
18

1,160,901,565
244,875,338
23,365,357
4,915,992
1,434,058,252

1,152,591,543
245,644,650
25,058,774
5,699,732
1,428,994,699

1,160,901,565
244,875,338
3,177,793
23,365,357
4,915,992
1,437,236,045

1,152,591,543
245,644,650
4,045,829
25,058,774
5,699,732
1,433,040,528

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from related parties
Other current assets
Short term investments
Cash in hand and at bank

19
20
33
21
22
23

234,181,750
307,855,998
94,028,788
38,522,364
285,561,143
18,032,772
978,182,815
2,412,241,067

224,170,315
268,356,748
87,896,845
28,338,328
263,451,559
17,295,737
889,509,532
2,318,504,231

234,181,750
307,855,998
94,028,788
37,948,118
281,143,215
17,510,544
972,668,413
2,409,904,458

224,170,315
268,356,748
87,896,845
27,741,526
258,541,404
17,117,841
883,824,679
2,316,865,207

24
25
26

1,294,815,000
279,706,889
196,616,542
1,771,138,431

1,294,815,000
230,806,984
173,184,153
1,698,806,137

1,294,815,000
277,388,553
197,233,089
1,769,436,642

1,294,815,000
228,523,610
174,210,195
1,697,548,805

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities
Employee benefit liabilities

27
28
29

83,793,599
164,624,552
69,220,419
317,638,570

133,898,398
92,046,851
59,861,198
285,806,447

83,793,599
164,624,552
69,220,419
317,638,570

133,898,398
92,046,851
59,861,198
285,806,447

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to related parties
Income tax liabilities
Current portion of borrowings
Other current liabilities
Bank overdrafts

30
33
31
27
32
23

215,615,145
5,529,361
22,371,316
49,999,999
19,513,231
10,435,014
323,464,066
2,412,241,067

235,212,839
6,226,968
49,999,999
13,791,143
28,660,698
333,891,647
2,318,504,231

215,045,939
5,529,361
22,371,316
49,999,999
19,447,617
10,435,014
322,829,246
2,409,904,458

234,831,147
6,226,968
49,999,999
13,791,143
28,660,698
333,509,955
2,316,865,207

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Stated capital
Revenue reserves
Other components of equity
Total equity

Total equity and liabilities

I certify that the Financial Statements comply with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

S R Jayaweera
Chief Financial Officer
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.
Signed for and on behalf of the board by,

J R F Peiris
Director

J R Gunaratne
Director

The accounting policies and notes as set out in pages 98 to 151 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
16th May 2016
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Group
For the year ended 31st March

Note

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

534,217,214

440,609,611

535,316,787

441,482,811

(Increase) / Decrease in inventories

(10,011,435)

(25,971,328)

(10,011,435)

(25,971,328)

(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables

(39,499,250)

(37,225,579)

(39,499,250)

(37,225,579)

(Increase) / Decrease in amounts due from related parties

(6,131,943)

(9,403,531)

(6,131,943)

(9,403,531)

(10,184,036)

(44,756)

(10,206,592)

(220,472)

783,740

(853,318)

783,740

(853,318)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before working capital changes

A

(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets
(Increase) / Decrease in other non-current assets
(Increase) / Decrease in other non-current financial assets
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase / (Decrease) in amounts due to related parties
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities

3,871,745

167,619

3,871,745

167,619

(19,597,694)

20,908,884

(19,785,208)

21,069,649

(697,607)

(1,380,712)

(697,607)

(1,380,712)

5,722,088

12,006,322

5,656,474

12,006,322

458,472,822

398,813,212

459,296,711

399,671,461

Finance income received

17,889,065

10,339,699

17,622,566

10,036,467

Finance cost paid

(13,461,842)

(19,613,076)

(13,461,842)

(19,613,076)

(3,268,271)

2,879,937

(3,268,271)

2,879,937

Cash generated from operations

(Tax paid)/ Tax refund - net of payments/ set off
Gratuity paid/ transfers

(8,739,717)

(8,614,169)

(8,739,717)

(8,614,169)

450,892,057

383,805,603

451,449,447

384,360,620

(79,675,114)

(60,707,480)

(79,675,114)

(60,707,480)

Purchase of intangible assets

(260,922)

(316,416)

(260,922)

(316,416)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

311,586

467,919

311,586

467,919

(79,624,450)

(60,555,977)

(79,624,450)

(60,555,977)

Net cash flow from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase and construction of property, plant and
equipment

Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid
Repayments of long term borrowings
Net cash flow from /(used in) financing activities
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING
Effect of exchange rate changes
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END

(280,500,000) (127,500,000) (280,500,000) (127,500,000)
(50,104,799)

(50,537,674)

(50,104,799)

(50,537,674)

(330,604,799) (178,037,674) (330,604,799) (178,037,674)
40,662,808

145,211,952

41,220,198

145,766,969

252,086,598

107,221,717

246,998,547

101,231,578

409,495

(347,071)

293,158,901

252,086,598

288,218,745

246,998,547
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Group
For the year ended 31st March

Note

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Favourable balances
Other investments

22

285,561,143

263,451,559

281,143,215

258,541,404

Cash in hand and at bank

23

18,032,772

17,295,737

17,510,544

17,117,841

23

(10,435,014)

(28,660,698)

(10,435,014)

(28,660,698)

293,158,901

252,086,598

288,218,745

246,998,547

433,387,768

331,415,117

433,352,806

331,083,831

Finance income

(20,067,393)

(12,674,888)

(19,800,894)

(12,371,656)

Finance cost

13,461,842

19,613,076

13,461,842

19,613,076

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

89,017,419

85,741,356

89,017,419

85,741,356

1,030,234

996,766

1,030,234

996,766

(311,586)

-

(311,586)

-

10,765,265

9,716,479

10,765,265

9,716,479

6,933,665

5,801,705

6,933,665

5,801,705

-

-

868,036

901,254

534,217,214

440,609,611

535,316,787

441,482,811

Unfavourable balances
Bank overdrafts
Cash and cash equivalents
Note A
Profit before working capital changes
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Amortisation of intangible assets
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Gratuity provision and related costs
Share based payment expense
Impairment of Investment in Subsidiary

The accounting policies and notes as set out in pages 98 to 151 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Group

As at 1 April 2014

Stated

Revaluation

Foreign currency

Employee share

Revenue

Total

capital

reserve

translation reserve

option reserve

reserves

equity

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

1,294,815,000

151,041,072

(678,971)

3,261,204

101,091,517

1,549,529,822

Profit for the year

-

-

-

-

261,289,474

261,289,474

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

-

14,106,214

(347,071)

-

(4,074,007)

9,685,136
270,974,610

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

-

14,106,214

(347,071)

-

257,215,467

Share based payments

-

-

-

5,801,705

-

5,801,705

First & Final dividend paid - 2013/14

-

-

-

-

(51,000,000)

(51,000,000)

(76,500,000)

(76,500,000)

1,294,815,000

165,147,286

(1,026,042)

9,062,909

230,806,984

1,698,806,137
333,837,485

Interim dividend paid -2014/2015
As at 31 March 2015
Profit for the year

-

-

-

-

334,705,520

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

-

16,089,229

409,495

-

(5,305,615)

12,061,144

Total comprehensive income

-

16,089,229

409,495

-

329,399,905

345,898,629

Share based payments

-

-

-

6,933,665

-

6,933,665

First & Final dividend paid - 2014/15

-

-

-

-

(178,500,000)

(178,500,000)

Interim dividend paid -2015/2016

-

-

-

-

(102,000,000)

(102,000,000)

1,294,815,000

181,236,515

(616,547)

15,996,574

279,706,889

1,771,138,431

As at 31 March 2016

Company

As at 1 April 2014
Profit for the year

Stated

Revaluation

Employee share

Revenue

Total

capital

reserve

Option reserve

reserves

equity

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

1,294,815,000

151,041,072

3,261,204

99,139,429

1,548,256,705

-

-

-

260,958,188

260,958,188

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

-

14,106,214

-

(4,074,007)

10,032,207

Total comprehensive income

-

14,106,214

-

256,884,181

270,990,395

Share based payments

-

-

5,801,705

-

5,801,705

First & final dividend paid - 2013/14

-

-

-

(51,000,000)

(51,000,000)

Interim dividend paid -2014/2015

-

-

-

(76,500,000)

(76,500,000)

1,294,815,000

165,147,286

9,062,909

228,523,610

1,697,548,805

Profit for the year

As at 31 March 2015

-

-

-

334,670,558

334,670,558

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

-

16,089,229

-

(5,305,615)

10,783,614
345,454,172

Total comprehensive income

-

16,089,229

-

329,364,943

Share based payments

-

-

6,933,665

-

6,933,665

First & final dividend paid - 2014/15

-

-

-

(178,500,000)

(178,500,000)

Interim dividend paid -2015/2016
As at 31 March 2016

-

-

-

(102,000,000)

(102,000,000)

1,294,815,000

181,236,515

15,996,574

277,388,553

1,769,436,642

The accounting policies and notes as set out in pages 98 to 151 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.

Corporate Information

of processed meats, crumbed
products and sale of raw meats.

Reporting entity
Keells Food Products PLC (PQ3)
is a Public Liability Company
incorporated and domiciled
in Sri Lanka and is listed in
the Colombo Stock Exchange.
The registered office of the
Company is located at No.117,
Sir Chittampalam A. Gardiner
Mawatha, Colombo 2, and the
principal place of business is at
no. 16, Minuwangoda Road,
Ekala, Ja Ela. The Company has
also a manufacturing facility at
the Makandura Industrial Estate in
Pannala.

Subsidiary
The principal activity of John
Keells Foods India Private Limited
is marketing of processed and
formed meat products.
In the report of the Directors and
in the Financial Statements “the
Company” refers to Keells Food
Products PLC. “The Group” refers
to Companies whose accounts
have been Consolidated therein.
Parent Enterprise and Ultimate
Parent Enterprise
The Company’s Parent
undertaking is John Keells
Holdings PLC. The Directors are
of the opinion that the Company’s
Ultimate Parent undertaking
and controlling party is John
Keells Holdings PLC which is
incorporated in Sri Lanka.

The issued ordinary shares of
the Company are listed on the
Colombo Stock Exchange.
Consolidated Financial
Statements
The Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 March 2016,
comprise “the Company”
referring to Keells Food Products
PLC as the Holding Company
and “the Group” referring to the
Subsidiary whose accounts have
been Consolidated therein.
Approval of Consolidated
Financial Statements
The Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Group for the
year ended 31st March 2016
were authorized for issue by the
Directors on the 16th May 2016.
Principal activities and nature of
operations
Company
During the year, the principal
activities of the Company
were manufacture and sale
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1.2

Basis Of Preparation
Bases of Measurement
The Consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared
on an accrual basis and under
the historical cost convention
except for Land and Buildings at
fair value.
Presentation and functional
currency
The Consolidated Financial
Statements are presented in
Sri Lankan Rupees, which is
the Group’s functional and
presentation currency, which
is the primary economic
environment in which the
Holding Company operates.
Each entity in the Group uses
the currency of the primary

economic environment in which
they operate as their functional
currency.
Each material class of similar
items is presented cumulatively
in the Financial Statements. Items
of dissimilar nature or function
are presented separately unless
they are immaterial as permitted
by the Sri Lanka Accounting
Standard-LKAS 1 on ‘Presentation
of Financial Statements’.
All financial information
presented in Sri Lankan Rupees
has been rounded to the nearest
rupee except when otherwise
indicated.
The significant accounting
policies are discussed in note
1.4 below.
Responsibility for Financial
Statements
The responsibility of the Board
of Directors in relation to the
Financial Statements is set out
in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibility report in the Annual
report.
Statement of Compliance
The Financial Statements
which comprise the Statement
of Financial Position, The
Statement of Income, Statement
of Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows,
together with the accounting
policies and notes (the “Financial
Statements”) have been prepared
in accordance with Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards (SLFRS/
LKAS) as issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Sri
Lanka (CA Sri Lanka) and the

requirement of the Companies Act
No. 7 of 2007.
Basis of Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial
Statements comprise the Financial
Statements of the Company and
its Subsidiary as at 31st March
2016. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed or has
right, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the
investee.
Specially, the Group controls an
investee if, and only if, the Group
has:
• Power over the investee (i.e,
existing right that give it the
current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee)
• Exposure, or right, to variable
return from its involvement with
the investee
• The ability to use its power over
the investee to affect its returns
When the Group has less than a
majority of the voting or similar
rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an
investee, including:

The Group re-assesses whether or
not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control.
Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Assets,
liabilities, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are
included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements from the
date the Group gains control until
the date the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

John Keells Foods India Private
Limited was incorporated in India
on the 7th of April 2008.

Profit or loss and each component
of Other Comprehensive Income
(OCI) are attributed to the equity
holders of the Parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

The total profits and losses for
the year of the Company and
of its Subsidiary included in
consolidation are shown in the
Consolidated Income Statement
and Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income and
all assets and liabilities of the
Company and of its Subsidiary
included in consolidation are
shown in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position.

All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are those enterprises
controlled by the parent.

• Right arising from other
contractual arrangements

The following Company has
been Consolidated under section
152 of the Companies Act No.7
of 2007, where the Company
controls the composition of
the Board of Directors of this
Company.

• The Group’s voting rights and
potential voting rights

John Keells Foods
India Private Limited

• The contractual arrangement
with the other vote holders of the
investee

Subsidiaries are fully
Consolidated from the date of
acquisition or incorporation,
being the date on which the
Group obtains control, and
continue to be Consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.
The Financial Statement of the
Subsidiary is prepared for the
same reporting period as the
Parent Company, which is 12
months ending 31st March, using
consistent accounting policies.

The Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows includes the cash
flows of the Company and the
Subsidiary.
A change in the ownership
interest of a Subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction.
If the Group loses control over a
Subsidiary, it:
• Derecognises the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary.

100%
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• Derecognises the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interest.
• Derecognises the cumulative
translation differences, recorded
in equity.
• Recognises the fair value of the
consideration received.
• Recognises the fair value of any
investment retained.
• Recognises any surplus or deficit
in profit or loss.
• Reclassifies the Parent’s share
of components previously
recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income to profit
or loss or retained earnings, as
appropriate.
Non-controlling interest which
represents the portion of profit
or loss and net assets not held
by the Group, are shown as a
component of profit for the year
in the Consolidated Income
Statement and Statement of
Comprehensive Income and
as a component of equity in
the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position, separately
from Parent’s shareholders’
equity.
1.3. Accounting Policies
1.3.1 Changes In Accounting Policies
The changes to accounting
policies adopted by the Company
and its Subsidiary are consistent
with those used in the previous
year.
Comparative information
The presentation and
classification of the Financial
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Statements of the previous years
have been amended, where
relevant for better presentation
and to be comparable with those
of the current year.
When the entity changes the
presentation or classification of
items in its Financial Statements,
the entity shall reclassify
comparative amounts unless such
reclassification is impracticable
when the entity reclassifies
comparative amounts, the entity
shall disclose:
a) The nature of the reclassification;
b) The amount of each item or class
of items that is reclassified; and
c) The reason for the reclassification.
1.3.2 Significant Accounting
Judgements, Estimates And
Assumptions
The preparation of the Financial
Statements of the Group
require the management to
make judgments, estimates
and assumptions, which may
affect the amounts of income,
expenditure, assets , liabilities
and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. In the process of
applying the Group’s accounting
policies, the key assumptions
made relating to the future and
the sources of estimation at the
reporting date together with
the related judgments that have
a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

Other disclosures relating to the
Group’s exposure to risks and
uncertainties includes:
• Capital management Note 13.4
• Financial risk management
and policies
Note 12
• Sensitivity analyses
disclosures 		

Note 14.8

Valuation of property, plant and
equipment
The Group measures land and
buildings at revalued amounts
with changes in fair value
being recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income and in the
statement of equity. The Group
engaged independent valuation
specialists to determine fair value
of land and buildings as at 31
March 2016.
The valuer has used valuation
techniques such as market
values and discounted cash
flow methods where there was
lack of comparable market data
available based on the nature of
the property. Refer Note no. 14.8
to the Financial Statement.
Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment
The Group assesses the remaining
useful lives of items of property,
plant and equipment at least
at each financial year-end. If
expectations differ from previous
estimates, the changes accounted
for as a change in an accounting
estimate in accordance with LKAS
8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or
cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use (VIU).
The fair value less costs to sell
calculation is based on available
data from an active market, in
an arm’s length transaction,
of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset.
The value in use calculation is
based on a discounted cash
flow model. The future cash
flows are derived from the
budget for the next five years
and do not include restructuring
activities that the Group is not yet
committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the
asset’s performance of the cash
generating unit being tested.
The recoverable amount is most
sensitive to the discount rate used
for the discounted cash flow
model as well as the expected
future cash inflows and the
growth rate used for extrapolation
purposes.
The key assumptions used to
determine the recoverable amount
for the different cash generating
units, are further explained in
Note 15.1
Fair value of financial instruments
Where the fair value of financial
assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the Statement of
Financial Position cannot be
derived from active markets, their
fair value is determined using
valuation techniques including the
discounted cash flow model. The

inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where
possible.

timing and the level of future
taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies.

Where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgment is required
in establishing fair values. The
judgments include considerations
of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes
in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments refer
in Note 11

The Group has tax losses carried
forward amounting to Rs.130.2
million (2014/15 - Rs. 242.5
million).

Taxes
Uncertainties with respect to the
interpretation of complex tax
regulations and the amount and
timing of future taxable income.
Given the wide range of business
relationships and the longterm nature and complexity of
existing contractual agreements,
differences arising between the
actual results and the assumptions
made, or future changes to such
assumptions, could necessitate
future adjustments to tax income
and expense already recorded.
Where the final tax outcome of
such matters is different from
the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will
impact the income and deferred
tax amounts in the period in
which the determination is made.
Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgment is required
to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely

Further details on taxes are
disclosed in Note 8
Employee Benefit Liability
The employee benefit liability of
the Company is based on the
actuarial valuation carried out by
Messrs. Actuarial & Management
Consultants (Pvt) Ltd., actuaries.
The actuarial valuations involve
making assumptions about
discount rates and future salary
increases. The complexity of
the valuation, the underlying
assumptions and its long term
nature, the defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date. Details of the key
assumptions used in the estimates
are contained in Note 29.
1.4

Summary Of Significant
Accounting Policies
1.4.1 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the
extent that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow
to the Group, and the revenue
and associated costs incurred or
to be incurred can be reliably
measured. Revenue is measured at
the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of trade
discounts and value added taxes.
After eliminating sales within the
Group.
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The following specific criteria are
used for recognition of revenue:
Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognised when the significant
risk and rewards of ownership
of the goods have passed to the
buyer with the Group retaining
neither a continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor
an effective control over the
goods sold.
Turnover based taxes
Turnover based taxes include
value added tax and nation
building tax. Companies in
the Group pay such taxes in
accordance with the respective
statutes.
Finance income
For all financial instruments
measured at amortised cost and
interest bearing financial assets
classified as available for sale,
interest income or expense is
recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR), which is the
rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset
or liability. Interest income is
included in finance income in the
Income Statement.
Gains and losses
Net gains and losses of a
revenue nature arising from the
disposal of property, plant and
equipment and other non-current
assets, including investments,
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are accounted for in the Income
Statement, after deducting from
the proceeds on disposal, the
carrying amount of such assets
and the related selling expenses.
Gains and losses arising from
activities incidental to the main
revenue generating activities and
those arising from a Group of
similar transactions, which are
not material are aggregated,
reported and presented on a net
basis.
Other income
Other income is recognised on an
accrual basis.
1.4.2 Expenditure recognition
Expenses are recognised in the
Income Statement on the basis
of a direct association between
the cost incurred and the earning
of specific items of income.
All expenditure incurred in the
running of the business and in
maintaining the property, plant
and equipment in a state of
efficiency has been charged to
the Income Statement.
For the purpose of presentation
of the Income Statement, the
“function of expenses” method
has been adopted, on the basis
that it presents fairly the elements
of the Group’s performance.
Finance cost
Finance cost comprises of interest
expense on borrowings that
are recognized in the Income
Statement.
Interest expense is recorded as it
accrues using the effective interest
rate (EIR), which is the rate that

exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments through
the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial
liability.
Borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an
asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost
of the respective assets. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in
the period they occur. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other
costs that the Group incurs in
connection with the borrowing of
funds.
1.4.3 Tax
Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities
for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date.
Current income tax relating
to items recognised directly in
equity is recognised in equity
and for items recognized in
Other Comprehensive Income
shall be recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income and
not in the Income Statement.
Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in
the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable
tax regulations are subject to

interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using
the liability method on temporary
differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for all taxable
temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and
unused tax credits and tax losses
carried forward, to the extent
that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary
differences and the unused tax
credits and tax losses carried
forward can be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred
tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed
at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that
future taxable profit will allow
the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured at tax rates that
are expected to apply to the year
when the asset is realised or
liability is settled, based on the

tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively
enacted as at the reporting date.
Deferred tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognised
in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in Other
Comprehensive Income or directly
in Equity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when
the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
Tax benefits acquired as part of
a business combination, but not
satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, would
be recognised subsequently if
new information about facts
and circumstances changed.
The adjustment would either be
treated as a reduction to goodwill
(as long as it does not exceed
goodwill) if it is incurred during
the measurement period or in
profit or loss.
Sales tax
Revenues, expenses and assets
are recognised net of the amount
of sales tax except:
• Where the sales tax incurred on a
purchase of a assets or services is
not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the sales
tax is recognised as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or
as part of the expense item as
applicable and

• Receivables and payables that
are stated with the amount of
sales tax included.
The net amount of sales tax
recoverable from, or payable to,
the taxation authority is included
as part of receivables or payables
in the Statement of Financial
Position.
Current versus non-current
classification
The Group presents assets and
liabilities in Statement of Financial
Position based on current/noncurrent classification. An asset as
current when it is:
• expected to be realised or
intended to be sold or consumed
in normal operating cycle
• held primarily for the purpose of
trading
• expected to be realised within
twelve months after the reporting
period, or
• cash or cash equivalent unless
restricted from being exchanged
or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the
reporting period
All other assets are classified as
non-current.
A liability is current when:
• it is expected to be settled in
normal operating cycle
• it is held primarily for the
purpose of trading
• it is due to be settled within
twelve months after the reporting
period, or
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• there is no unconditional right to
defer the settlement of the liability
for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
The Group classifies all other
liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are classified as non-current
assets and liabilities accordingly.
Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial
instruments such as non-financial
assets at fair value at each
reporting date. Fair value
related disclosures for financial
instruments and non-financial
assets that are measured at fair
value or where fair values are
disclosed are summarised in the
following notes:
• Disclosures for valuation methods,
significant estimates and
assumptions
Note 14
• Quantitative disclosures of
fair value measurement
hierarchy 		
Note 14
• Property, plant and
equipment under
revaluation model

Note 14

• Financial instruments
(including those carried
at amortised cost)
Note 11
Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between
market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the
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liability takes place either:
• In the principal market for the
asset or liability, or
• In the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most
advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market
participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a
non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's
ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
The Group uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising
the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for
which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the Financial
Statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a
whole:

• Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted)
market prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities
• Level 2 — Valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable
• Level 3 — Valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
For assets and liabilities that
are recognised in the Financial
Statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
The Group and the Company
management determines the
policies and procedures for both
recurring fair value measurement,
such as investment properties
and unquoted AFS financial
assets, and for non-recurring
measurement, such as assets held
for distribution in discontinued
operations.
External valuers are involved
for valuation of significant
assets, land and buildings,
and significant liabilities, such
as contingent consideration.
Involvement of external valuers
is decided upon annually by the
Group after discussion with and
approval by the Company’s Audit
Committee. Selection criteria

include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and
whether professional standards
are maintained. After discussions
with the Group’s external valuers,
which valuation techniques and
inputs to use for each case are
determined.
At each reporting date, the
Group analyses the movements in
the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be
remeasured or re-assessed as per
the Group’s accounting policies.
For this analysis, the Group
verifies the major inputs applied
in the latest valuation by agreeing
the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and
other relevant documents.
The Group, in conjunction with
the Group’s external valuers, also
compares the change in the fair
value of each asset and liability
with relevant external sources to
determine whether the change is
reasonable.
For the purpose of fair value
disclosures, the Group has
determined classes of assets
and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks
of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.
1.4.4 Property, plant and equipment
Basis of recognition
Property, plant and equipment
are recognized if it is probable
that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow
to the Group and the cost of the
asset can be reliably measured.

Basis of measurement
Plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any
accumulated impairment loss.
Such cost includes the cost of
replacing component parts of
the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met.
When significant parts of plant
and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group
derecognises the replaced part,
and recognises the new part with
its own associated useful life and
depreciation. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed,
its cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied.
All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in the
Income Statement as incurred.
The present value of the expected
cost for the decommissioning of
the asset after its use is included
in the cost of the respective asset
if the recognition criteria for a
provision are met.
Land and buildings are measured
at fair value less accumulated
depreciation on buildings and
impairment charged subsequent
to the date of the revaluation.
The carrying values of property,
plant and equipment are
reviewed for impairment
when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

Where land and buildings are
subsequently revalued, the entire
class of such assets is revalued
at fair value on the date of
revaluation. The Group has
adopted a policy of revaluing
Land and Building at least once
every 5 years.
Any revaluation surplus
is recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income and
accumulated in Equity in the
asset revaluation reserve, except
to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same
asset previously recognised in the
Income Statement, in which case
the increase is recognised in the
Income Statement. A revaluation
deficit is recognised in the Income
Statement, except to the extent
that it offsets an existing surplus
on the same asset recognised in
the asset revaluation reserve.
Accumulated depreciation as at
the revaluation date is eliminated
against the gross carrying amount
of the asset and the net amount is
restated to the revalued amount
of the asset. Upon disposal, any
revaluation reserve related to
the particular asset being sold is
transferred to retained earnings.
Derecognition
An item of property, plant and
equipment is derecognised upon
replacement, disposal or when
no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset is included in the
Income Statement in the year the
asset is derecognised.
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Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated by
using a straight-line method
on the cost or valuation of all
property, plant and equipment,
other than freehold land, in order
to write off such amounts over the
estimated useful economic life of
such assets.
Depreciation commences in the
month following the purchase/
commissioning of the assets and
ceases in the month of disposal/
scrapped.
The estimated useful life of assets
is as follows:
Assets

Years

Buildings on Freehold Land
Buildings on
Leasehold Land

31
31-10

Plant and machinery

20 – 10

Computer Equipment

5-4

Furniture and fittings

8

Motor vehicles

5

Freezers

10 -12

Office Equipment

6

Other equipment

2

The assets residual values and
useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each
financial year end.
1.4.5 Leases
The determination of whether an
arrangement is, or contains, a
lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception
date, whether fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets or
the arrangement conveys a right
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to use the asset, even if that right
is not explicitly specified in an
arrangement.
For arrangement entered into
prior to 1 April 2011, the date
of inception is deemed to be 1
April 2012 in accordance with
the SLFRS 1. A leased asset is
depreciated over the useful life
of the asset. However, if there is
no reasonable certainty that the
Company will obtain ownership
by the end of the lease term,
the asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated useful life
of the asset and the lease term.

and the cost of the asset can be
reliably measured.
Basis of measurement
Intangible assets acquired
separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The
cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is
the fair value as at the date of
acquisition.
Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried
at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Operating leases
Leases, where the lessor
effectively retains substantially
all the risks and benefits of
ownership over the terms of the
lease, are classified as operating
leases.

Internally generated intangible
assets, excluding capitalised
development costs, are not
capitalised, and expenditure
is charged against Income
Statement in the year in which the
expenditure is incurred.

Lease payments are recognized
as an expense in the Income
Statement on a straight line basis
over the terms of the leases.

Useful economic lives,
amortization and impairment

1.4.6 Leasehold property
Prepaid lease rentals paid to
acquire land use rights are
amortised over the lease term in
accordance with the pattern of
benefits provided.
Details of the Leasehold Property
are given in Note 35 to the
Financial Statements.
1.4.7 Intangible assets
Basis of recognition
An Intangible asset is recognised
if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with
the asset will flow to the Group

The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed as either
finite or indefinite lives.
Intangible assets with finite lives
are amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite
useful life is reviewed at least
at each financial year-end
and such changes are treated
as accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives
is recognised in the Income
Statement.

Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are not amortized but
tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when an
indication of impairment exists
either individually or at the cashgenerating unit level. The useful
life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether indefinite
life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change
in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis.
Purchased software
Purchased software is recognised
as intangible assets and is
amortised on a straight line basis
over its useful life.
Software license
Software license costs are
recognised as an intangible asset
and amortised over the period of
expected future usage of related
ERP systems.
A summary of the policies
applied to the Group’s intangible
assets is as follows.

Statement when the asset is
derecognised.
1.4.8 Business combinations & goodwill
Acquisitions are accounted for
using the acquisition method of
accounting. The Group measures
goodwill at the acquisition
date as the fair value of the
consideration transferred less the
recognised amount (generally fair
value) of the identifiable assets
acquired, all measured as of the
acquisition date.
Transaction costs, that the
Group incurs in connection with
a business combination are
expensed as incurred.
Goodwill is initially measured
at cost being the excess of the
consideration transferred over
the Company’s identifiable assets
acquired. If this consideration is
lower than the fair value of the
acquired assets, the difference
is recognised in the Income
Statement.
After initial recognition, goodwill
is measured at cost less any

Intangible

Useful life

Acquired/ Internally Impairment testing
generated

Purchased
Software

5-4 years

Acquired

Software
License

5-4 years

Acquired

Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the
difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in the Income

When indicators of impairment
arise. The amortization
method is reviewed at each
financial year end.

accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is reviewed for
impairment, annually or more
frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the
carrying value maybe impaired.

For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to
the Group’s cash generating unit
that is expected to benefit from
the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities
of the acquiree are assigned to
those units.
Impairment is determined by
assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to
which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit is less
than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised.
The impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis to
reduce the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit.
Where goodwill forms part of
a cash-generating unit and part
of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or
loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this
circumstance is measured based
on the relative values of the
operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.
1.4.9 Foreign currency translation
Foreign currency transactions and
balances
The Group’s Financial Statements
are presented in Sri Lanka rupees,
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which is the Group’s functional
and presentation currency.
The functional currency is the
currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entities
of the Group operate.
All foreign exchange transactions
are converted to functional
currency, at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the time the
transactions are effected.
Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency
are retranslated to functional
currency equivalents at the spot
exchange rate prevailing at the
reporting date.
Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities are translated using
exchange rates that existed when
the values were determined.
The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items
is recognised in line with the gain
or loss of the item that gave rise
to the translation difference.
Foreign operations
The Statement of Financial
Position and Income Statement of
the overseas Subsidiary which is
deemed to be foreign operation
is translated to Sri Lanka
rupees at the rate of exchange
prevailing as at the reporting
date and at the average annual
rate of exchange for the period
respectively.
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The exchange differences arising
on the translation are taken
directly to Other Comprehensive
Income. On disposal of a foreign
entity, the deferred cumulative
amount recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income relating to
that particular foreign operation
is recognised in the Income
Statement.
Any goodwill arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation
subsequent to 1 April 2012 and
any fair value adjustments to
the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on the
acquisition are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the
closing rate.
Prior to 1 April 2012, the date
of transition to SLFRS/LKAS,
the Group treated goodwill
and any fair value adjustments
to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on

		
		
		
		
Indian rupee

the acquisition as assets and
liabilities of the Parent. Therefore,
those assets and liabilities are
non-monetary items already
expressed in the functional
currency of the Parent and no
further translation differences
occur.
During the year the extent of
fluctuation in the Sri Lankan
Rupee exchange rate to the
Indian Rupee can be observed
by looking at the two extremes
in the exchange rates that
prevailed during the year
which is the highest and lowest
rate set during the year. This
is especially important when
deducing the potential foreign
currency translation impact that
could affect the Group’s Financial
Statements.
The exchange rates applicable
during the period were as
follows:

Statement of Financial Position
Closing rate
2015/16
2014/15
Rs
Rs
2.22

2.13

Income Statement
Average rate
2015/16
2014/15
Rs
Rs
2.13

1.4.10 Impairment of non-financial assets
Further disclosures relating to impairment of non-financial assets are also
provided in the following notes:
• Intangible assets

Note 15

• Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives

Note 15

2.14

The Group assesses at each
reporting date whether there
is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for
an asset is required, the Group
makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s or cash generating
unit’s fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use and is
determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from
other assets or Groups of assets.
Where the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent
market transactions are taken into
account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated
by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded
companies or other available fair
value indicators.
The Group bases its impairment
calculation on detailed budgets
and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for each
of the Group’s CGUs to which the

individual assets are allocated.
These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a
period of five years. For longer
periods, a long-term growth rate
is calculated and applied to
project future cash flows after the
fifth year.
Impairment losses of continuing
operations, including impairment
on inventories, are recognised
in the Income Statement, in
expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired
asset, except for properties
previously revalued with the
revaluation taken to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income. For
such properties, the impairment
is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income up
to the amount of any previous
revaluation.
For assets excluding goodwill,
an assessment is made at each
reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment
losses no longer exist or have
decreased. If such indication
exists, the Group estimates the
asset’s or CGU’s recoverable
amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited
so that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset

in prior years. Such reversal
is recognised in the Income
Statement unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in
which case, the reversal is treated
as a revaluation increase.
Goodwill
Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually and when circumstances
indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired.
Impairment is determined for
goodwill by assessing the
recoverable amount of each
cash-generating unit (or Group of
cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than their
carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. Impairment
losses relating to goodwill cannot
be reversed in future periods.
1.4.11 Financial instruments — initial
recognition and subsequent
measurement
Financial assets
Initial recognition and
measurement of financial assets
within the scope of LKAS 39
are classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments,
available-for-sale financial assets,
or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.
The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.
All financial assets are recognised
initially at fair value plus, in the
case of assets not at fair value
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through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.
Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace
(regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the
asset.
The Group’s financial assets
include cash and short-term
deposits, trade and other
receivables, loans and other
receivables.
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of
financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement,
such financial assets are
subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method (EIR), less
impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the Income
Statement. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in
the Income Statement in finance
costs.
Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where
applicable a part of a financial
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asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised
when:
• The rights to receive cash flows
from the asset have expired
• The Group has transferred its
rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and
either
(a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the
asset.
When the Group has transferred
its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement,
and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of it, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement in
it.
In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group
has retained.
Continuing involvement that
takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is

measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
Impairment of financial assets
Further disclosures relating to
impairment of financial assets are
also provided in the following
notes:
• Trade receivables

Note 20

The Group assesses at each
reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be
impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an
incurred ‘loss event’) and that
loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may
include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and where
observable data indicate that
there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at
amortised cost
For financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets
that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually
significant. If the Company
determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of
impairment.
If there is objective evidence that
an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference
between the assets carrying
amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future expected credit
losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. If a
loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the

amount of the loss is recognised
in the Income Statement. Interest
income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.
The interest income is recorded
as part of finance income in
the Income Statement. Loans
together with the associated
allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group. If, in
a subsequent year, the amount
of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because
of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance
account. If a future write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is
credited to finance costs in the
Income Statement.
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and
measurement
Financial liabilities within the
scope of LKAS 39 are classified
as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of
its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.
All financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and

borrowings, carried at amortised
cost. This includes directly
attributable transaction costs.
The Group’s financial liabilities
include trade and other payables,
bank overdrafts, loans and
borrowings.
Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial
liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:
Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest
bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. Gains
and losses are recognised in
the Income Statement when the
liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective
interest rate method (EIR)
amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortisation is included
in finance costs in the Income
Statement.
Derecognition
A financial liability is
derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such

111

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in
the Income Statement.
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial
liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the
Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position if, and only if,
there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
Fair value of financial instruments
For financial instruments not
traded in an active market, the
fair value is determined using
appropriate valuation techniques.
Such techniques may include
using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the
current fair value of another
instrument that is substantially
the same; a discounted cash
flow analysis or other valuation
models.
1.4.12 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the
lower of cost and net realizable
value. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price less
estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
The costs incurred in bringing
inventories to its present location
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and condition, are accounted for as follows:
Raw Materials

Actual Cost

Manufactured
Finished Goods

At the actual cost of direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of fixed overheads.

Work in Progress

At the cost of direct material (excluding packing material)
and an appropriate proportion of direct labour of fixed
production overheads based on percentage completed.

Finished Goods
Purchased

At actual cost on weighted average basis.

Spares

At actual cost on weighted average basis.

Other Inventories

At actual cost.

1.4.13 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and short-term deposits in
the Statement of Financial Position
comprise cash at banks and on
hand and short-term deposits with
a maturity of three months or less.
For the purpose of the Cash
Flow Statement, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits as defined
above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts.
1.4.14 Employee share option plan
In accounting for employee
remuneration in the form of
shares, SLFRS 2- Share Based
Payments, is effective for the
company, from the financial year
beginning 2013/14.
Employees receive remuneration
in the form of share-based
payment transactions, whereby
employees render services
as consideration for equity
instruments (equity-settled
transactions). The cost of the
employee services received in

respect of the shares or share
options granted is recognised in
the Income Statement over the
period that employees provide
services, from the time when
the award is granted up to the
vesting date of the options. The
overall cost of the award is
calculated using the number of
share options expected to vest
and the fair value of the options
at the date of grant.
The employee remuneration
expense resulting from the
John Keells Group’s Employees
share option (ESOP) scheme to
the employees of Keells Food
Products PLC is recognized in
the Income Statements of the
Company. This transaction does
not result in a cash outflow and
the expense recognised is met
with a corresponding equity
reserve increase, thus having
no impact on the Statement of
Financial Position (SOFP). The
fair value of the options granted
is determined by using an option
pricing model.

Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled
transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding
increase in other capital reserves
in equity, over the period in which
the performance and service
conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions
at each reporting date until the
vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately
vest. The Income Statement
expense or credit for a period
represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that
period and is recognised in the
share based payment plan Note
26.3.

of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of
modification.
Where an equity-settled award
is cancelled, it is treated as
if it vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award
is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the entity or the
employee are not met. However,
if a new award is substituted
for the cancelled award, and
designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled award
and the new award are treated
as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

No expense is recognised for
awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled
transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or
non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective
of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all
other performance and service
conditions are satisfied.

1.4.15 Defined benefit plan - gratuity
The liability recognised in the
Statement of Financial Position is
the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the reporting
date using the Projected Unit
Credit Method. Any actuarial
gains or losses arising are
recognised immediately in
Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Where the terms of an equitysettled transaction award are
modified, the minimum expense
recognised is the expense as if
the terms had not been modified,
if the original terms of the award
are met. An additional expense is
recognised for any modification
that increases the total fair value

1.4.16 Defined contribution plan Employees' Provident Fund and
Employees' Trust Fund
Employees are eligible for
Employees’ Provident Fund
contributions and Employees’
Trust Fund contributions in line
with respective statutes and
regulations. The Company

contributes the defined
percentages of gross emoluments
of employees to an approved
Employees’ Provident Fund and
to the Employees’ Trust Fund
respectively, which are externally
funded.
1.4.17 Provisions, contingent assets and
contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised
when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Where
the Group expects some or all
of a provision to be reimbursed,
for example under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset
but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain. The expense
relating to any provision is
presented in the Income Statement
net of any reimbursement.
If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions
are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, where
appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. Where discounting is
used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.
All contingent liabilities are
disclosed as a note to the
Financial Statements unless the
outflow of resources is remote.
A contingent liability recognised
in a business combination is
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initially measured at its fair value.
Subsequently, it is measured at
the higher of:
• The amount that would be
recognised in accordance
with the general guidance for
provisions above (LKAS 37) or
• The amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance
with the guidance for revenue
recognition (LKAS 18)
Contingent assets are disclosed,
where inflow of economic benefit
is probable.
1.5

Sri Lanka Accounting Standards
(SLFRS/LKAS) Issued but not yet
Effective
Standards issued but not yet
effective up to the date of
issuance of the Group’s Financial
Statements are listed below.
This listing is of standards and
interpretations issued, which the
Group reasonably expects to be
applicable at a future date. The
Group intends to adopt those
standards when they become
effective.
a) SLFRS 9 -Financial Instruments:
Classification and Measurement
				
SLFRS 9, reflects the first phase of
work on replacement of LKAS 39
and applies to classification and
measurement of financial assets
and liabilities.
This standard was originally
effective for annual period
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commencing on or after 01
January 2018 However the
effective date has been deferred
subsequently.
b) SLFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral
Accounts 				
SLFRS 14 is an interim standard
which provides relief for first time
-adopters of SLFRS in relation
to the accounting for certain
balances that arise from rateregulated activities (‘regulatory
deferral accounts’). The standard
permits these entities to continue
to apply their previous GAAP
accounting policies for the
recognition, measurement,
impairment and de-recognition of
regulatory deferral accounts.
SLFRS 14 is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016.
c) SLFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers
SLFRS 15 establishes a new
five-step model that will apply to
revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under SLFRS
15 revenue is recognised at
an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services
to a customer. The principles
in SLFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach to measuring
and recognizing revenue.
The new revenue standard is
applicable to all entities and will
supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under

SLFRS. Either a full or modified
retrospective application is
required for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January
2017 with early adoption
permitted. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of SLFRS
15 and plans to adopt the new
standard on the required effective
date. The following amendments
and improvements are not
expected to have a significant
impact on the Company’s/
Group’s Consolidated Financial
Statements.
• Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
(Amendments to SLFRS 11).
• Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation (Amendments to
LKAS 16 and LKAS 38).
• Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements
(Amendments to LKAS 27).
• Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
(Amendments to SLFRS 10 and
LKAS 28).
• Annual Improvements to SLFRSs
2012–2014 Cycle – various
standards.
• Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception
(Amendments to SLFRS 10, SLFRS
12 and LKAS 28).
• Disclosure Initiative (Amendments
to LKAS 1).

1.6

Segment Information
Operating segments
The Group’s internal organisation
and management is structured
based on individual products
and services which are similar in
nature and process and where
the risk and return are similar.
There are two segments identified
as Manufacturing and Trading,
these operating segments are
monitored and strategic decisions
are made on the basis of each
segment’s operating results.
The measurement policies the
Company uses for segment
reporting under SLFRS 8 are
the same as those used in its
Financial Statements.
The activities of each of the
reported business segments of the
Group are detailed in Note 2.1.
Segment information
Segment information has been
prepared in conformity with the
Accounting Policies adopted
for preparing and presenting
the Financial Statements of the
Group.
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Group

For the year ended 31st March

2

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Revenue
Revenue

3,030,204,446 2,617,979,834 3,030,204,446 2,617,979,834

Value Added Tax of Rs. 332,298,223/- (2014/15 Rs. 305,033,771/-) has been deducted in arriving at the revenue of the
Group and the Company.
2016

For the year ended 31st March
2.1

2015

Manufacturing

Trading

Total

Manufacturing

Trading

Total

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Business Segment Analysis -Group
Revenue
Segment Results

2,873,788,436

156,416,010 3,030,204,446 2,489,947,589

128,032,245 2,617,979,834

841,268,468

44,465,698

885,734,166

716,572,186

30,561,038

747,133,224

4,207,779

-

4,207,779

5,587,483

-

5,587,483

Selling and distribution expenses

(258,688,198)

-

(258,688,198)

(230,982,377)

-

(230,982,377)

Administrative expenses

(127,538,535)

-

(127,538,535)

(118,020,507)

-

(118,020,507)

(76,932,995)

-

(76,932,995)

(65,364,518)

-

(65,364,518)

382,316,519

44,465,698

426,782,217

307,792,267

30,561,038

338,353,305

Other operating income

Other operating expenses
Operating profit
Finance costs

(13,461,842)

-

(13,461,842)

(19,613,076)

-

(19,613,076)

Finance income

20,067,393

-

20,067,393

12,674,888

-

12,674,888

6,605,551

-

6,605,551

(6,938,188)

-

(6,938,188)

Profit before tax

388,922,070

44,465,698

433,387,768

300,854,079

30,561,038

331,415,117

Segment Assets

2,144,859,297

Net finance income/(cost)

25,113,724 2,169,973,021 2,051,028,855

25,207,330 2,076,236,185

Segment Liabilities

475,209,275

1,268,809

476,478,084

523,073,280

4,577,963

527,651,243

Goodwill

242,268,046

-

242,268,046

242,268,046

-

242,268,046

Deferred tax liabilities

164,624,552

-

164,624,552

92,046,851

-

92,046,851

79,675,114

-

79,675,114

60,707,480

-

60,707,480

260,922

-

260,922

316,416

-

316,416

89,017,419

-

89,017,419

85,741,356

-

85,741,356

1,030,234

-

1,030,234

996,766

-

996,766

10,765,265

-

10,765,265

9,716,479

-

9,716,479

Purchase and construction of PPE
Addition to IA
Depreciation of PPE
Amortisation of IA
Gratuity provision and related costs
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2.1.1 Subsidiary revenues, other income and expenses have been eliminated on consolidation
2.1.2 Segment assets does not include goodwill arising from the business combination.
2.1.3 Non current assets have not been allocated to the trading segment.
Group
For the year ended 31st March
2.2

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

3,029,970,119

2,608,941,176

3,029,970,119

2,608,941,176

234,327

9,038,658

234,327

9,038,658

3,030,204,446

2,617,979,834

3,030,204,446

2,617,979,834

Geographical segment analysis (by location of
customers)
Sri Lanka
Others
Total revenue

Group
For the year ended 31st March

3

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Exchange gain

760,478

241,226

760,478

241,226

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

311,586

-

311,586

-

-

613,190

-

613,190

3,135,715

4,733,067

3,132,524

4,733,067

4,207,779

5,587,483

4,204,588

5,587,483

Other Operating Income

Unclaimed Dividend
Sundry income

4

Company

Other Operating Expenses
Other operating expenses includes Nation Building Tax of Rs. 55,033,999/- for the year ended 31st March 2016
(2014/2015 Rs.43,391,405/-) for the Group and the Company.
Group
For the year ended 31st March

5

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Long term

13,375,656

19,547,060

13,375,656

19,547,060

Short term

86,186

66,016

86,186

66,016

13,461,842

19,613,076

13,461,842

19,613,076

Finance Cost
Interest expense on borrowings
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Group
For the year ended 31st March

6

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

16,095,619

8,703,512

15,829,120

8,400,280

3,971,774

3,971,376

3,971,774

3,971,376

20,067,393

12,674,888

19,800,894

12,371,656

Finance Income
Interest income
Finance income from other financial instruments

Finance Income from financial instruments includes notional interest pertaining to executive staff loans granted.
Group
For the year ended 31st March

7

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

8,400,000

7,875,000

8,400,000

7,875,000

716,108

752,630

596,408

696,450

940,194

953,569

79,500

138,031

Defined benefit plan cost - Gratuity

10,765,265

9,716,479

10,765,265

9,716,479

Defined contribution plan cost - EPF and ETF

29,325,315

25,711,793

29,325,315

25,711,793

321,526,374

271,739,002

321,526,374

271,739,002

89,017,419

85,741,355

89,017,419

85,741,355

Amortisation of intangible assets

1,030,234

996,766

1,030,234

996,766

Operating lease payments

1,031,989

615,368

1,031,989

615,368

Donations

2,912,693

2,160,000

2,912,693

2,160,000

-

-

868,035

901,254

Profit Before Tax
Profit before Income Tax is stated after charging
all expenses including the following;
Remuneration to Non Executive Directors
Auditors’ Fees and expenses - Audit Service
- Non Audit Service
Costs of defined employee benefits

Staff expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Impairment of Investment in subsidiary
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Group
For the year ended 31st March

8

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

25,639,587

-

25,639,587

-

25,639,587

-

25,639,587

-

73,042,661

70,125,643

73,042,661

70,125,643

98,682,248

70,125,643

98,682,248

70,125,643

Tax Expense
Current income tax
Income Tax

8.1

Deferred Tax
Relating to origination and reversal of
temporary differences

8.3

Applicable Rates of Income Tax
The Tax Liability of the Company is Computed at the Standard Rate of 28% (2014/15 -28%) and for qualified exports at
the rate of 12% (2014/15 - 12%).
Group
For the year ended 31st March
8.1

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Profit before tax

433,387,768

331,415,186

433,352,806

331,083,831

Exempted profit

(1,841)

(69)

(1,841)

(69)

(34,962)

(331,355)

-

-

Adjusted accounting profit chargeable
to income taxes

433,350,965

331,083,762

433,350,965

331,083,762

Disallowable expenses

123,787,121

111,942,815

123,787,121

111,942,815

Allowable expenses

(236,747,870)

(319,049,706)

(236,747,870)

(319,049,706)

Utilization of tax losses

(112,136,576)

(43,391,905)

(112,136,576)

(43,391,905)

Qualifying payment deductions

(115,760,484)

(80,584,966)

(115,760,484)

(80,584,966)

92,493,156

-

92,493,156

-

25,445,713

-

25,445,713

-

193,874

-

193,874

-

25,639,587

-

25,639,587

-

Reconciliation between current tax
charge and the accounting profit

Other consolidated adjustments

Taxable income
Income tax charged at
Standard rate of 28%
Other concessionary rates
Current tax charge
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Group
For the year ended 31st March
8.2

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Adjusted accounting profit chargeable
to income taxes

433,350,965

331,083,762

433,350,965

331,083,762

Tax effect on chargeable profits

119,900,109

92,703,473

119,900,109

92,703,473

4,097,038

4,330,495

4,097,038

4,330,495

(159,703)

(835,694)

(159,703)

(835,694)

(32,012,476)

(26,072,631)

(32,012,476)

(26,072,631)

6,857,280

-

6,857,280

-

98,682,248

70,125,643

98,682,248

70,125,643

Reconciliation between tax expense
and the product of accounting profit

Tax effect on non deductible expenses
Tax effect on gratuity transfers
Tax effect on deductions claimed
Under/(over) provision of deferred tax
for previous years
Tax expense

Group
For the year ended 31st March
8.3

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

41,506,810

58,284,557

41,506,811

58,284,557

(353,063)

(308,647)

(353,063)

(308,647)

Reversal arising from utilization of tax losses

31,888,914

12,149,733

31,888,913

12,149,733

Deferred tax charge

73,042,661

70,125,643

73,042,661

70,125,643

Actuarial loss

(2,028,058)

(1,584,336)

(2,028,058)

(1,584,336)

Revaluation of building to fair value

1,563,098

5,485,750

1,563,098

5,485,750

(464,960)

3,901,414

(464,960)

3,901,414

72,577,701

74,027,057

72,577,701

74,027,057

Deferred tax expense
Income statement
Deferred tax expense arising from;
Accelerated depreciation for tax
purposes
Employee benefit liability

Other comprehensive income
Deferred tax expense arising from;

Total deferred tax charge
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Group
For the year ended 31st March
8.4

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

242,564,466

285,978,217

242,564,466

285,978,217

(142,731)

(21,846)

(142,731)

(21,846)

-

-

-

-

(112,136,577)

(43,391,905)

(112,136,577)

(43,391,905)

130,285,158

242,564,466

130,285,158

242,564,466

Cost of approved
investment

Relief claimed
on investments

Relief forgone

Rs

Rs

Rs

Tax losses carried forward
Tax losses brought forward
Adjustments on finalisation of liability
Tax losses arising during the year
Utilisation of tax losses

Year of
Investment
8.5

Company

Details of investment relief
2012/13

2012/13

114,432,990

39,464,193

74,968,797

2013/14

2012/13

114,432,988

31,904,465

82,528,523

2014/15

2012/13

114,432,988

80,793,093

33,639,895

2015/16

2012/13

114,432,988

114,432,988

-

457,731,954

266,594,739

191,137,215

The Company is eligible for qualifying payment relief granted under Section 34(2)(s) of the Inland Revenue Act, No. 10 of
2006 duly amended by the Inland Revenue (Amendment) Act, No.8 of 2012 and Inland Revenue (Amendment) Act, No.18
of 2013. The Company has no carry forward unclaimed investment relief to set off in future periods.
Group
For the year ended 31st March

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

334,705,520

261,289,474

25,500,000

25,500,000

13.13

10.25

Ordinary shares at the beginning of the year

25,500,000

25,500,000

Ordinary shares at the end of the year

25,500,000

25,500,000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year

25,500,000

25,500,000

9

Earnings Per Share

9.1

Basic earnings per share

Note

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Basic earnings per share
9.2

9.2

Amount used as denominator
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For the year ended 31st March

10

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

7.00

178,500,000

2.00

51,000,000

Dividend Per Share
Equity dividend on ordinary shares

10.1 Declared and paid during the year
Final dividend* 2014/15
Interim dividend 2015/16

4.00

102,000,000

3.00

76,500,000

11.00

280,500,000

5.00

127,500,000

Final dividend*

8

204,000,000

7.00

178,500,000

Total dividend

8

204,000,000

7.00

178,500,000

Total dividend
*Previous years' final dividend paid in the current year.
10.2 Proposed dividend

The final dividend proposed for this financial year has not been recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as at 31st
March 2016 amounting to Rs.204,000,000 in compliance with LKAS 10- Events after the reporting period.

11

Financial Instruments

11.1 Financial Assets and Liabilities by Categories
Financial assets and liabilities in the tables below are split into categories in accordance with LKAS 39.
Financial assets by categories

Loans and receivables
Group

As at 31st March

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

23,365,357

25,058,774

23,365,357

25,058,774

307,855,998

268,356,748

307,855,998

268,356,748

94,028,788

87,896,845

94,028,788

87,896,845

285,561,143

263,451,559

281,143,215

258,541,404

Financial instruments in non-current assets
Other non-current financial assets
Financial instruments in current assets
Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from related parties
Short term investments
Cash in hand and at bank
Total

18,032,772

17,295,737

17,510,544

17,117,841

728,844,058

662,059,663

723,903,902

656,971,612

The fair value of financial assets does not significantly vary from the value based on amortised cost.
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Financial liabilities by categories

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Group

As at 31st March

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

83,793,599

133,898,398

83,793,599

133,898,398

215,615,145

235,212,839

215,045,939

234,831,147

5,529,361

6,226,968

5,529,361

6,226,968

49,999,999

49,999,999

49,999,999

49,999,999

Financial instruments in non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Financial instruments in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to related parties
Current Portion of borrowings
Bank overdrafts
Total

10,435,014

28,660,698

10,435,014

28,660,698

365,373,118

453,998,902

364,803,912

453,617,210

The fair value of financial liabilities does not significantly vary from the value based on amortised cost.

12

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Company and its subsidiary Loan, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that arise directly from
its operations.
The Company and its subsidiary's principal financial liabilities, comprise of loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company and its subsidiary’s operations.
The Company and its subsidiary are exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The fair value of the floating rate loan is determined by discounting the future cash flows using prevailing market rates. The
frequency of re-pricing per year affects the fair value. In general, a loan that is re-priced every six (6) months will have a
carrying value closer to the fair value with similar maturity and interest basis.
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13

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company and its subsidiary is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange
transactions and other financial instruments.
The Company and its subsidiary trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. It is the Company and its
subsidiary's policy that all clients who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Company and its subsidiary's
exposure to bad debts is not significant.
With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Company and its subsidiary, such as cash and cash
equivalents the Company and its subsidiary's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty. The Group
manages its operations to avoid any excessive concentration of counterparty risk and the Company and its subsidiary
takes all reasonable steps to ensure the counterparties, fulfil their obligations.

13.1.1 Credit risk exposure
The maximum risk positions of financial assets which are generally subject to credit risk are equal to their carrying amounts
(without consideration of collateral, if available). Following table shows the maximum risk positions;
2016
Group

Note

Other
non current
financial assets

Cash in
hand and
at bank

Trade
and other
receivables

Short
Amounts
term
due from
investments related parties

Total

% of
allocation

38

Government securities

13.1.2

-

-

- 281,143,215

- 281,143,215

Deposits with bank

13.1.3

-

-

-

4,417,928

-

4,417,928

1

Loans to executives

13.1.4

23,365,357

-

8,753,963

-

-

32,119,320

5

Trade and other receivables

13.1.5

-

- 299,102,035

-

- 299,102,035

41

Amounts due from related
parties

13.1.6

-

-

-

-

94,028,788

94,028,788

13

Cash in hand and at bank

13.1.7

-

18,032,772

-

-

-

18,032,772

2

94,028,788 728,844,058

100

Total credit risk exposure
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23,365,357

18,032,772 307,855,998 285,561,143

2015

Group

Note

Other
non current
financial assets

Cash in Trade and other
hand and
receivables
at bank

Short term
investments

Amounts due
from related
parties

Total

% of
allocation

39

Government securities

13.1.2

-

-

- 258,541,404

- 258,541,404

Deposits with bank

13.1.3

-

-

-

4,910,155

-

4,910,155

1

Loans to executives

13.1.4

25,058,774

-

8,962,661

-

-

34,021,435

5

Trade and other
receivables

13.1.5

-

- 259,394,087

-

- 259,394,087

39

Amounts due from related
parties

13.1.6

-

-

-

-

Cash in hand and at bank

13.1.7

-

17,295,737

-

-

Total credit risk exposure

25,058,774

17,295,737 268,356,748 263,451,559

87,896,845

87,896,845

13

-

17,295,737

3

87,896,845 662,059,663

100

2016

Company

Note

Other
non current
financial assets

Cash in Trade and other
hand and
receivables
at bank

Government securities

13.1.2

-

-

Loans to executives

13.1.4

23,365,357

-

Trade and other
receivables

13.1.5

Amounts due from related
parties
Cash in hand and at bank
Total credit risk exposure

Short term
investments

- 281,143,215

Amounts due
from related
parties

Total

% of
allocation

- 281,143,215

39

8,753,963

-

-

32,119,320

4

-

- 299,102,035

-

- 299,102,035

41

13.1.6

-

-

-

-

94,028,788

94,028,788

13

13.1.7

-

17,510,544

-

-

-

17,510,544

3

94,028,788 723,903,902

100

23,365,357

17,510,544 307,855,998 281,143,215
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2015

Company

Note

Other
non current

Cash in Trade and other
hand and
receivables
at bank

financial assets

Government securities

13.1.2

-

-

Loans to executives

13.1.4

25,058,774

-

Trade and other
receivables

13.1.5

Amounts due from related
parties

13.1.6

Cash in hand and at bank

13.1.7

Total credit risk exposure

Short term
investments

Amounts due
from related
parties

- 258,541,404

Total

% of
allocation

- 258,541,404

39

8,962,661

-

-

34,021,435

5

-

- 259,394,087

-

- 259,394,087

40

-

-

-

-

-

17,117,841

-

-

25,058,774

17,117,841 268,356,748 258,541,404

87,896,845

87,896,845

13

-

17,117,841

3

87,896,845 656,971,612

100

13.1.2 Government securities
As at 31 March 2016 as shown in table above, for the Group 38% (2014/15-39%) and for the Company 39%
(2014/15-39%) of debt securities comprise investments in government securities consist of treasury bonds, bills and reverse
repo investments. Government securities are usually referred to as risk free due to the sovereign nature of the instrument.
13.1.3 Deposits with bank
Deposits with banks mainly consist of fixed and call deposits as at 31st March 2016.
Fixed and call deposits comprise of 100% (2014/2015- 100%) and rated "A" or better.
Group

As at 31 March

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rating %
of total

Rs

Rating %
of total

Rs

Rating %
of total

Rs

Rating %
of total

AAA*

4,417,928

100

4,910,155

100

-

-

-

-

Total

4,417,928

100

4,910,155

100

-

-

-

-

* rating agency Fitch
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13.1.4 Loans to executives
Loans to executive portfolio is largely made up of vehicle loans which are given to staff at assistant manager level and
above. The Company has obtained the necessary Power of Attorney/promissory notes as collateral for the loans granted.
Group
As at 31 March

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

13.1.5 Trade and other receivables
Neither past due nor impaired

01–60 days

301,681,853 265,221,141 301,681,853 265,221,141

Past due but not impaired

61–90 days
91–120 days

5,536,601

2,012,503

5,536,601

2,012,503

269,191

951,244

269,191

951,244

121–180 days

257,346

44,510

257,346

44,510

> 181 days

111,007

127,350

111,007

127,350

609,967

3,705,247

609,967

3,705,247

Impaired
Gross carrying value

308,465,965 272,061,995 308,465,965 272,061,995

Less: impairment provision
Individually assessed impairment provision
Total

(609,967)

(3,705,247)

(609,967)

(3,705,247)

307,855,998 268,356,748 307,855,998 268,356,748

The Company has obtained bank guarantees from all distributors as collateral by reviewing their past performance and
credit worthiness, as collateral. The requirement for an impairment is analysed at each reporting date on an individual
basis for major clients. The calculation is based on actual incurred historical data.

13.1.6 Amounts due from related parties
The balance consists of amounts due from, the companies under common control, Joint Ventures and Associates of the
Parent.
13.1.7 Credit risk relating to cash and cash equivalents
In order to mitigate concentration, settlement and operational risks related to cash and cash equivalents, the Company and
its subsidiary limits the maximum cash amount that can be deposited with a single counterparty. In addition, the Company
and its subsidiary maintains an authorised list of acceptable cash counterparties based on current ratings and economic
outlook, taking into account analysis of fundamentals and market indicators. The Group held cash and cash equivalents of
Rs. 293,158,901/-as at 31st March 2016 (2014/15 Rs. 252,086,598/-) The Company held cash and cash equivalents
of Rs. 288,218,745/- as at 31 March 2016 (2014/15 Rs. 246,998,547/-)
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13.2 Liquidity Risk
The Group's policy is to hold cash and undrawn committed facilities at a level sufficient to ensure that the Group has
available funds to meet its medium term capital and funding obligations, including organic growth and acquisition
activities, and to meet any unforeseen obligations and opportunities. The Group holds cash and undrawn committed
facilities to enable the Company and its subsidiary to manage its liquidity risk.
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a daily cash management process. This process considers the
maturity of the Group's financial investments and financial assets (e.g. accounts receivable, other financial assets) and
projected cash flows from operations.
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of multiple
sources of funding including bank loans and overdrafts.
Group
As at 31 March

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

13.2.1 Net (debt)/cash
Short term investments
Cash in hand and at bank
Total liquid Assets

285,561,143 263,451,559 281,143,215 258,541,404
18,032,772

17,295,737

17,510,544

17,117,841

303,593,915 280,747,296 298,653,759 275,659,245

Borrowings - non current

83,793,599 133,898,398

83,793,599 133,898,398

Borrowings - current

49,999,999

49,999,999

49,999,999

49,999,999

Bank overdrafts

10,435,014

28,660,698

10,435,014

28,660,698

Total liabilities

144,228,612 212,559,095 144,228,612 212,559,095

Net cash

159,365,303

68,188,201 154,425,147

63,100,150

13.2.2 Liquidity risk management
The mixed approach combines elements of the cash flow matching approach and the liquid assets approach. The Group
attempts to match cash outflows in each time bucket against a combination of contractual cash inflows plus other inflows
that can be generated through the sale of assets, repurchase agreement or other secured borrowing.
Maturity analysis
The table below summarises the maturity profile of both the Group's and Company's financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments.
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Group
31st March 2016

Within 1
year

Between
1-2 years

Between
2-3 years

Between
3-4 years

Between
4-5 years

More than
5 years

Total

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

-

57,431,217

41,250,241

-

-

-

98,681,458

Borrowings-Financial instruments 52,505,809
in current liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

52,505,809

Trade and other payables

215,615,145

-

-

-

-

- 215,615,145

5,529,361

-

-

-

-

-

5,529,361

10,435,014

-

-

-

-

-

10,435,014

284,085,329

57,431,217

41,250,241

-

-

- 382,766,787

Within 1
year

Between
1-2 years

Between
2-3 years

Between
3-4 years

Between
4-5 years

More than
5 years

Total

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

-

56,121,532

60,478,392

42,905,376

-

- 159,505,300

Borrowings-Financial instruments 52,078,539
in current liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

Trade and other payables

235,212,839

-

-

-

-

- 235,212,839

6,226,968

-

-

-

-

-

6,226,968

28,660,698

-

-

-

-

-

28,660,698

322,179,044

56,121,532

60,478,392

42,905,376

-

- 481,684,344

Within 1
year

Between
1-2 years

Between
2-3 years

Between
3-4 years

Between
4-5 years

More than
5 years

Total

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

-

57,431,217

41,250,241

-

-

-

98,681,458

Borrowings-Financial instruments 52,505,809
in current liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

52,505,809

Trade and other payables

215,045,939

-

-

-

-

- 215,045,939

5,529,361

-

-

-

-

-

5,529,361

10,435,014

-

-

-

-

-

10,435,014

283,516,123

57,431,217

41,250,241

-

-

- 382,197,581

Financial instruments in noncurrent liabilities

Amounts due to related parties
Bank overdrafts

31st March 2015

Financial instruments in noncurrent liabilities

Amounts due to related parties
Bank overdrafts

52,078,539

Company
31st March 2016

Financial instruments in noncurrent liabilities

Amounts due to related parties
Bank overdrafts
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Company
31st March 2015

Within 1
year

Between
1-2 years

Between
2-3 years

Between
3-4 years

Between
4-5 years

More than
5 years

Total

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

-

56,121,532

60,478,392

42,905,376

-

- 159,505,300

Borrowings-Financial instruments 52,078,539
in current liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

Trade and other payables

234,831,147

-

-

-

-

- 234,831,147

6,226,968

-

-

-

-

-

6,226,968

28,660,698

-

-

-

-

-

28,660,698

321,797,352

56,121,532

60,478,392

42,905,376

-

- 481,302,652

Financial instruments in noncurrent liabilities

Amounts due to related parties
Bank overdrafts

52,078,539

13.3 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices.
Market risk of the Group comprises of the following risks:
* Interest rate risk
* Currency risk
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while optimising the return.
The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March in 2016 and 2015. The analyses
excludes the impact of movements in market variables on; the carrying values of other post-retirement obligations;
provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities of foreign operations.
The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses;
The sensitivity of the relevant Income Statement item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is
based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2016 and 2015.
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13.3.1Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
and Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.
Most lenders grant loans under floating interest rates. To manage this, based on the market condition and outlook on
interest rates, the Group takes mitigating action such as interest rate swaps ,caps, etc.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s and Company's profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

Increase/
(decrease)

Group

Company

in basis points

Rs

Rs

Rupee borrowings
2016

2015

+99

1,324,557

1,324,557

-99

(1,324,557)

(1,324,557)

+256

4,707,799

4,707,799

-256

(4,707,799)

(4,707,799)

The assumed spread of basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market
environment changes to base floating interest rates.
13.3.2 Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has exposure to foreign currency risk where it has cash flows in overseas
operations and foreign currency transactions which are affected by foreign exchange movements. Group treasury (JKH)
analyses the market condition of foreign exchange and provides market updates to the Senior Management, with the use
of external consultants' advice. Based on the suggestions made by Group treasury (JKH) the Senior Management takes
decisions on whether to hold, sell, or make forward bookings of foreign currency.
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13.3.2.1 Effects of currency translation.

For purposes of Keells Food Products PLC's consolidated financial statements, the income and expenses and the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary located outside Sri Lanka are converted into Sri Lankan Rupees(SLR). Therefore, period-to-period
changes in average exchange rates may cause translation effects that have a significant impact on, for example, revenue,
segment results (earnings before interest and taxes –EBIT) and assets and liabilities of the Group. Unlike exchange rate
transaction risk, exchange rate translation risk does not necessarily affect future cash flows. The Group’s equity position
reflects changes in book values caused by exchange rates.
Group
Exchange rate

Increase/
(decrease) in
exchange rate

Effect on
profit before
tax LKR

Effect on
equity LKR

2.73%

18,944

133,068

-2.73%

(18,944)

(133,068)

1.72%

9,648

80,920

-1.72%

(9,648)

(80,920)

2016
INR
2015
INR

Assumptions
The assumed movement, in the spread of the exchange rate sensitivity analysis, is based on the current observable market
environment.
13.4 Capital management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong financial position and
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure, and makes adjustments to it, in the light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue new shares, have a rights issue or buy back of shares.
Group

Debt / Equity
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Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

8.14%

12.51%

8.15%

12.52%
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Property, Plant and
Equipment

Rs

Buildings
Rs

Land

Leasehold
Rs

Machinery

Revaluations

-

43,343,799

-

-

(3,161,866)

2,799,470

43,706,195

-

-

21,149,252

-

-

3,161,866

(4,541,264)

180,206,134 209,547,011 715,434,103

As at 31 March 2015
18,807,644

17,065,850

62,661,102

-

-

(10,050,310)

26,712,900

45,998,512

Rs

Freezer

14,005,693

-

-

(1,858,817)

2,367,294

13,497,216

Rs

Assets

Other

(3,259,552)

-

-

10,050,310

-

-

1,858,817

(1,686,198)

-

-

23,511,864

46,965,212

2,518,447

3,199,543

(674,166) (15,695,890) (10,806,150)

-

-

-

-

(674,166) (22,486,648) (10,978,769)

674,166

-

-

-

-

674,166

Rs

Vehicles

Motor

Rs

2016

Total

Rs

2015

Total

(36,220,245)

79,675,114

(4,563,915)

60,707,480

17,652,327

19,591,964

-

10,422,267

36,220,245

-

20,426,718

4,095,996

(89,017,419) (85,741,356)

2,566,340

10,049,413 1,160,901,565
1,152,591,543

- (380,212,650) (337,837,743)

-

-

-

-

- (337,837,743) (276,619,101)

10,049,413 1,541,114,215 1,490,429,286

-

(2,566,340) (10,422,267) (20,426,718)

-

10,049,413

2,566,340 1,490,429,286 1,435,120,475

Rs

WIP

Capital

* This transfer relates to the accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date that was eliminated against the gross carrying amount of revalued buildings.

192,970,049 208,579,552 682,071,946

- (326,758,495) (26,277,949)

-

8,264,104

-

(8,264,104) (69,108,138)

- (278,799,609) (24,898,551)

As at 31 March 2016

Carrying value

-

At the end of the year

2,158,163

-

(2,158,163)

-

Revaluations

Transfers*

Disposals/De-Recognitions

Charge for the year

At the beginning of the year

Accumulated depreciation

-

1,066,340

(21,149,252)

34,679,641

192,970,049 208,579,552 1,008,830,441

3,694,543

At the end of the year

(6,764,104)

(2,158,163)

-

13,957,784

-

2,102,102

Transfers

Disposals/De-Recognitions

Additions
964,294

Rs

Equipment

Fittings and

Plant and Furniture and

At the beginning of the year 180,206,134 209,547,011 994,233,712

Cost or valuation

14.1 Group

14

As at 31 st March

Land and Buildings on
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-

At the end of the year

-

-

21,149,252

-

-

3,161,866

(4,541,264)

180,206,134 209,547,011 715,434,103

18,807,644

17,065,850

26,712,900

14,005,693

-

-

-

-

10,050,310

(3,259,552)

-

-

1,858,817

(1,686,198)

-

-

23,511,864

46,965,212

2,518,447

3,199,543

(674,166) (15,695,890) (10,806,150)

-

-

-

-

(674,166) (22,486,648) (10,978,769)

62,661,102

-

-

(1,858,817)

2,367,294

13,497,216

Rs

Asset

Other

Rs

2016

Total

Rs

2015

Total

79,675,114

(4,563,915)

60,707,480

17,652,327

19,591,964

-

10,422,267

36,220,245

4,095,996

-

20,426,718

2,566,340

- 1,152,591,543

10,049,413 1,160,901,565

- (380,212,650) (337,837,743)

-

-

-

- (89,017,419) (85,741,356)

- (337,837,743) (276,619,101)

10,049,413 1,541,114,215 1,490,429,286

-

(2,566,340) (10,422,267) (20,426,718)

- (36,220,245)

10,049,413

2,566,340 1,490,429,286 1,435,120,475

Rs

WIP

Capital

* This transfer relates to the accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date that was eliminated against the gross carrying amount of revalued buildings.

192,970,049 208,579,552 682,071,946

As at 31 March 2015

- (326,758,495) (26,277,949)

-

8,264,104

-

(8,264,104) (69,108,138)

- (278,799,609) (24,898,551)

As at 31 March 2016

Carrying value

-

2,158,163

-

(2,158,163)

Revaluations

Transfers*

Disposals/De-Recognitions

Charge for the year

At the beginning of the year
-

At the end of the year

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

674,166

-

-

3,694,543

-

13,957,784

-

-

45,998,512

Rs

Freezer

- (10,050,310)

192,970,049 208,579,552 1,008,830,441 43,343,799

1,066,340

2,799,470
(3,161,866)

Revaluations

(6,764,104)

- (21,149,252)

2,102,102

(2,158,163)

-

964,294

674,166

Rs

Vehicles

Motor

Transfers

Disposals/De-Recognitions

Additions

43,706,195

Rs

Equipment

Land
Rs

Machinery Fittings and

Leasehold

Plant and Furniture and

At the beginning of the year 180,206,134 209,547,011 994,233,712

Cost or valuation

14.2 Company

As at 31 st March

Land and Buildings on
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14.3 Property, Plant and Equipment with a cost of Rs.138,668,026/- (2014/15 -Rs.164,935,956/-) have been fully depreciated
and continue to be in use by the Group and the Company.
14.4 During the financial year, the Group and the Company acquired Property, Plant & Equipment to the aggregate value
of Rs.79,675,114/- (2014/15 -Rs 60,707,480/-) cash payments amounting to Rs.79,675,114/- (2014/15 -Rs
60,707,480/-) were made during the year for purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment.
Group
As at 31st March

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

At cost

759,351,964

762,838,398

759,351,964

762,838,398

At valuation

401,549,601

389,753,145

401,549,601

389,753,145

14.5 Carrying value of total assets

1,160,901,565 1,152,591,543 1,160,901,565 1,152,591,543
14.6 Land and buildings
At valuation

401,549,601

389,753,145

401,549,601

389,753,145

401,549,601

389,753,145

401,549,601

389,753,145

Revaluation of land and buildings
The Company uses the revaluation model of measurement for land and buildings. The Company engaged Messrs.
P.B Kalugalagdara, an independent experts valuer, to determine the fair value of its land and buildings. Fair value is
determined by reference to market-based evidence. Valuations are based on active market prices, adjusted for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific property. The date of the most recent revaluation was 31
March 2016.
Details of Land and Buildings stated at valuation are indicated below;
Property

Land and Buildings at Keells Food Products PLC
Buildings at Keells Food Products PLC

Location

Method
of valuation

Effective date
of valuation

Independent
Valuer

Ja Ela

Open Market
Value Method

31 March
2016

Pannala

Open Market
Value Method

31 March
2016

Messers. P.B
Kalugalagedera
Chartered
Valuation
Surveyor

The surplus arising from the revaluation was transferred to the revaluation reserve.
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14.7 The carrying amount of Revalued Buildings if they were carried at cost less depreciation, would be as follows;
Group

Cost
Accumulated Depreciation

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

227,691,698

223,125,302

227,691,698

223,125,302

(51,405,427)

(40,983,159)

(51,405,427)

(40,983,159)

176,286,271

182,142,143

176,286,271

182,142,143

14.8 Fair Value Hierarchy
The Group and the Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of Non financial
instruments using valuation techniques:
Level 1 : Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable;
Level 3 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
In determining the fair value, highest and best use of the property has been considered including the current condition of the
properties, future usability and associated redevelopment requirements have been considered. Also the valuers have made
reference to market evidence of the transaction prices for similar properties, with appropriate adjustments for the size and
location. The appraised fair value are rounded within the range of values.
Non Financial Assets -Group and Company
As at 31st March

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

2016

2016

2016

Rs

Rs

Rs

-

-

401,549,601

Date of Valuation

Assets measured at fair value
Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings

Type of Asset

Land
Land and buildings
Buildings on
leasehold land

31.03.2016

Fair value as at
31.03.2016

Valuation
technique

Significant
unobservable inputs

Estimates for
unobservable inputs

Sensitivity of fair value
to unobservable inputs

132,000,000

Open market
method

Estimated price per
perch

Rs. 275,000/per perch

Positively correlated
sensitivity

60,970,049

Open market
method

Estimated price per
square feet

Rs.1600/- to
Rs.1000/-

Positively correlated
sensitivity

208,579,552

Open market
method

Estimated price per
square feet

Rs.7000/- to
Rs.5000/-

Positively correlated
sensitivity

401,549,601
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Group
As at 31st March

15

Software

Company
2016

Purchased

Goodwill

Rs

Rs

Rs

2015
Rs

Software
Purchased

Goodwill

Rs

Rs

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Intangible Assets
Cost/carrying value
At the beginning of the year

5,428,476 242,268,046 247,696,522 247,380,106

Additions / transfers
At the end of the year

260,922

-

260,922

316,416

5,428,476 242,268,046 247,696,522 247,380,106
260,922

-

260,922

316,416

5,689,398 242,268,046 247,957,444 247,696,522

5,689,398 242,268,046 247,957,444 247,696,522

At the beginning of the year

(2,051,872)

-

(2,051,872)

(1,055,106)

(2,051,872)

-

(2,051,872)

(1,055,106)

Amortisation

(1,030,234)

-

(1,030,234)

(996,766)

(1,030,234)

-

(1,030,234)

(996,766)

At the end of the year

(3,082,106)

-

(3,082,106)

(2,051,872)

(3,082,106)

-

(3,082,106)

(2,051,872)

As at 31 March 2016

2,607,292 242,268,046 244,875,338

-

2,607,292 242,268,046 244,875,338

-

As at 31 March 2015

3,376,604 242,268,046

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Carrying value

As at 31st March
15.1 Goodwill

- 245,644,650

3,376,604 242,268,046

- 245,644,650

Net carrying
value of goodwill

Net carrying
value of goodwill

Rs

Rs

2016

2015

242,268,046

242,268,046

Goodwill acquired through business combination is due to the purchase of the manufacturing facility (CGU) of D&W Food
Products (Pvt) Ltd and goodwill is tested for impairment as follows;
Cash Generating Unit (CGU)
The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on the value in use (VIU) calculation.
Key assumptions used in the VIU calculations
Gross margins
The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins, is the gross margins achieved in the year
preceding the budgeted year adjusted for projected market conditions.
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Discount rates
The discount rate used is the risk free rate, adjusted by the addition of an appropriate risk premium.
Inflation
The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted cost inflation, is the inflation rate, based on projected
economic conditions.
Volume growth
Volume growth has been budgeted on a reasonable and realistic basis by taking into account the growth rates of one to four
years immediately subsequent to the budgeted year based on Industry growth rates. Cash flows beyond the five year period
are extrapolated using 0% growth rate.
Company
As at 31st March

16

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Investments in Subsidiary

16.1 Carrying value
Investments in subsidiary

220,291,730 220,291,730

Less
Allowance for impairment of investment

(217,113,937) (216,245,901)
3,177,793

4,045,829

The Subsidiary Company John Keells Foods India Private Limited was restructured in June 2010. In the above context it was
considered prudent and appropriate to impair the investment in John Keells Food India Private Limited.

Group
As at 31st March

17

Note

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

23,365,357

25,058,774

23,365,357

25,058,774

23,365,357

25,058,774

23,365,357

25,058,774

Other Non Current Financial Assets
Loans to executives
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17.1

Group
As at 31st March

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

17.1 Loans to executives
At the beginning of the year

34,021,435

30,057,512

34,021,435

30,057,512

Loans granted

14,985,000

20,660,000

14,985,000

20,660,000

Recoveries

(16,887,115) (16,696,077) (16,887,115) (16,696,077)

At the end of the year

32,119,320

34,021,435

32,119,320

34,021,435

8,753,963

8,962,661

8,753,963

8,962,661

23,365,357

25,058,774

23,365,357

25,058,774

32,119,320

34,021,435

32,119,320

34,021,435

Receivable within one year
Receivable after one year
Receivable between one and five years

Group
As at 31st March

18

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

4,915,992

5,699,732

4,915,992

5,699,732

4,915,992

5,699,732

4,915,992

5,699,732

Other Non-Current Assets
Pre paid staff cost

Group
As at 31st March

19

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

82,551,103 102,476,127

82,551,103

21,543,109

21,543,109

Inventories
Raw materials

102,476,127

Work-in-progress

17,947,698

Finished goods

90,148,347 101,041,900

90,148,347 101,041,900

Spare Parts

23,385,316

18,772,706

23,385,316

18,772,706

224,262

261,497

224,262

261,497

Other stocks

17,947,698

234,181,750 224,170,315 234,181,750 224,170,315
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Group
As at 31st March

20

Note

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Trade and Other Receivables
Trade and other receivables

299,712,002 263,099,334 299,712,002 263,099,334

Less: impairment of trade debtors
Loans to executives

17.1

(609,967)

(3,705,247)

(609,967)

(3,705,247)

8,753,963

8,962,661

8,753,963

8,962,661

307,855,998 268,356,748 307,855,998 268,356,748
An analysis of trade receivables (including past due and impaired) is given in note 13.1.5
Group
As at 31st March

21

Note

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

20,125,681

9,941,645

19,551,435

9,344,843

18,396,683

18,396,683

18,396,683

18,396,683

38,522,364

28,338,328

37,948,118

27,741,526

Other Current Assets
Prepayment and non cash receivables
Tax refunds

21.1

Group
As at 31st March

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

18,396,683

21,276,620

18,396,683

21,276,620

21.1 Tax Refunds
At the beginning of the year
Payments during the year*

-

7,103,254

-

7,103,254

Refunds received during the year

-

(2,369,269)

-

(2,369,269)

Set off against dividend tax payable

-

(7,613,922)

-

(7,613,922)

18,396,683

18,396,683

18,396,683

18,396,683

At the end of the year

* Includes payment of ESC, WHT on fixed deposits and notional tax credit from Interest Income on Treasury Bills.
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Group
As at 31st March

22

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

4,417,928

4,910,155

-

-

Short Term Investments
Bank deposits (less than 3 months)
Government securities (less than 3 months)

281,143,215 258,541,404 281,143,215 258,541,404

Reported for cash flow

285,561,143 263,451,559 281,143,215 258,541,404

Group
As at 31st March

23

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Cash in hand

676,250

684,250

676,250

684,250

Cash at bank

17,356,522

16,611,487

16,834,294

16,433,591

Cash in hand and bank - Favourable

18,032,772

17,295,737

17,510,544

17,117,841

Bank overdraft

(10,435,014) (28,660,698) (10,435,014) (28,660,698)

Cash in hand and bank - unfavourable

(10,435,014) (28,660,698) (10,435,014) (28,660,698)

Cash in Hand and at Bank

Security and repayment terms of credit facilities;
Type of facility

Lending

Nature of

Facility

Security

Institution

Facility

Short term

HSBC

Bank overdraft

50,000,000

Short term

Deutsche Bank

Bank overdraft

40,000,000

Clean basis

On demand

Short term

BOC

Bank overdraft

1,000,000

Clean basis

On demand

Short term

DFCC

Bank overdraft

50,000,000

Clean basis

On demand

Amount Rs.

Repayment
Terms

A letter of
negative pledge
over Company's
assets in Ja Ela
unencumbered
assets

On demand
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2016
As at 31st March

24

2015

Number of

Value of

Number of

Value of

shares

shares

shares

shares

Rs

Rs

At the beginning of the year

25,500,000 1,294,815,000

25,500,000 1,294,815,000

At the end of the year

25,500,000 1,294,815,000

25,500,000 1,294,815,000

Stated Capital
Fully paid ordinary shares

Group
As at 31st March

25

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

279,706,889

230,806,984

277,388,553

228,523,610

279,706,889

230,806,984

277,388,553

228,523,610

Revenue Reserves
Accumulated profit

Group
As at 31st March

26

Note

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Other Components of Equity
Revaluation reserve

26.1

181,236,515

165,147,286

181,236,515

165,147,286

Foreign currency translation reserve

26.2

(616,547)

(1,026,042)

-

-

Employee share option reserve

26.3

15,996,574

9,062,909

15,996,574

9,062,909

196,616,542

173,184,153

197,233,089

174,210,195

26.1 Revaluation reserve consists of the surplus on the revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment net of deferred tax effect.
26.2 Foreign currency translation reserve consists of currency translation difference from the Foreign Subsidiary.
26.3 Share-based payment plans
Employee Share Option Scheme
Under the John Keells Group’s Employees share option scheme (ESOP), share options of the Parent Company are granted
to Senior Executives with more than 12 months of service. The exercise price of the share options is equal to the 30 day
volume weighted average market price of the underlying shares on the date of grant. The share options vest over a period
of four years and is dependent on a performance criteria and a service criteria. The performance criteria being a minimum
performance achievement of "Met Expectations" and service criteria being that the employee has to be in employment at
the time the share options vest. The fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using a binomial option
pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the share options were granted.
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The contractual term for each option granted is five years. There are no cash settlement alternatives. The Group does not
have a past practice of cash settlement for these share options.

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:
Group
As at 31st March

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Expense arising from equity-settled sharebased payment transactions

6,933,665

5,801,705

6,933,665

5,801,705

Total expense arising from share-based
payment transactions

6,933,665

5,801,705

6,933,665

5,801,705

Movements in the year
The following table illustrates the number (No.) and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share
options during the year:
Group

Company

2016

2016

2016

2016

No.

WAEP Rs

No.

WAEP Rs

Outstanding at 1 April

220,759

209.98

220,759

209.98

Granted during the year

155,275

171.25

155,275

171.25

-

-

-

-

Lapses/Forfeited during the year

(10,685)

171.25

(10,685)

171.25

Adjusted - sub division

53,705

193.99

53,705

193.99

4,682

219.03

4,682

219.03

Outstanding at 31 March

423,736

194.20

423,736

194.20

Exercisable at the end of the year

157,865

203.11

157,865

203.11

ESOP PLAN 8

Exercised

Adjusted - warrants

Fair value of the share option and assumptions
The fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using a binomial option pricing model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the share options were granted.
The valuation takes into account factors such as stock price, expected time to maturity, exercise price, expected volatility of
share price, expected dividend yield and risk free interest rate.
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Group
As at 31st March

27

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

183,898,397

234,436,071

183,898,397

234,436,071

(50,104,799)

(50,537,674)

(50,104,799)

(50,537,674)

133,793,598

183,898,397

133,793,598

183,898,397

49,999,999

49,999,999

49,999,999

49,999,999

83,793,599

133,898,398

83,793,599

133,898,398

133,793,598

183,898,397

133,793,598

183,898,397

Borrowings

27.1 Movement
At the beginning of the year
Repayments
At the end of the year
Current position of borrowings
Repayable within one year
Repayable after one year
Repayable between one and five years
Total borrowings
Security and repayment terms
Lending

Nature of

institution

facility

DFCC

Project Loan

Security

Note

28

Instalments

terms

remaining
32

60 equal instalments
after a grace period of
12 months.

Primary mortgage bond of
Rs.166,666,660/- on the building and
assets at Pannala

As at 31st March

Repayment

Group

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

92,046,851

18,019,794

92,046,851

18,019,794

72,577,701

74,027,057

72,577,701

74,027,057

92,046,851 164,624,552

92,046,851

Deferred Tax Liabilities
At the beginning of the year
Charge

8.3

At the end of the year

164,624,552

The closing deferred tax asset and liability
balances relate to the following;
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes

219,795,946 176,726,038 219,795,946 176,726,038

Employee benefit liability

(19,142,257) (16,761,136) (19,142,257) (16,761,136)

Benefit arising from tax losses

(36,029,137) (67,918,051) (36,029,137) (67,918,051)
164,624,552
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92,046,851 164,624,552

92,046,851

Group
As at 31st March

29

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

59,861,198

53,100,545

59,861,198

53,100,545

4,779,145

3,875,419

4,779,145

3,875,419

(577,500)

(21,000)

(577,500)

(21,000)

Employee Benefit Liabilities
At the beginning of the year
Current service cost
Transfers
Interest cost on benefit obligation

5,986,120

5,841,060

5,986,120

5,841,060

Payments

(8,162,217)

(8,593,169)

(8,162,217)

(8,593,169)

Arising from changes in assumptions or due to Under
provision in the previous year

7,333,673

5,658,343

7,333,673

5,658,343

69,220,419

59,861,198

69,220,419

59,861,198

Cost of sales

7,260,799

5,905,213

7,260,799

5,905,213

Selling and distribution expenses

2,854,234

1,143,771

2,854,234

1,143,771

650,232

2,667,495

650,232

2,667,495

10,765,265

9,716,479

10,765,265

9,716,479

At the end of the year
The expenses are recognised in the Income Statement in the
following line items;

Administrative expenses

Messrs. Actuarial and Management consultants (Pvt) Ltd.; Independent actuaries, carried out an actuarial valuation of the
defined benefit plan - gratuity.
The principal assumptions used in determining the cost of
employee benefits were:

2016

2015

10.5% p.a

10% p.a

9%- p.a

7%-10% p.a

Clerical and labour staff

55 years

55 years

Sales representatives

55 years

55 years

Executive staff

55 years

55 years

Discount rate
Future salary increases
Retirement Age
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29.1 Sensitivity of assumptions used
Percentage point change in the assumptions would have the following effects:
Discount rate
As at 31st March

Salary increment

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Increase by one percentage point above report

3,673,622

2,616,883

(4,277,471)

(3,075,784)

Decrease by one percentage point below report

(4,042,474)

(2,863,099)

3,951,379

2,852,615

2016
Rs

2015
Rs

7,966,154

12,927,440

Between 1-2years

13,893,857

13,757,867

Between 2 and 5 years

16,230,718

13,564,934

Between 5 and 10 years

20,615,307

12,272,562

Beyond 10 years

10,514,383

7,338,395

Total expected payments

69,220,419

59,861,198

Effect on the defined benefit obligation liability

Maturity analysis of the payments
The following payments are expected on employee benefit
liabilities in future years;
Within the next 12 months

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation is 6.15 years (2014/15 - 5.03 years)
Group
As at 31st March

30

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Trade and Other Payables
Trade payables
Sundry creditors including accrued expenses

141,598,153 156,434,318 141,028,947 156,052,626
74,016,992

78,778,521

74,016,992

78,778,521

215,615,145 235,212,839 215,045,939 234,831,147

146

Keells Food Products PLC
Annual Report 2015/16

Group
As at 31st March

31

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

-

-

-

-

25,639,587

-

25,639,587

-

(3,268,271)

-

(3,268,271)

-

22,371,316

-

22,371,316

-

Income Tax Payables
At the beginning of the year
Charge for the year
Payments during the year*

* Includes payment of ESC, WHT on fixed deposits and notional tax credit from Interest Income on Treasury Bills.

Group
As at 31st March

32

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

19,513,231

13,791,143

19,447,617

13,791,143

19,513,231

13,791,143

19,447,617

13,791,143

Other Current Liabilities
Other tax payables

33

Company

Related Party Transactions
The Company carried out transactions in the ordinary course of business on an arms length basis with the following
related entities.
Group
As at 31st March

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

Ultimate Parent

-

-

-

-

Subsidiary

-

-

-

-

94,028,788

87,896,845

94,028,788

87,896,845

94,028,788

87,896,845

33.1 Amounts due from related parties

Companies under common control
Associates

Note

Company

33.3 & 33.4

-

-

94,028,788

87,896,845
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Group
As at 31st March
33.2 Amounts due to related parties
Ultimate Parent
Subsidiary
Companies under common control
Associates

Note

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

2,339,372

2,058,222

2,339,372

2,058,222

33.3 & 33.4
-

-

-

-

3,189,989

4,168,746

3,189,989

4,168,746

-

-

-

-

5,529,361

6,226,968

5,529,361

6,226,968

Group
As at 31st March

Amounts due from
2016
2015
Rs
Rs

Amounts due to
2016
2015
Rs
Rs

33.3
Ultimate Parent
John Keells Holdings PLC

-

-

2,339,372

2,058,222

Subsidiary
John Keells Foods India (Pvt) Ltd.

-

-

-

-

1,452,093
772,515
75,599
1,460,481
532,302
443,821
601,004
85,352,800
-

579,703
420,303
86,165,200
446
516,681
214,512
87,896,845

2,558,715
151,267
54,882
149,997
41,078
234,050
5,529,361

3,293,883
55,933
205,736
440,076
64,157
20,107
56,511
32,343
6,226,968

Companies under common control
Asian Hotels and Properties PLC.
Beruwala Holiday Resort (Pvt) Ltd
Ceylon Cold Stores PLC.
Ceylon Holiday Resorts Limited
DHL Keells (Pvt) Ltd.
Habarana Lodge Ltd.
Habarana Walk Inn Ltd.
Hikkaduwa Holiday Resorts (Pvt) Ltd
InfoMate (Pvt) Ltd.
JayKay Marketing Services (Pvt) Ltd.
John Keells Office Automation (Pvt) Ltd.
John Keells PLC.
Kandy Walk Inn Ltd.
Keells Consultants (Pvt) Ltd.
NDO Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.
Sancity Hotels & Properties Ltd.
Trans Asia Hotels PLC
Trinco Holiday Resorts (Pvt) Ltd.
Union Assurance PLC.
Yala Village (Pvt) Limited
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434,105
1,584,598
885,388
434,082
94,028,788

Company
Amounts due from
As at 31st March

Amounts due to

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

-

-

2,339,372

2,058,222

-

-

-

-

Asian Hotels and Properties PLC.

1,452,093

-

-

-

Beruwala Holiday Resort (Pvt) Ltd

772,515

-

-

-

75,599

-

2,558,715

3,293,883

1,460,481

-

-

-

-

-

-

55,933

532,302

579,703

-

-

Habarana Walk Inn Ltd.

443,821

420,303

-

-

Hikkaduwa Holiday Resorts (Pvt) Ltd

601,004

-

-

-

-

151,267

205,736

85,352,800

86,165,200

-

440,076

John Keells Office Automation (Pvt) Ltd.

-

-

54,882

64,157

John Keells PLC.

-

446

149,997

20,107

Kandy Walk Inn Ltd.

-

516,681

-

-

33.4
Ultimate Parent
John Keells Holdings PLC
Subsidiary
John Keells Foods India (Pvt) Ltd.
Companies under common control

Ceylon Cold Stores PLC.
Ceylon Holiday Resorts Limited
DHL Keells (Pvt) Ltd.
Habarana Lodge Ltd.

InfoMate (Pvt) Ltd.
JayKay Marketing Services (Pvt) Ltd.

Keells Consultants (Pvt) Ltd.

-

-

41,078

56,511

NDO Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.

-

-

234,050

-

434,105

-

-

-

1,584,598

-

-

-

885,388

214,512

-

-

-

-

-

32,343

434,082

-

-

-

94,028,788

87,896,845

5,529,361

6,226,968

Sancity Hotels & Properties Ltd.
Trans Asia Hotels PLC (Company Number PQ5)
Trinco Holiday Resorts (Pvt) Ltd.
Union Assurance PLC.
Yala Village (Pvt ) Limited
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Group
For the year ended 31st March

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

33.5 Transactions with related parties
Ultimate parent
(Receiving) of services

(20,508,670) (20,157,582) (20,508,670) (20,157,582)

Subsidiary

-

-

-

-

Companies under common control
Sales of goods
(Purchase) of goods /services (received)

673,584,031 586,075,434 673,584,031 586,075,434
(21,715,850) (20,904,472) (21,715,850) (20,904,472)

Key management personnel
(Receiving)/rendering of services

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(4,299,030)

(4,203,479)

(4,299,030)

(4,203,479)

Close family members of KMP
(Receiving)/rendering of services
Post Employment Benefit
Contribution to provident fund
33.6 Compensations to Key management personnel
Key management personnel include members of the Board of Directors of Keells Food Products PLC and its Subsidiary and
of the Parent Company John Keells Holdings PLC.
Group
For the year ended 31st March

Short term employee benefits

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

8,400,000

7,875,000

8,400,000

7,875,000

Group

Company

2016

2015

2016

2015

Rs

Rs

Rs

Rs

-

(330)

-

(330)

33.7 Transactions with related parties - Associates Interest
received / (Interest paid)
Nations Trust Bank PLC.

The Company did not hold interest bearing deposits at Nations Trust Bank PLC as at 31 March 2016. (31.03.2015 Nil)
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33.8 Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Transactions with related parties are carried out in the ordinary course of the business on an arms length basis. Outstanding
current account balances as at year end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There are no related
party transactions other than the above.

34

Contingent Liabilities

The contingent liability of the Company as at 31 March 2016, relates to the following;
Income tax assessment relating to year of assessment 2009/10
An assessment was raised by the Department of Inland Revenue (IRD) in November 2012, assessing the provision for bad
debts of Rs. 67mn, made against amounts due from KFP’s fully owned subsidiary, namely John Keells Foods India (Pvt) Ltd.
The Company has lodged a valid appeal against the assessment raised, and is contesting this under the Appellate procedure.
Having discussed with independent legal and tax experts and based on information available, the contingent liability as at
31 March 2016 is estimated at Rs. 22 mn (2015 – Rs. 22 mn).
There were no other material contingencies as at the reporting date.

35

Capital and Other Commitments

Capital commitments approved as at the Statement of Financial Position date, but not provided for in the Financial
Statements amounted to Rs. 38,940,407/- (2014/15 Rs.29,167,553/-) for both the Group and the Company.
The Company has constructed a building on land obtained on lease, the details are stated below;
Property
As at 31st March

Period of Lease

Rentals

New Post Estate, Temple
Road, Ekala, Ja Ela

Renewed for 10 years
from 1st September 2010

Within one year

1,621,596

217,368

Between one and five years

2,432,392

1,086,840

After five years

4,053,988

86,947
1,391,155

2016
Rs

2015
Rs

398,000
1,990,000
12,736,000
15,124,000

398,000
1,990,000
13,134,000
15,522,000

Property
As at 31st March
Industrial Estate
Makandura Pannala

36

Period of Lease

Rentals

35 years from August 2012 Within one year
Between one and five years
After five years

2016
Rs

2015
Rs

Events After the Reporting Period

There have been no material events occurring after the Statement of Financial Position date that require adjustments to or
disclosure in the Financial Statements other than the following:
As required by section 56(2) of the Companies Act No.7 of 2007, the Board of Directors have confirmed that the Company
satisfies the solvency test in accordance with section 57 of the Companies Act No.7 of 2007, and has obtained a
certificate from the Auditors, prior to approving a final dividend of Rs. 8/- per share to be paid on 20th May 2016.
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YOUR SHARE IN DETAIL
Ordinary Shareholding
Number of Ordinary Shares - 25,500,0000
Distribution of Shareholders
31st March 2016
Shareholding Range

No. of

No. of

Shareholders

Shares Held

Less than or equal to 1000

878

159,992

1,001

to

10,000

125

371,934

10,001

31st March 2015
%

No. of

No. of

%

Shareholders

Shares Held

0.63

839

152,072

0.60

1.46

123

428,799

1.68

to

100,000

26

785,504

3.08

28

946,585

3.71

100,001 to

1,000,000

6

1,259,328

4.94

5

1,049,302

4.11

Over

1,000,001

3

22,923,242

89.90

3

22,923,242

89.90

1,038

25,500,000

100.00

998

25,500,000

100.00

No. of

No. of

%

No. of

No. of

%

Shareholders

Shares Held

Shareholders

Shares Held

8

23,350,658

8

23,350,658

Categories of Shareholders

John Keells Holdings & Subsidiaries
Directors & Spouses

91.57

91.57

1

12,750

0.05

1

12,750

0.05

Public

1,029

2,136,592

8.38

989

2,136,592

8.38

Total

1,038

25,500,000

100.00

998

25,500,000

100.00

Sri Lankan Residents

1,026

25,398,155

99.60

985

25,364,162

99.47

12

101,845

0.40

13

135,838

0.53

1,038

25,500,000

100.00

998

25,500,000

100.00

Non-Residents
Total

Net Asset Per Share

Market Price

Market Capitalisation

Rs. Mn

Rs. Mn

Rs. Mn

80

200

5,000

70
60

4,000

150

50

3,000

40

100
2,000

30
20

50

1,000

10
0
2012

2013
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0

0
2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

Top 20 Shareholders
As at 31st March

2016

2015

No. of Shares

% of Issued

No. of Shares

% of Issued

Held

Capital

Held

Capital

19,110,399

74.94

19,110,399

74.94

John Keells PLC

2,573,196

10.09

2,573,196

10.09

Walkers Tours Limited

1,239,647

4.86

1,239,647

4.86

People's Leasing & Finance PLC/Mr.C D Kohombanwickramage

368,174

1.44

284,048

1.11

Mack Air (Pvt) Limited

328,791

1.29

328,791

1.29

People's Leasing & Finance PLC/Mr.L P Hapangama

232,522

0.91

191,484

0.75

John Keells Holdings PLC

Deutsche Bank AG- Comtrust Equity Fund

116,259

0.46

140,259

0.55

People's Leasing & Finance PLC/Mr.L H L M P Haradasa

108,862

0.43

46,622

0.18

Mr.J B Hirdaramani

104,720

0.41

104,720

0.41

Mr.D J M Blackler

90,000

0.35

90,000

0.35

Mr.H N Esufally

67,576

0.27

67,576

0.27

Mr.M A H Esufally

66,660

0.26

66,660

0.26

Mackinnon Mackenzie & Company (Ceylon) Limited

60,000

0.24

60,000

0.24

Mr. P M Pathiraja

43,771

0.17

17,775

0.07

Mr. R Vasudevan

41,538

0.16

-

-

Assetline Leasing Company LTD/Mr.L H L M P Haradasa

37,185

0.15

33,594

0.13

People's Leasing & Finance PLC/L H L Noris De Silva & Son (Pvt) Ltd

33,273

0.13

33,273

0.13

Mrs. G J E S De Fonseka

33,240

0.13

-

-

Mr. D H N Kandamudali

31,500

0.12

9,000

0.04

Keells Realtors Limited

30,000

0.12

30,000

0.12

As at 31st March

2016

2015

SHARE PRICES - (Rs.)
Beginning of the year

108.30

Highest for the year

215.00

(23-12-2015)

97.70

(20-04-2015)

Lowest for the year
As at 31st March

170.00

55.00
119.80

(24-02-2015)

52.00

(07-04-2014)

108.30

153

154
(6,938)
331,415
(70,126)
261,289

433,388
(98,682)
334,706

Profit /(Loss) before Tax

Income tax (expense)/reversal

Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax
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1,152,592
276,403
263,452
224,170
356,254
45,634
2,318,504

273,156
285,561
234,182
401,885
56,555
2,412,241

Non Current Assets / Goodwill

Short Term Investments

Inventories

Trade & Other Receivable including
dues from Related Parties

1,294,815
230,807

1,294,815
279,707

Other Components of Equity

2,318,504

2014

2,091,343

-

223,696

12,561

51,102

254,454

1,549,530

153,623

101,092

1,294,815

2,091,343

50,388

309,624

198,199

100,568

274,063

1,158,501

467

12,421

(11,954)

21,639

(33,593)

2,280,142

Group

2013

2,492,008

-

538,883

13,070

18,331

324,108

1,597,616

148,445

154,356

1,294,815

2,492,008

38,447

275,479

253,657

766,592

278,858

878,975

90,883

(24,331)

115,214

50,255

64,959

2,197,482

Group

2012

818,812

5,504

216,221

86,820

-

57,841

452,427

91,832

85,780

274,815

818,812

9,622

287,210

291,549

7,237

33,959

189,236

129,639

(51,005)

180,644

(3,534)

184,177

2,328,752

Group

2011

2010
Group

2009
Group

2008

2007

(13,798)
(9,062)

29,484

12,816

26,175

92,803

(78,051)

51,897

778,460 672,576

25,330

178,384 222,829

198,355 108,283

-

53,428

322,963 289,567

92,007

(43,859)

274,815 274,815

778,460 672,576

1,839

276,844 236,716

298,548 191,381

8,957

18,636

173,635 176,005

30,363 (146,330)

(65,189)

95,552 (137,268)

(14,657)

110,209 (123,470)

690,343

-

158,663

26,921

-

50,746

454,013

92,803

86,395

274,815

690,343

18,974

263,698

189,757

22,369

15,382

180,163

(12,215)

(28,583)

16,369

(24,995)

41,364

568,141

17,955

150,189

35,013

-

49,294

315,690

92,803

123,072

99,815

568,141

4,258

215,968

156,796

5,800

14,466

170,853

76,082

(45,428)

121,510

(10,948)

132,458

513,084

21,449

124,859

128,727

All figures given in Rs.000's unless otherwise stated.

The Statement of Financial Position is categorised in to its key Assets and Liabilities.

-

46,326

191,723

32,417

59,490

99,815

513,084

48,736

193,846

155,582

-

-

114,920

46,695

(29,359)

76,054

(15,162)

91,215

2,196,156 1,833,113 1,792,635 1,552,000 1,401,620

Group

The above indicates the simplified Income Statement and the Statement of Financial Position of the Company for the years 2007 to 2008 and the Group for the years 2009 to 2016.

Income Tax Payable

Trade and Other Payables including
dues to Related Parties

22,371

28,661

10,435

Bank Overdrafts

2,412,241

50,000

50,000

Current portion of Borrowings

255,231

285,806

317,639

Non-Current Liabilities

240,658

173,184
1,698,806

196,616

Total Equity

1,771,138

Stated Capital

Revenue Reserves

WHAT WE OWED

Other Current Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment

1,160,902

WHAT WE OWNED

Net finance (costs)/income

338,353

2,617,980

6,606

3,030,204

426,782

Profit / (loss) from Operating
activities

Revenue

2015
Group

2016
Group

TEN YEAR INFORMATION AT A GLANCE

19.29
22.31
11.00

Return on Equity (%)

Return on Capital Employed (%)

Dividend Per Share - Paid

7.72
69.46

Earnings Yield (%)

Net Assets per Share ( Rs)

6.47

83.80

1.19

Dividend Yield (%)

Dividend Payout (%)

Dividend Cover ( No. of Times)

Price Earnings Ratio (No. of
Times)
13

31.70

Interest Cover (Times)

(C) Investors Ratios

3.02
2.30

Quick Ratio ( Times )

73.42

Current Ratio (Times)

(B) Liquidity

Shareholder Equity Ratio ( % )

8.14

13.13

Earnings/(Loss) per Share (Rs.)

Debt Equity Ratio (%)

11.05

66.62

9.46

4.62

48.80

2.05

11

17.25

1.99

2.66

73.27

12.51

5.00

18.25

16.09

10.25

9.98

2015
Group

2016
Group

Net Profit Ratio (%)

Shareholders

(A) Profitability & Return to

KEY INDICATORS

2014

60.77

0.04

3.64

10,911

0.01

2,750

(0.94)

1.60

2.29

74.09

15.94

2.00

(1.84)

0.03

0.02

0.02

Group

2013

62.65

6.89

2.86

18.71

2.41

14.52

2.46

1.89

2.34

64.11

16.57

2.00

5.41

8.87

4.82

4.14

Group

2012

17.74

14.56

-

-

-

6.87

24.36

0.99

1.93

55.25

19.19

-

34.73

33.44

14.56

5.57

Group

2011

12.67

2.27

-

-

-

44.00

7.52

0.72

1.46

41.49

61.42

-

23.98

9.91

3.41

1.38

Group

2010

2009

(0.39)

(36.82)

1.65

1.64

2.67

65.77

5.93

3.50

9.95

(3.17)

(1.37)

(0.68)

Group

11.36

(23.81)

3.62

17.80

(2.72)

6.93

(14.69) (143.27)

(6.57)

(4.20)

(8.95)

0.88

1.46

43.05

37.39

2.50

(28.10)

(39.36)

(16.43)

(7.98)

Group

12.38

15.26

4.46

16.43

3.42

6.55

12.10

1.11

1.88

55.57

11.09

2.50

39.47

29.99

8.54

4.90

2008

7.52

10.54

-

-

-

9.49

6.02

0.88

1.45

37.37

69.07

-

32.65

27.50

5.24

3.33

2007

KEY FIGURES AND RATIOS		

155

156

Keells Food Products PLC
Annual Report 2015/16
3,660

Value Added per Employee
(Rs. '000)

3,380

8,181

108.30

2014

2,579

7,332

55.00

Group

2013

1,824

4,905

70.00

Group

2012

2,028

5,141

100.00

Group

2011

1,683

4,991

150.00

Group

2010

1,108

4,020

69.00

Group

2009

1,376

3,940

50.50

Group

1,566

3,576

56.00

2008

1,231

3,222

49.75

2007

5
1
3

16, Minuwangoda Road, Ekala Ja Ela

Industrial Estate Makandura Gonawila Pannala

Buildings

Number of

16, Minuwangoda Road, Ekala Ja Ela

Keells Food Products PLC.

Location

REAL ESTATE PORTFOLIO

IFRS has been applied for the years of 2012 to 2016

28,700

7,700

44,869

in (Sq. Ft)

Buildings

-

-

3.00

Freehold

4.08

1.00

-

Leasehold

Land in Acres

The above ratios are based on the Income Statement and the Statement of Financial Position of the Company from the years 2007 to 2008 and the
Group for the years 2009 to 2016

8,860

170.00

2015
Group

2016
Group

Turnover per Employee
(Rs. '000)

(E) Other Information

Market Value per Share (Rs.)

(D) Share Valuation

KEY INDICATORS

KEY FIGURES AND RATIOS		

GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL
TERMINOLOGY
Accrual Basis

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Price Earnings Ratio

Recording Revenues and Expenses in
the period in which they are earned or
incurred regardless of whether cash is
received or disbursed in that period.

Profit After Tax attributable to Ordinary
Share holding over weighted average
number of shares in issue during the
period.

Market Price of Share over Earnings Per
Share.

Capital Employed

Enterprise Value

Shareholders’ Fund plus Debt.

Market Capitalisation plus Debt minus
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents.

Cash plus Short Term Investments plus
Receivables over Current Liabilities.

Cash Earnings Per Share
Profit After Tax attributable to Ordinary
Shareholding adjusted for non cash
items over by weighted average number
of shares in issue during the period.

Earnings Yield
Earnings Per Share as a percentage of
Market Price Per Share at the end of the
period.

Contingent Liabilities

Effective Rate of Taxation

A condition or situation existing at the
end of the reporting period due to past
events, where the financial effect is not
recognized because:
1. The obligation is crystallized by the
occurrence or non- occurrence of one
or more future events or,

Income Tax including Deferred Tax over
Profit Before Tax.

2. A probable outflow of economic
resources is not expected or,

Market Capitalisation

3. It is unable to be measured with
sufficient reliability.

Current Ratio

Interest Cover
Profit Before Interest and Tax over
Finance Expenses.

Number of Shares in issue at the end
the of period multiplied by the Market
Price per Share at end of the period.

Quick Ratio

Return on Assets
Profit After Tax over Average Total
Assets.

Return on Capital Employed
Earnings Before Interest and Tax as a
percentage of average Shareholders’
Funds plus average Total Debt.

Return on Equity
Consolidated Profit After Tax as a
percentage of Average Shareholders’
Funds.

Shareholders’ Fund
Stated Capital, Other Components of
Equity and Revenue Reserves.

Shareholders’ Equity Ratio

Net Assets

Total Equity over Total Assets.

Total Assets

Debt / Equity Ratio (Gearing)

Total Assets minus Current Liabilities
minus Long Term Liabilities minus
Minority Interest.

Debt as a percentage of Shareholders’
Funds.

Net Asset Per Share

Dividend Cover

Net Assets divided by number of
Ordinary Shares in issue at the end of
the period.

Current Assets over Current Liabilities.

Earnings Per Share over Dividend Per
Share.

Dividends Payout Ratio
Total Dividend as a percentage of Profits
After Tax.

Dividend Yield
Dividend Per Share as a percentage of
Market Price per Share at the end of the
period.

Fixed Assets plus Investment plus NonCurrent Assets plus Current Assets.

Total Debt
Long Term Loans plus Short Term Loans
and Overdrafts.

Net Debt

Total Debt/ Total Assets

Debt minus Cash and Short Term
Deposits.

Total Debt over Total Assets.

Net Turnover Per Employee
Net Turnover over average number of
employees.

Total Value Added
The difference between Revenue
(Including Other Income) and Expenses,
Cost of Materials and Services
purchased from External Sources.
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NOTICE OF MEETING
Notice is hereby given that the 34th Annual General Meeting of Keells Food Products PLC will be held at the John Keells Holdings
PLC Auditorium, No. 186, Vauxhall Street, Colombo 2, on Thursday 9th June 2016 at 10.00 a.m.
The business to be brought before the meeting will be:
1. To read the Notice convening the meeting.
2. To receive and consider the Annual Report of the Directors and the Financial Statements for the Financial Year Ended
31st March 2016 with the Report of the Auditors thereon.
3. To re-appoint Messrs. Ernst and Young, Chartered Accountants as Auditors of the Company for the year 2016/2017
and to authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration.
4. To consider any other business of which due notice has been given in terms of the relevant laws and regulations.

By Order of the Board
KEELLS FOOD PRODUCTS PLC

Keells Consultants (Private) Limited
Secretaries
Colombo
16th May 2016

Note:
•

A shareholder unable to attend is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his/her place.

•

A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company.

•

A shareholder wishing to vote by proxy at the meeting may use the proxy form enclosed.

•

To be valid, the completed proxy form must be lodged at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before
the meeting.

•

If a poll is demanded, a vote can be taken on a show of hands or by poll. Each share is entitled to one vote. Votes can be
cast in person, by proxy or corporate representatives. In the event an individual shareholder and his/her proxy holder are
both present at the meeting, only the shareholder’s vote is counted. If proxy holder’s appointor has indicated the manner of
voting, only the appointor’s indication of the manner of vote will be used.
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FORM OF PROXY
I/We ............................................................................................................................................................................of
........................................................................................................................................................................... being a
member/s of Keells Food Products PLC, hereby appoint:
.................................................................................................................................................................................... of
..............................................................................................................................................................or failing him/her
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Susantha Chaminda Ratnayake of Colombo
Ajit Damon Gunewardene of Colombo
James Ronnie Felitus Peiris of Colombo
Jitendra Romesh Gunaratne of Colombo
Shiran Harsha Amarasekera PC of Colombo
Athulugamage Damian Eardley Ignatius Perera of Colombo
Ranil Pieris of Colombo
Mahinda Preethiraj Jayawardena of Colombo

or
or
or
or
or
or
or

failing
failing
failing
failing
failing
failing
failing

him
him
him
him
him
him
him

as my/ our proxy to vote for me/ us on my/ our behalf at the 34th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 10.00
a.m. on the 9th of June 2016 and at any adjournment thereof and at every poll which may be taken in consequence thereof.
I/ We, the undersigned, hereby direct my/ our proxy to vote for me/ us and on my/ our behalf on the specified Resolution as
indicated by the letter “X” in the appropriate cage:
FOR

AGAINST

To re-appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young Chartered Accountants as Auditors and
to authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration.

Signed this .............................................. day of .............................................. Two Thousand and Sixteen (2016).
................................................................. Signature/s of shareholder/s

NOTE:
INSTRUCTIONS AS TO COMPLETION OF FORM OF PROXY ARE SET OUT ON THE REVERSE HEREOF.
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FORM OF PROXY

INSTRUCTIONS AS TO COMPLETION OF PROXY
1.

Please perfect the Form of Proxy by filling in legibly your full name and address, signing in the space provided and filling
in the date of signature.

2.

The completed Form of Proxy should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at No. 117, Sir Chittampalam
A. Gardiner Mawatha, Colombo 02, not later than 48 hours before the time appointed for the holding of the Meeting.

3.

If the Form of Proxy is signed by an Attorney, the relevant Power of Attorney should accompany the completed Form of
Proxy for registration, if such Power of Attorney has not already been registered with the Company.

4.

If the appointer is a Company or Corporation, the Form of Proxy should be executed under its Common Seal or by a duly
authorised officer of the Company or Corporation in accordance with its Articles of Association or Constitution.

5.

If this Form of Proxy is returned without any indication of how the person appointed as Proxy shall vote, then the Proxy
shall exercise his/ her discretion as to how he/she votes or, whether or not he/ she abstains from voting.

Please fill in the following details:

Name 		

: …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

Address 		

: ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Jointly with

: ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

Share Folio No

: ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
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GRI - G4

G4 - 3

G4 - 5

G4 - 7

CORPORATE
INFORMATION
Name of Company
Keells Food Products PLC

Mr. S H Amarasekera PC
Mr. A D E I Perera
Mr. M P Jayawardena

Company Registration Number

Audit Committee

PQ 3

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Legal Form
Public Limited Liability Company
Established in 1982

Registered Office of the Company
No. 117, Sir Chittampalam A, Gardiner
Mawatha, Colombo 02.
Sri Lanka
Tel: +94 11 2421101

Ekala Factory
No.16, Minuwangoda Road, Ekala, Ja-Ela. Sri
Lanka
Tel: +94 11 2236317
Fax: +94 11 2236359
E-Mail : foods@keells.com
Web: www.keellsfoods.com
THE
TASTE OF
SUCCESS

Pannala Factory
P. O Box 14 , Industrial State , Makadura
Gonawila (NWP). Sri Lanka
Tel: +94 037 4933248-51
Fax: +94 031 2298195
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Board of Directors
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

The Integrated Reporting Framework
This report is the first attempt by the Company to report under
Integrated Reporting Framework issued by the International
Integrated Reporting Council and uses the G4 criteria
published by the Global Reporting Initiative for Sustainability
Reporting (GRI G4) which we voluntarily adopted.

S C Ratnayake (Chairman)
A D Gunewardene
J R F Peiris
J R Gunaratne
R Pieris

Designed & produced by

Access this report online
www.keellsfoods.com/
Printed by Printel (Pvt) Ltd.
Photography by Dhanush De Costa

M P Jayawardena
R Pieris
S H Amarasekera PC
A D E I Perera

Secretaries & Registrars
Keells Consultants (Pvt) Ltd
No. 117, Sir Chittampalam A. Gardiner
Mawatha,
Colombo 02.
Sri Lanka

Auditors
Ernst & Young , Chartered Accountants,
201 , De Saram Place, Colombo 10.
Sri Lanka

Bankers
Bank of Ceylon Limited
Deutsche Bank AG
DFCC Vardhana Bank
DFCC Bank
Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd.
Nation Trust Bank PLC
Commercial Bank of Ceylon

Stock Exchange Listing
The Ordinary Shares of the Company are Listed
with the Colombo Stock Exchange of Sri Lanka

Subsidiary Company
John Keells Foods India (Private) Limited.
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